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Definitions

TEAFSERRAIN - BRI X Fe 77 H I - A T Al # R L7 -

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms and expressions have the meanings set forth below.

(IR R
“AGM”

F4nfI) ) ok [ A A AR A )
“Articles” or

“Articles of Association”

Lt YN

“associate(s)”

EnEd=iog

“Audit Committee”

[EHe)
“Board”

[ ]
“China”, “PRC” or “People’s

Republic of China”

(A7) BT IE S |

“Company” or “Zhenro Services”

[BAE AL

“connected person(s)”

Eelidie s
“Controlling Shareholders”

[ €A~ Al

“Corporate Governance Code”

[

“Director(s)”

AQNFR ZFE AR A L BRI BOREE R g

the annual general meeting of the Company held on 17 June 2022

A B WA B R AR (REANRHERT)

the articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to time

HA BB 2% 2

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

HEGFIZAY

the audit committee of the Board

HHE

the board of Directors

g KRB - (EEELE AR B N RAE I 25T S > BROCEE 7 A Prde
b > LR ~ WIRRRIAT B K 2

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purpose of this annual report and for
geographical reference only and except where the context requires, excluding Hong Kong,

Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan

IERRBEBMARAR » R oF— E+ 7 +L HTER SR &ML #
WORAIREATA A > B BB By (B USE : 6958)

Zhenro Services Group Limited, an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability on 17 December 2018, whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 6958)

HA BB 2% 2 3%

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

HA BB 2% 2 3%

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

L B - P ) 4 S A T R

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

AL AR

director(s) of the Company

IERMR¥ B A PR A F Zhenro Services Group Limited
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Definitions

[
“GFA”

[k ]
“Global Offering”

s S
“Group”

M)
“HK$" or “HKD" or

“Hong Kong Dollars”

[ it ]
“Hong Kong” or “HK”

[ P st e |
“IAS”

i
“Listing”

[ i H i
“Listing Date”

[ ik
“Listing Rules”

Exd

“Main Board”

[ HEdEsy Al
“Model Code”

N CE:Ce
“Mr. GQ Ou”

jeie E

gross floor area

AR AT R ) A 0 B 3 R 4 4y
the Hong Kong public offering and the international offering of the Shares pursuant to

the Prospectus

AT B A 7] (BSOS > A0S R AR T — ] s 2 T F G 2 /D)
the Company and its subsidiaries (or as the context refers, the Company and any one or

more of its subsidiaries)

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

FprE N BRI 7 i L 7
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

E3epigt il

International Accounting Standards

i dpyE ]

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board

TERTHAELHATH > BRBERECHT B H
10 July 2020, the date when the Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange

s pras 2r bR (REARIRERT ~ AR s DA A7 500
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended,

supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

B BT R RS R A 5 B (LR HARETIT ) 8 Sr S BT GEMOIE BELEL I A7
(8

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock Exchange which
is independent from and operates in parallel with the GEM of the Stock Exchange

LR R Bk PR CETTEAT A ST B2 5 S R HE ST A

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

BB S IR — > BRI SL T
Mzr. Ou Guogqiang, a Shareholder and son of Mr. ZR Ou

G Annual Report 2021
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Definitions

[RCR AR 5EA:
“Mr. ZR Ou”

[ AR PR

“Over-allotment Option”

(RIS

“Prospectus”

[FrZ B g

“Remuneration Committee”

Eispiil
“Reporting Period”

AR
“RMB” or “Renminbi”

w5 MR ]
“ﬁO

[ ety )
“Share(s)”

3R
“Shareholder(s)”

RYES

sq.m.

[ Bk 52 |
“Stock Exchange”

BORSSEE > AN RIS — > BB R e 1 A0
Mr. Ou Zongrong, one of the Controlling Shareholders and father of Mr. GQ Ou

BAHBE R T % 2 2

has the meaning ascribed to it in the Prospectus

ﬁ/\j[}]ﬁﬁﬁg#?#?ﬁi/\ﬂ T ILH MR A ﬁ*ﬂi
the prospectus of the Company dated 29 June 2020

EHEHMERE

the remuneration committee of the Board

BE-FZ - HFF A=t —HILEE
for the year ended 31 December 2021

H o E B LR
Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

BB IEGIE 571 B IR KW BRG] (FOARRREHT ~ wlis s oAb 7 )
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as

amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

A RS T (EL0.002 8 TERY A » H LAV TT A 5y Bt E R Tl
ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company with a par value of US$0.002 each,
which is (are) traded in Hong Kong dollars and listed on the Main Board

LS ZEDN
holder(s) of the Shares

Ik

square meter(s)

B A A R
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

- IEREHE A AT Zhenro Services Group Limited
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Definitions

I B 22l | 1&
“subsidiary(ies)”

[z | 18
“WeiQiang”

[MEX | 18
“WeiTian"

A | f&
“WeiYao”

[MEIE | 1&
“WeiZheng”

[IEZE R A 1 1&

“Zhenro Commercial

Management”

[EAREEE 2] ] i

“Zhenro Group Company”

HA L AR % 2 8 3%

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

ERERARAR > R =F— S+ A+ = HAE S A e & R E M BOL A
BRECAEAT  H B Iﬁ’if’ﬁé%%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ » BBORZ —

WeiQiang Holdings Limited (f& 58 A PR/ 1), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability on 13 December 2018, which is wholly-
owned by Mr. GQ Ou and is one of the Shareholders

BEREBARAF > R =F— S+ A+ = B A @A e & R E M BOL A
BREAEAT ﬁﬁ@m%%iéﬁ%ﬁ BRI —

WeiTian Holdings Limited (f# K4 A PR/ Al), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability on 13 December 2018, which is wholly-owned by
Mzr. ZR Ou and is one of the Controlling Shareholders

B RAT > R =% — S+ A+ = HAE S A B & R B A
BREAEAT ,ﬁ-ﬂﬂﬁm%%iééﬁ?ﬁﬁ » PR —

WeiYao Holdings Limited (fFREHE AT BR/A ), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability on 13 December 2018, which is wholly-owned by
Mzr. ZR Ou and is one of the Controlling Shareholders

BIERERARAR R =F—/F+ A+ = B A A e & R E M B A
REAEAH E—E@Am%f’ﬁi%%‘%ﬁ » PR —
WeiZheng Holdings Limited (f#1IE¥ A FR/AH]), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability on 13 December 2018, which is wholly-
owned by Mr. ZR Ou and is one of the Controlling Shareholders

E%Fﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\j i El@ﬂﬂ Fo8 AR B L A PR EAE 2
CRAEE M UUR RS § ZF - EAA SRR AL FR R EH

Wi

Zhenro Commercial Management Co., Led.* (IEZE P £ E A BRA A, a company

established in the PRC with limited liability on 26 May 2014 which has been a non-

wholly owned subsidiary of the Company since 30 June 2021 upon its acquisition by the

Group

IEASEMA AR (IR AR @ IERERARAR) - R—JULAEAA =+~
FAE BB B A PR AL 7] - o R 2 500 A B R 8 S8 A 0 Tl A 91.9% [t
8.1%

Zhenro Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Fujian Zhenro Group Co., Ltd.), a company
established in the PRC with limited liability on 31 August 1994, which is owned as to
91.9% by Mr. ZR Ou and 8.1% by Mr. GQ Ou

G Annual Report 2021
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Definitions

[IEZEH7E | 1

“Zhenro Properties”

[ESEHE S | 1

“Zhenro Properties Group”
[ IE2% i P 1&

“Zhenro Properties Holdings”

[%] i
wop”

PR

IEAMAERMARATR R F—EEA A+ — HAER 28 &L AL
WA ML A - B RE LT BT (RBREE - 6158) » mBCRAEEA -

Bk 5T AR SR (GRS AR BT S ) 207l W B #050.07% »

4.99% J%0.11%

Zhenro Properties Group Limited, an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability on 21 July 2014, whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 6158), and which is indirectly owned as to approximately 50.07%
by Mr. ZR Ou, 4.99% by Mr. GQ Ou and 0.11% by Mr. Huang Xianzhi (the chairman

of the Board and a non-executive Director)

IESEHE S LW 2~ 7]

Zhenro Properties and its subsidiaries

B ETERR A PR AR - R-F—TAEE A A+ T HAE PSR AR
FEAT] - B IESEHE ) 2 B 2w

Zhenro Properties Holdings Company Limited* (1F 4% Hh 5 ¥ 1 A PR /A7), a
company established in the PRC with limited liability on 22 July 2015 and a wholly-

owned subsidiary of Zhenro Properties

A

percent

“ E48 MR 4R B B A B Zhenro Services Group Limited
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Corporate Information
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Xiaotong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Huang Liang (resigned on 5 February 2021)
Mr. Kang Hong (appointed on 5 February 2021)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Huang Xianzhi (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Wai Kin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ma Haiyue

Mzr. Au Yeung Po Fung
Mr. Zhang Wei

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhang Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Haiyue
Mr. Chan Wai Kin

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Au Yeung Po Fung (Chairman)
M:r. Lin Xiaotong
Mr. Zhang Wei

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Huang Xianzhi (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Haiyue
Mzr. Au Yeung Po Fung

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Wang Yi
M. Lei Kin Keong

(resigned on 24 December 2021)
Ms. Lin Sio Ngo

(appointed on 24 December 2021)

43R Annual Report 2021
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Corporate Information

BRER

MR SE AR

TZEE

Zefaim ol AT R)
(= F T —AEA- T A BT

B IR Lt (BT RERR)
(P2 — 4 APy H#EZSAT)

73

K g il s

e S

A2 AR 25 BT A A%
B s ) fem

YL ELE 9795
Kty i — 27 4%

T BUE

0 22 2 AT B )

i 2 I s 2 e i 8 ) o il AR
B A

Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008

Cayman Islands

s 5800 8

F il o R 5 B RO IR
it

AT

B K183 9%
AR
17#1712-1716 %4

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mzr. Lin Xiaotong

Mr. Wang Yi

Mr. Lei Kin Keong (Alternate authorised representative)
(resigned on 24 December 2021)

Ms. Lin Sio Ngo (Alternate authorised representative)
(appointed on 24 December 2021)

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR

Guotai Junan Capital Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE AND TRANSFER AGENT IN THE CAYMAN
ISLANDS

Walkers Corporate Limited

190 Elgin Avenue

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

“ E48 MR 4R B B A B Zhenro Services Group Limited
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Corporate Information

D 5 T 0y 0 0
Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008

Cayman Islands

v 1 3 B S B A

Hr g i

B4 I

T % 666 77

WA TE 48 v 7 S5 1 g

HELEERNY
ik

BT

B KA R 248 5%

K 4 il L 404

FRAERHT

H B T L ERAT Y FH 5 S AT
Hh B T AR AT R B T S AT
B SRATVLRRE 04T

o B e AR AT L ¥ B S AT
o B L SR A T AR P S [ S AT

2wl i hk

http://www.zhenrowy.com

WA 5%

6958

REGISTERED OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS AND HEADQUARTERS
IN CHINA

1/F, Building 7, Hongqiao Zhenro Center
666 Shenhong Road

Minhang District

Shanghai, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre
No. 248 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKS

China Construction Bank, Putian Licheng Branch

China Construction Bank, Nanchang Qingyunpu Branch
Bank of China, Jiangsu Province Branch

China Construction Bank, Shanghai Caoyang Road Branch

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Hongqiao Business District Branch

COMPANY'’S WEBSITE

http://www.zhenrowy.com

STOCK CODE
6958

4E# Annual Report 2021 “
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Awards and Honors

PREEHEAS

Awarding body

HEIH
Awards

PRBE T B
China Index Academy

2021 B RS PR A (18 4%)

2021 China Top 100 Property Management Companies (Top 18)
2021 B SRS e A

2021 China Top 100 Leading Enterprises in terms of Property Service
Satisfaction

2021 PSRRI T T G (L E B T ASE

2021 China Leading Property Management Companies in terms of
Marketalisation of Business

P A E AR A 1208

China Top 20 Commercial Real Estate Enterprises in terms of Overall
Strength

(R
YIHAN Zhiku

2021 B _E T SERR TS S AL RE 1 TOP10

2021 China Top 10 Listed Property Management Enterprises in terms of
Operating Capability

2021 B B T SRS A3 TOPI S

2021 China Top 15 Listed Property Management Enterprises

2021 TRV A TR 154

2021 Property Management Companies in terms of Overall Strength in
China (Top 15)

2021 FE AT E S B HA 154

2021 China Top 15 Real Estate Companies in terms of Commercial
Property Value

2021 % F I BB 35098

2021 China Top 50 Model Companies for Customer Satisfaction

2021 PR FE M A MR S

2021 China Top 5 Commercial Real Estate Enterprises in terms of
Growth

2021 FE YA BHMFS J1TOP16

2021 China Top 16 Property Management Companies for Superior
Service Capabilities

2021 B SERBS b ek 1500

2021 China Top 500 Property Management Enterprises in terms of
Overall Strength

2021 H B0 7 S S MR B SR e A

2021 China Leading Companies in Commercial Property Management
2021 BV E T AT (8 AT AR A€

2021 China Leading Listed Property Management Enterprises in terms
of Recognition of Market Value

st Hh
CPMI (China Property Management Institute)

2021 "B IRHS A3 B BT 5000
2021 China Top 500 Property Management Enterprises in terms of Overall

Strength

2021 B 7 SE WM ST A3

2021 China Leading Companies in Commercial Property Management
2021 PP E T R T (E S AT ARG AR €

2021 China Leading Listed Property Management Enterprises in terms
of Recognition of Market Value

Fl AR E g AR

The Community Chest Excellence Award for Public welfare
FELEERR G e tE A H TR A A

HKIRA (Hong Kong Investor Relation Association) Best Investor Relations Company
B K A R B EH RS

China Financing Awards

Best Investor Relations

I RS A PR A F Zhenro Services Group Limited
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Awards and Honors

V “% ig_.._;f??f"* % w ¥ E____'?‘r.‘ %
sERSEAOREE LTI L

R R iRARTRL R (e T LT ™ LAY

B e e e e ettty an
e R e et L et

% ® 4 % ® 4

o 1 = L
% TORMSD
ToORIOD
i q 2021 ENEBERY 2021 EWLEBE LY
o BERED+E EFPAEEAECUVE+SE
TOEWD0
ERES
2021 chE i RSk Dease i EFRERAEELE

— TOP 15 —

RN menwens (v (Gors
cHuE BEEL (eans) Canned TReeTL @
T ke g

b | F. b | I~ vl I=

1 2021 HEPSEIRES R A (K18 4) 4 2021 B E SRR S ATERE JiTOP1O
2021 China Top 100 Property Management Companies (Top 18) 2021 China Top 10 Listed Property Management Enterprises in terms of
Operating Capability
2 2021 PRI RN S e b
2021 China Top 100 Leading Enterprises in terms of Property Service 5 2021 % F N E R 35078
Satisfaction 2021 China Top 50 Model Companies for Customer Satisfaction

3 20210 B EIRBE R TOPIS
2021 China Top 15 Listed Property Management Enterprises

43R Annual Report 2021
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Awards and Honors

WH o EH RS2

PUTIAN ZHENRO MANSIO Ching Index Academy
N N NSTON RS //E 3 SR E VN RS )

2021 China Property Service Industry Demonstration Base

ol H: I e i

ZH HAN RESIDENTIAL DISTRI YIHAN Zhiku
PRORHAREERIDERT STRICT | o = s ot s b

2021 Property Service Industry Urban Service Demonstration Project

E48 MR 4R B B A B Zhenro Services Group Limited
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Awards and Honors

v WA

LA ﬁﬁj?ﬁlnﬂﬁﬁﬁkﬁ B
JIANGSU MOBILE \:I;Aixliézmki T
COMMUNICATION HUB BUILDING R R R AR

Outstanding Featured Service Projects of Property Enterprises in 2020

MR o IEZED i

HONGQIAO ZHENRO CENTER YIHAN Zhiku
new A N SR AR S IR EAR TH

2021 Excellent Commercial Property Service Demonstration Project

43R Annual Report 2021




i

JIIIH]

R ARE

P g g FEE

Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management

"
WITES
B > ssik I F B

N HERAE AN FIRATEDSR « BI85 #H
Mz B g A -

RS AE S TR A B0 R/ ) 5 4 45 A B
HE T HPEA 31T o i — LA AR
ANABZ—JILEHF=H > MEEE TR
Iﬁ Be (R g & 4 Bl BB AL 5o
KB TR AT s H ) s —
Mt B R 2 —) B — Bk o FE UL
Mo BT TREEE - N — L
SABECERTHETH > MEEEEEMN
ﬁ@&% (A T N BRI 3% ST 17 Bk 7

) [ b E B v R o i R F AR
H%:;ﬂé*:fﬁzﬂ s M EIT RS
AR F (— FAE  BIAE 1 2L BB 0 R
) B4 0 A8 AE T R R AR R S TS o b
TE-THEZHECFNERA > MG
e 3 AT A N IS b 7 N ) A AR AR B o
ATZ—PUAE R A o MRSE A A TE 26 Hh
E > SO B N AT 2 8 v A
ff o A ZE—P4ERAE ZF— N\FE_H
HAMH > MOCAEIEILIES: () B EE
PR AR ALAEHE o A =B — /\FE A8
T— AE-LH - B I 4% M 428 B 00 A %
BhEE > JRBIEZE (R B RA RA A
WAL - A = F— /\FLtHEEZER
~i~?$+ Hmk$ﬂjmv%%$

%iﬂ%?ﬁﬂxfﬁ@ﬁ/&iﬂ lu:uﬁ%%li o

MR —JUN =4 B A R TR
BRI (L5 B AR A M ) o R —
T FAEL H APPSR RS mARE
N B T PR 206

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LIN Xiaotong (HKBE), aged 58, was appointed as an executive Director
of the Company on 6 November 2020. He is also a member of the Remuneration

Committee.

Mr. Lin has more than 31 years of experience in engineering management
and company operation management related matters. From August 1983 to
March 1997, Mr. Lin assumed the role of a teacher at the Fujian University
of Technology, which is a full-time undergraduate college in Fujian province
and one of the first batch of pilot universities for the “Outstanding Engineer
Education and Training Program” by the Ministry of Education of the PRC.
During this period, Mr. Lin was in charge of the teaching of engineering
management. From March 1997 to October 2002, Mr. Lin served as the head
of the real estate development station of Fuzhou Construction Bureau, which
is a functional department established by the Fuzhou Municipal Government.
From October 2003 to March 2012, Mr. Lin had taken up positions such as the
branch general manager and the vice president of Fujian Jindi Group, a private
enterprise engaged in property development in the PRC. Mr. Lin further served
as the general manager of Fuzhou Shiou Property Development Co., Led. (f& /M|
THER 2 22 Al) from March 2012 to May 2014. In May 2014, Mr. Lin
joined Zhenro Properties, and held various senior management positions within
its subsidiaries. During the period from May 2014 to February 2018, Mr. Lin
acted as the general manager of Zhenro (Fuzhou) Real Estate Development Co.,
Led. (IE5E (F8M)) B33 RABR/AA]). From February 2018 to July 2018,
he was an assistant to the president at Zhenro Properties Holdings and he was
also a general manager at Zhenro (Tianjin) Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

5 (RH) BXEBRAMRAF). From July 2018 and until immediately
prior to joining the Company in November 2020, Mr. Lin had served as the vice
president of Zhenro Properties Holdings and later as the general manager of the

Bohai Rim Region of Zhenro Properties Holdings.

Mr. Lin graduated from the Fujian University of Technology located in Fuzhou
city, Fujian province in the PRC in July 1983. He also obtained an Executive
Master of Business Administration degree from Tsinghua University in the PRC
in July 2010.

E48 MR 4R B B A B Zhenro Services Group Limited
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Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management

BEFE > 4008 IR E—FETARHA
BRERPITHESE -

JiESE A A R — NAE T I IE 26 4t 7 4
[ > NG L B RS 2 RS A 2 AR e AR B Rk
Lo RZFE - /NETAE R -FFEA+
H > 15 % AT 1E 46 B PE R (5 1 4 b 4
7% o R 4 O N D) R
HIEHE « B & EER AR
AR IR B SR AT BRA W) (T IEZ64E 1) ]) Hms e
LRI BB A I
P AT IE A5 42 M A0 H B B > & 315 45 4 14 i
T4 T R B A R0 TAE o FE A4
SEWHT > RRAEA N 2 5 FEAT W 4 A1
AR - IR FE R RAESE K — 4L
AP Oil International Limited* (BRERATIHA
B FD ) CRBREASE J7 Bn 3 04 24 #&]) 384T B
W K8 IR T BARS MR RS . SRR
Fe— 0 AR N A AR R 2 0 4 [ 1 03 A B
) [ S B AR AL R — AR LA
T TN R SRR IS AT o 5
5k 45 ] e 55 ) 0 A R et T 1 R bk 4%
B A R A F (— R B SR A H 5 R
() ARRAR (Tl B ) A
S R e A5 A PR W) 6 T R ek B
LEEHNFE) MHMBEZLR . —F—L4EY
FER— )NFILH BT EE R G EAEE
A RRA T (—Z v B T B 1 15 2 B 4R
R e 422 B 1 A PR R R R I
PR EE T ) D MARER - o BES E AeEAT
#H o

FRAEA N R — =L H AR B E
BRI L 48 PR T (MBA)Y BT o RSB
TR R A TR LA A € (ACCA) K B [
EEHTAE AN EEE S -

Mr. KANG Hong (FEE), aged 40, was appointed as an executive Director on
5 February 2021.

Mr. Kang joined Zhenro Properties Group in October 2018, and held various
senior management positions within its subsidiaries. From October 2018 to
December 2020, he served as a secretary to the board and the chief financial
officer of Zhenro Properties Holdings, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Zhenro
Properties Group in the PRC. He has also concurrently served as a general
manager of the strategic operation center at Zhenro Group Co., Ltd. (“Zhenro
Group”) since May 2020. Since January 2021, he has served as an assistant to
the president of Zhenro Group and is responsible for the financial management
and strategic operation center at Zhenro Group. Prior to joining Zhenro Group,
Mr. Kang held financial management related positions in various corporations.
From 2005 to 2012, Mr. Kang assumed the roles of financial manager and
financial director ac AP Oil International Limited (BREKAT A BRA A, a
company headquartered in Singapore. From 2013 to August 2014, Mr. Kang
served as a regional deputy general finance manager at Dalian Wanda Group
Co., Ltd. (R 32 SR 18 A A PR/ 7). From September 2014 to December
2016, Mr. Kang successively served as an executive deputy general manager at
Sincere Property Holding Group (1 {5 HuZE#E /B 4E M) and a general manager
of the finance department at Tusincere Technology City Investment Group Co.,
Led. (R 0 (5 BB S B A FRA AD), a group company in the PRC
co-invested by Sincere Holding Group Co., Led. (Ih{E#EM (FEE) AR
F]) (“Sincere Holding Group”) and Tus-Holdings Co., Ltd. RSt 22 J i
A BRZAF]) which is principally engaged in the development of technology
cities. From the beginning of 2017 to September 2018, Mr. Kang served as an
assistant to the president, the chief financial officer and an executive director
at Chongqing Sincere Industrial Co., Ltd. (EEMEEANEEARARA),
a large-scale property developer in the PRC co-invested by Sincere Holding
Group and Greenland Holdings Group Company Limited (fk 47 % 55 8] 4 R
K.

Mr. Kang obtained a Master of Business Administration (MBA) degree from
the University of Birmingham in the United Kingdom in July 2013. Mr. Kang
is a fellow member of both the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
(ACCA) and the Association of International Accountants (AIA).
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Xianzhi (#1li#%), aged 53, was appointed as the chairman
of the Board and non-executive Director on 6 December 2019. He is also the
chairman of the nomination committee of the Board. He is primarily responsible
for providing strategic advice and recommendations on the operations and
management of the Group. Mr. Huang has over 20 years of experience in the
PRC real estate industry. Prior to joining the Group, from October 1998
to October 2014, Mr. Huang served in various positions in Zhenro Group,
including the chief financial officer, the assistant to the chief executive officer,
the vice president primarily responsible for financial affairs and the executive
vice president where he was responsible for overall management, consecutively.
He has been a director and president of Zhenro Group since November 2014.
Mr. Huang has served as an executive director and the chairman of the board
of Zhenro Properties Holdings, a subsidiary of Zhenro Properties, since March
2016. Since September 2017, he has served as an executive director and
chairman of the board in Zhenro Properties primarily responsible for the overall
management of the investment strategies and business development. He has also

acted as the chief executive officer of Zhenro Properties since November 2019.

Mr. Huang graduated from Jimei Advanced Specialized Institute of Finance and
Economics (4535 A % 2R AL) (now known as Jimei University (55
KE)) in the PRC in July 1989, where he majored in investment economics.
He also obtained a master’s degree in business administration from The Open
University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in November 2012. Mr. Huang was
conferred the accountant qualification in December 1997 by MOF.

Mr. Huang was awarded the “Outstanding Professional Manager in China for
the Year of 2008” (2008 4 B i B SE X TN ) by the International
Human Resources Management Association (%}\jj g%%ﬂ%@),
Editorial Department of Business Reviews of Peking University (L K%
FFAmAREEET) and Professional Magazine of the Ministry of Human Resources
and Social Security (A JJERANA & (R BRI SE M FEAT) in October 2008,
and “Chief Accountant in China for the Year of 2011”7 (2011 "R 48 € 1 Hifi
A by China Association of Chief Financial Officers (*?@@ﬁgﬂﬁﬁ
) in December 2011. He was awarded “Figure with Contributions to China
Real Estate Brands in 2015” (2015 7B 7= 2 5 B E B A D) jointly by
Enterprise Research Institute of the Development Research Center of the State
Council (BB A H .0 EMFFFT), Property Research Institute of
Tsinghua University (& #EKZ 5 #iE DF 55 IT) and CIA in September 2015.
He received “Top 100 Figures with Contributions to China Real Estate Industry
in 2016”7 (2016 *%iﬁéﬁ@ﬁ%A%) award from China Real Estate
TOP10 Research Group (FF'EIEHLE TOP10 M7 4) in March 2016. In
September 2018, he was awarded “Leaders in the China Real Estate Industry
for the Year of 2018” (2018 H[E] = b & SE 5 A #)) by China Real Estate
Association ([ 75 7 S 15 ).
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Mr. CHAN Wai Kin (Fﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂﬁ), aged 41, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 6 December 2019. He is also a member of the Audit Committee.
He is primarily responsible for providing strategic advice and recommendations
on the operations and management of the Group. Mr. Chan has over 10 years of
experience in accounting and financial matters. Prior to joining the Group, from
April 2012 to February 2014, he worked at Golden Wheel Tiandi Holdings
Company Limited (48K Hi4% %A PR 7)), a company principally engaged
in property development whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1232), where he served as executive director and chief
financial officer from April 2012 to September 2013 mainly responsible for
overseeing financial management and regulatory compliance, company secretary
from April 2012 to August 2013 and non-executive director from September
2013 to February 2014. From February 2014 to March 2015, he worked as
chief financial officer and company secretary, mainly responsible for financial
reporting and investors related matters, at Times China Holdings Limited
(R B2 I AT BRZS 7) (formerly known as “Times Property (Holdings)
Co., Limited (FFACHLEFERCH BRA )", a property developer whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1233). From
March 2015 to August 2018, he worked at Seazen Group Limited (BT
JEYEE A BR/A A (formerly known as “Future Land Development Holdings
Limited”), a property developer whose shares are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1030), where he served as joint company
secretary from March 2015 to March 2018, executive director from March 2015
to August 2018, mainly responsible for overseeing the financial management
and capital market related matters. Since September 2018, he has worked at
Zhenro Properties where he has served as executive director and vice president
since September 2018, chief financial officer since November 2018, mainly

responsible for corporate financing management.

Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor’s degree in business science from Indiana
University Bloomington in the United States in May 2005. He has been a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
July 2009. He obtained a master’s degree in business administration at the
University of Chicago Booth School of Business in the United States in March
2017.

He has started his Doctor of Business Administration (DBA) program at the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology since September 2021.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. MA Haiyue (F5¥##), aged 45, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 June 2020. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee and the nomination committee of the Board. He is primarily
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and management
of the Group. Mr. Ma has over 19 years of experiences in financing and
auditing. Prior to joining the Group, from May 2002 to November 2004, Mr.
Ma worked at Ernst & Young Da Hua. From November 2004 to July 2017,
Mr. Ma held various positions at KPMG Huazhen LLP, including as an audit
manager from November 2004 to June 2007, an audit senior manager from
July 2007 to September 2011 and an audit partner from October 2011 to July
2017. From July 2017 to June 2018, Mr. Ma served as an executive director
at the investment banking division of Morgan Stanley Huaxin Securities Co.,
Led.. He has worked at Venus Medtech (Hangzhou) Inc. (ﬁd‘l‘l Eiﬁﬁ% PR
JBeAR A7 BR/A Fl), a company principally engaged in manufacture and research
and development of medical device and listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2500), where he has served as chief financial officer
mainly responsible for its finance management since June 2018 and also a joint

company secretary since July 2019.

Mr. Ma obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics (_E 18 B8 K L) in the PRC in June 1998. Mr. Ma is a

member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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and Senior Management

Mr. AU Yeung Po Fung (I o B, aged 54, was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director on 10 June 2020. He is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the nomination committee of
the Board. He is primarily responsible for providing independent advice on
the operations and management of the Group. Mr. Au Yeung has extensive
work experience in the real estate industry. He held various senior management

positions in the following companies in the real estate industry:

NS B 37 b R B REE RA IR 421
Place of listing and
Name of company Principal business stock code Position Period of service
B E A PR ESTE 3 S e R = e S
Powerlong Real Estate & MR R (A fR3% : 1238)  Chief financial officer HeE_%——
Holdings Limited T 5 B % Main Board of the 1A
(gﬁgfﬂéﬁﬁﬁﬁ FR/AF])  Commercial real estate Stock Exchange November 2007 to
development and (stock code: 1238) October 2011
investment, property
management and
hotel development
FABEHE A RAT PV BT ER Wi EAMAR —F A
Sun Hung Kai Properties Y Eid<y (e p A% - 16) O8] GRirish BRI
Limited (Fi¥GZHEF % Development of Main Board of the BH S A BR 2 A A B +—A
FBRAT) properties for sale Stock Exchange J& 2~ \)) B B October 2011 to
and investment (stock code: 106) BE (NHZER) December 2013

1R e P PR R ] B HERE
(2B A R A R Bl

— KM A A ) Global real estate
Fosun Industrial Holdings investment and
Limited (18 £ b E management

ARAF) @ subsidiary of
Fosun International Limited

(18 B A BR A FDY)

Chief financial officer
at Sun Hung Kai
Real Estate Agency
Led. GHTIBJE b 78
B RA ),

a subsidiary of Sun

Hung Kai Properties

Limited (Mainland
operations)
W32 Bl T4 Rl e RMEE  —FUEZH
(BeARRHE : 656)  Vice president and R PYE
Main Board of the chief financial officer \H
Stock Exchange February 2014 to
(stock code: 656) August 2014
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Name of company Principal business stock code Position Period of service
SRR (SRE) AIRAF PR IENE WA B LA HEWHER=E  —FEFEAA
Sansheng Holdings (Group) Property development (i : 2183) o A [ R AR ZH— )\
Co. Led. (Z/BHERE (Z2H)) and investment Main Board of the Chief financial officer —H
AR H) Stock Exchange and vice president of ~ August 2017 to
(stock code: 2183) Sansheng Real Estate January 2018
Group
LT A E (R AR P A Rl “EF-NETHA
A Property development ~ N/A Vice president ESIE Sana 2
Shanghai Huadong Properties —A
(Group) Limited (FigHEE February 2019 to
i (SR ARRAT) January 2021
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Mr. Au Yeung graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known
as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in Hong Kong in November 1990
with a bachelor’s degree in business studies. He was admitted as a fellow of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in November 2000, a fellow of
the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (currently known as the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA)) in May 2003, and a fellow
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales in July 2015.
Mr. Au Yeung was also certified as a chartered financial analyst (CFA) of the
CFA Institute in September 2006.

During the period between 1998 and 2001, Mr. Au Yeung was a director of
Uniford Asia Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong and dissolved by
striking off pursuant to section 291 of the then Companies Ordinance (Chapter
32 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (as in force before 3 March 2014) on 18 May
2001. Mr. Au Yeung has confirmed that such company was not in operation and
was solvent at the time of dissolution. Mr. Au Yeung has further confirmed that
there was no fraudulent act or misfeasance on his part leading to the striking off
of such company and he is not aware of any actual or potential claim that had

been or will be made against him as a result of the striking off of such company.
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#H
AL

Name of company

T e B B BB AT PR )

Kiu Hung International

Holdings Limited

16 B P P R A

B R SRR SR B AR
China LNG Group Limited
(H B R IR SR A R

Z))

[ i 0 A BR A )

GR Properties Limited

(BU St E AT PR )

T i R 8 Bt
AR F

Shanshan Brand Management

Co., Led. (F2H2 1
et R A )

ke

SA W b B A R
Redsun Properties Group

Limited (34 P57 4

AR D)

TFIS AT
eBroker Group Limited

(BT 25 A AT

FEEH
Principal business

BiEL ~ B BARH
il B

Toys, resources and
leisure-related

business

B RN RETR
Bk

Asset management
and new energy

development

EX YL

Property development

and management

weat g R

B 5 LR IR

YNGR

Design, marketing
and sales of formal
and casual business

menswear

75 Hbu s B %
Real estate

development

E QIS
e
Financial technology

solution provider

i R A AR

Place of listing and

stock code

T 32 i 4R
(B L5 - 381)
Main Board of the
Stock Exchange
(stock code: 381)

W38 i 4
(BB fH% = 931)

Main Board of the
Stock Exchange
(stock code: 931)

W38 i LA
(e st - 108)

Main Board of the
Stock Exchange
(stock code: 108)

VRN

(e AUHE = 1749)

Main Board of the
Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1749)

VR

(et A% - 1996)

Main Board of the
Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1996)

W32 T GEM

(Bt ft5% : 8036)

GEM of the Stock
Exchange (stock
code: 8036)

L A0A
Position

B FTES
Independent non-

executive director

B FTES
Independent non-

executive director

B RATES
Independent non-

executive director

WL EMATE S
Independent non-

executive director

WIS
Independent non-

executive director

WIS
Independent non-

executive director

Mr. Au Yeung holds or had held directorships in the following listed companies:

A A ]

Period of service

ZENERA
RN
LA

May 2016 to
September 2016

~E LA
BoE N
LA

July 2016 to
September 2019

—“EF—tHFtH
BRI
—H

July 2017 to
February 2020

TR NERA
e
A~H

May 2018 to June
2021

—F—NEARRA
4
June 2018 to

present

—E—N\FENH
4
June 2018 to

present
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Name of company

PR SR A PR A A
Zhongliang Holdings Group
Company Limited ({15

PERCEBA PR 7))

HOTEER (1) FIRA T
Sinic Holdings (Group)

Company Limited G#7 /]
PERC (1) AIRAT)

o A AT PR A )

Sunkwan Properties Group

Limited

FEEH
Principal business

ESE S YE

B UM ERE

ik

Property development,

property
management,
property leasing
and management

consulting

S ES R YL YE Siik=

Property development

and property leasing

i R B A AR

Place of listing and

stock code

B2 B £

(e ARat : 2772)

Main Board of the
Stock Exchange

(stock code: 2772)

W2 B E R

(L ARHE - 2103)

Main Board of the
Stock Exchange

BRI S (T

AT

(stock code: 2103)

W2 B E R

(BEARHE - 6900)

A holding company
that develops and

sells residential

property

Main Board of the
Stock Exchange

(stock code: 6900)

B
Position

BT EE
Independent non-

executive director

WL IERTES
Independent non-

executive director

WA ERATES

Independent non-

executive director

s 4 141
Period of service

SRS
XS
June 2019 to

present

—F-ENA
54
August 2019 to

present

e
w4
October 2020 to

present
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Mr. ZHANG Wei (iRkf#), aged 46, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 June 2020. He is also the chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee. He is
primarily responsible for providing independent advice on the operations
and management of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, from December
2011 to January 2015, he served as director at asset management department
at Legend Holdings Corporation B AR PE IR AR A BR A ), a company
principally engaged in strategic investment business, whose shares are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3396). From January
2015 to February 2019, he worked as the general manager of legal department
at China Vanke Co., Led. (BFHEZER A FRA D), a joint stock company
principally engaged in the property development and property services whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (H share stock code:
2202) and on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (A share stock code: 00002). Since
July 2018, he has served as an independent director at Appotronics Corporation
Limited (RYDEIERHE A A BR/A 7)), a company principally engaged in
laser display technology development, whose shares are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 688007). From February 2019 to September 2021,
he has worked at 360 Security Technology Inc. (= /NZEH 2R AR A R
/~T]), an internet and mobile security product and service provider listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601360), where he served as the
vice president and chief legal consultant mainly responsible for legal affairs,
investment and urban industry segment. Since December 2021, he has served at
Aptronics Corporation Limited (RYIDGIERHEL AR A PR/ ), a laser display
technology development company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 688007), where he has served as a director and vice president mainly

responsible for legal affairs, human resources, administration, infrastructure.

Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in law and a master’s degree in civil and
commercial law from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law ("5 # £8E
N (formerly known as Zhongnan University of Law (PRI BIEKER)), in
the PRC in July 1996 and June 2000, respectively. He also obtained a master’s
degree and a juris doctor’s degree from the Indiana University McKinney School
of Law, in the United States in May 2004 and August 2007, respectively.
Mr. Zhang also holds the New York qualification certificate to practice as
an attorney and counselor at law, conferred by the Appellate Division of the

Supreme Court of the State of New York in the United States in April 2008.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Mr. Wang Yi and Ms. Lin Sio Ngo (appointed on 24 December 2021) are joint

company secretaries of the Company.

Mr. Lei Kin Keong had been a joint company secretary of the Company since 6
December 2019 and up to 23 December 2021.

Mr. WANG Yi (EZ8), aged 40, has over 15 years of experience in financial
management, internal control and risk management, as well as audit related
matters. From May 2005 to December 2012, Mr. Wang worked as regional
financial controller at China United Travel Co., Ltd. (BRE G A A TR
H]), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600358)
during which he was mainly responsible for financial management, financial
and auditing related matters. From December 2012 to August 2014, he served
as financial manager of Qoros Automotive Co. Ltd. (%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ)
From August 2014 to April 2016, Mr. Wang served as audit director at Dalian
Wanda Group Co., Led. (K # LM MDA /AR, a multinational
conglomerate headquartered in Beijing, PRC. Mr. Wang joined Zhenro
Properties, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6158) in
September 2016 and had held various senior management positions within
its subsidiaries. From September 2016 to April 2017, he served as the chief
financial officer of the finance department at Zhenro Properties Holdings.
From April 2017 to December 2017, he served as the chief financial officer
of Zhengzhou Zhenro Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (%JHE%E%@E
JEABRZAF]). From December 2017 until immediately prior to joining the
Company in August 2020, he served successively as deputy general manager and

general manager of the finance department at Zhenro Properties Holdings.

Mr. Wang graduated from Nanjing Audit University in the PRC with a

bachelor’s degree in management in 2002.
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Ms. Lin Sio Ngo (#4ik) was appointed as the joint company secretary on 24
December 2021.

Ms. Lin is a manager of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong)
Limited with over 20 years of working experience in corporate secretarial and
administration areas. She is an associate member of The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries) and The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly The Institute of

Chartered Secretaries and Administrators).

Ms. Lin holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration and a master’s

degree in corporate governance.

She currently also serves as the joint company secretary of other several listed

companies.
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Dear Shareholders,

I 'am pleased to present to you the annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021.

RESULTS REVIEW

During the Reporting Period, the revenue of the Group increased by
approximately 21.1% to RMB1,335.8 million as compared with RMB1,102.8
million for the corresponding period last year; the profit for the period was
approximately RMB177.6 million, representing an increase of approximately
1.4% as compared with RMB175.2 million for the corresponding period
last year; the profit attributable to owners of the parent for the period was
approximately RMB174.6 million, representing an increase of approximately
1.7% as compared with RMB171.6 million for the corresponding period last

year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The year of 2021 was a challenging year for Zhenro. The Group continuously
made efforts for high-quality growth, business expansion, deep engagement in
cities, optimization and integration of resources. Meanwhile, the Group actively
explored business innovation, strengthened the control system and improved

organizational effectiveness to promote operational improvement.

According to the data published by China Index Academy, the Group was
ranked 18th among the 2021 Top 100 Property Management Companies in
China (2021 *%%HE%E?@J@%%@B%) with continuous improvement

of its overall strength.
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Adherence to the strategy of deep engagement in regions,

continuous business innovation and high-quality expansion

In 2021, the Group continued to deeply engage in target cities and expand
its business scale. The Group continuously expanded its business in Shanghai,
Nanjing, Suzhou, Fuzhou and other key first-and second-tier cities in order to
stabilize and enhance its market position. As at 31 December 2021, the number
of property service projects under management increased to 358, and the
number of commercial operation projects under management reached 23. The
commercial operation projects were located in the key first-and second-tier cities

including Shanghai, Nanjing, Fuzhou and Changsha.

During the Reporting Period, the contracted GFA of the Group reached
approximately 104.1 million sq.m., representing a net increase of approximately
16.7 million sq.m. as compared to 31 December 2020, and the total GFA
under management reached approximately 71.0 million sq.m., representing a
net increase of approximately 29.7 million sq.m. as compared to 31 December
2020.

In 2021, based on the Group’s advantages of business expansion in the regions
where the Group was deeply engaged in its business, it newly developed its
property management business for rail transit, scenic areas and high-tech
industrial parks. Meanwhile, the Group cooperated with local governments
and social organizations in promoting projects including urban public services,
public space management and public resource management. In 2021, the Group
successively established long-term strategic cooperation with Fuzhou Hi-tech

Zone and the government of Xuanwu District, Nanjing.

Persistence in quality service as the cornerstone, and operation

improvement with science and technology

In 2021, under the service philosophy of “providing heartfelt and personalized
services for your well-being” (“IREFH-L> » AR EVR”), the Group announced
its new strategic positioning as the leading beautiful home-living service group
in China, with the strategic objective to create a high-quality and high-value
comprehensive service group in China, namely Zhenro Service, which will
actively explore and make arrangements for urban services, long-term rental
apartments and other asset management services to provide users with full-cycle

and full-scenario services.
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Meanwhile, the Group also launched five major sub-brands for diversification.
The Group made efforts to build a beautiful life in every scenario and at every
moment, through creating Rongju (4 /&) “residential property services”,
Ronggqi (%&1>) “business enterprise property services”, Rongcheng (53)
“urban services”, Rongshang (47) “business management” and Rong+ (5 +)

“: . . »
innovative business”.

Meanwhile, the Group continuously brought a beautiful living experience
for home owners, further optimized its operation cost and improved its
operation efficiency, through its arrangements for intelligent communities, the
improvement of the digital platform for operation, accelerated integration of
community resources, focus on the actual living needs of property owners, and

active innovation and development of community value-added services.

Commercial operation, accelerated project expansion and business

innovation for improving operational efficiency

In 2021, the Group completed the acquisition of 99% equity interest in Zhenro
Commercial Management. Zhenro Commercial Management had a total GFA
under management of approximately 1.49 million sq.m. and 23 projects under

management as at 31 December 2021.

Zhenro Commercial Management was continuously and deeply engaged in
Western China Region, Yangtze River Delta Region, Central China Region
and Bohai Rim Region, and accelerated the development of its asset-light
commercial management business while steadily developing its commercial
projects. Changzhou Xinghu Plaza and Taixing Phoenix Plaza, which are asset-

light commercial projects, successfully commenced operations.

Meanwhile, with the continuous acceleration of industry iteration and the
change of consumption in the “post-epidemic era”, Zhenro Commercial
Management continuously improved the customer experience and operation
quality. In 2021, Zhenro Commercial Management further improved its
membership management system, formed a closed-loop of consumption
covering traffic driving, conversion and accumulation, and improved the
customer experience through digital operation, and promoted the improvement

in operational efficiency.
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OUTLOOK

2021 is the first year of the national “14th Five-Year” Plan and the carbon
peaking and carbon neutrality goals, when there are rapid changes in the
economic environment in China. With the change of the development paradigm
of the property management industry and the higher expectations for the
industry, there will be keen competition in the industry, while the property
industry will have significant room to grow. With vast market opportunities,
the Group will continuously make efforts to build its core competence in four
aspects, namely steady improvement in quality, full-scenario service response,
technological enablement and emerging business. In order to ensure the
achievement of targets, the Group will start with organizational upgrade, talent
optimization, management and control system improvement and incentive
system, and promote the steady implementation of its strategies through

comprehensive and strong management, thus achieving its growth.

For this purpose, the Group will strengthen its cooperation with local
governments and third-party developers. The Group will increase its share of
the property management market in regions in which it is engaged and develop
new businesses through multi-channel market expansion, strategic cooperation,
mergers and acquisitions of property management companies and upstream
and downstream professional companies. While pursuing high-quality scale
expansion, the Group will continuously leverage the power of digital platforms
to create more diversified value-added services and continuously improve its
service quality and owner satisfaction. Meanwhile, the Group will enhance the
business synergy between commercial management and property management
segments, further broaden business boundaries and create new profit and revenue
growth points while optimising the Group’s ability to operate in diversified

business sectors.
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APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, I would like to express our sincere appreciation
to all shareholders, investors, business partners and customers for their support,
and all employees for their dedication and hard work. We will continue to
uphold our service concept of “providing heartfelt and personalised services for
your well-being” (“‘NREF A1 > A L51R”) and create a beautiful life for our
customers, create value for our shareholders and investors continuously, and

continue our efforts on contributing to social prosperity.

Zhenro Services Group Limited
Huang Xianzhi
Chairman of the Board
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Business Model of the Group

The Group has four business lines, namely, (i) property management services,
(ii) value-added services to non-property owners, (iii) community value-added
services, and (iv) commercial operational management services, forming an
integrated service offering to its customers that cover the entire value chain of

property management.

U Property management services. The Group provides a wide range of
property management services to property developers, property owners,
residents and commercial property tenants. The Group’s property
management services primarily include (i) cleaning services, (ii) security
services, (iii) landscaping services, and (iv) repair and maintenance services
for both residential and non-residential properties and commercial

properties.

o Value-added services to non-property owners. The Group offers
a comprehensive range of property-related business solutions to
non-property owners, which primarily include property developers. The
Group's value-added services to non-property owners primarily consist of
(i) sales assistance services (involving assistance to property developers in
showcasing and marketing their properties, cleaning and maintenance,
security and visitor management), (ii) additional tailored services
customised to meet specific needs of customers on an as-needed basis and
sales of goods, (iii) housing repair services, (iv) preliminary planning and

design consultancy services, and (v) pre-delivery inspection services.

U Community value-added services. The Group provides community
value-added services to property owners and residents. The community
value-added services primarily include (i) home-living services, (ii) car
park management, leasing assistance and other services and (iii) common
area value-added services to improve the living experience of customers

and to maintain and enhance the value of their properties.

o Commercial operational management services. The Group provides
commercial operational management services to the tenants and the
customers, which primarily include (i) brand and management output

services; and (ii) sublease services.
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The Group believes that its property management service business line serves
as the basis for the Group to generate revenue, expand its business scale, and
increase its customer base for its community value-added services to property
owners and residents. The Group’s value-added services to non-property owners
help it gain early access to property development projects and establish and
cultivate business relationships with the property developers, giving the Group
a competitive advantage in securing engagements for property management
services. The comprehensive range of the Group's community value-added
services business line helps to enhance its relationship with customers and
improve their satisfaction and loyalty. The Group believes that its four business
lines will continue to enable it to gain greater market shares and expand

business presence in China.

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Continuous Quality Growth in Both Area and Scale

The Group adhered to rapid and quality expansions on management coverage
area as one of its strategic targets, and has achieved speedy growth in contracted
GFA and GFA under management through its multi-property type business
development. As of 31 December 2021, the Group's contracted GFA amounted
to approximately 104.1 million sq.m., and the number of contracted projects
totalled 444, representing an increase of 19.1% and 38.8%, respectively,
compared with those as at 31 December 2020. For the year ended 31 December
2021, GFA under management reached approximately 71.0 million sq.m., and
the number of projects under management totalled 358, representing an increase
of approximately 72.0% and 53.0%, respectively, compared with those as at 31
December 2020.
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The table below indicates the movement in the Group’s contracted GFA and
GFA under management for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

BE R A R SR TR 2 S ) -
BETH=Z1T—HIEE
For the year ended 31 December
S SR
2021 2020
eyl Fixe BH 1EE
SRR SRR feE g fee gt
Contracted GFA under Contracted GFA under
GFA management GFA management
(T-FIrk) (FFrxk) (TF7K) (TFIrK)
(‘000 sq.m.) (‘000 sq.m.) (000 sq.m.) (‘000 sq.m.)
A As of the beginning of the period 87,397 41,277 36,998 22,938
HrET#o New engagements”) 15,631 28,678 50,680 18,596
g Acquisitions? 1,490 1,490 - -
ko Terminations” (463) (463) (281) (257)
IR As of the end of the period 104,055 70,982 87,397 41,277
p
BfF5E Notes:
(1) ARAEME BN T B4 EE (1) With respect to residential communities the Group managed, new engagements primarily

D5 5 R 5 5 0 6 1 A () AR
268 T ) S TS £ A 1 £ A I S
MR A1 o

() RIEARMEEME (MAEMR -F - —FAAZ
FIUH ) AR AT 49 TR o

G EERIEEEAEENET BRSO EE R
SRBs AT > H T o7 A G SR A S B
VR BAIRE N ERATTAY > LB AR K2
EWA -

included preliminary management contracts for new properties developed by property
developers and property management service contracts for residential communities replacing

their previous property management service providers.

) This represented the GFA of 1.49 million sq.m. under the management of Zhenro

Commercial Management, which was acquired by the Group on 29 June 2021.

(3) These terminations included the Group’s voluntary non-renewal of certain property
management service contracts as it reallocated its resources to more profitable engagements

in an effort to optimise its property management portfolio.
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Geographic Presence of the Group

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has expanded its geographic presence to 50

cities in China.

The table below sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s total GFA under

management as of the dates and total revenue generated from property

management services by geographic location for the year ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 respectively:

RHZA=Zt—HRRET A=+ —HILEE

As at 31 December or for the year ended 31 December

TR R R
2021 2020
ZiN TEE
SRR A R A
GFA GFA
under under
management Revenue management Revenue
(TFIrk) AR % (FTHK) ANREFIC %
(000 sq.m.)  RMB’000 % (000sq.m.)  RMB000 %
RZAMHIBIED  Yangtze River Delta Region® 22,754 336,610 51.1 17,683 274,695 56.4
IRENEMIE®  Bohai Rim Region® 4,575 38,819 5.9 861 24,270 5.0
HTGERASTR RS Midwest Region® 21,310 124,841 19.0 8,513 81,841 168
TRV HI IS Western Straits Region® 22,343 158,058 24.0 14,220 105,988 21.8
At Total 70,982 658,328 100.0 41,277 486,794 100.0
g Notes:
(1) AR 1E R VL= 4 Vi L 2 PR ) A Ik 1) Cities in which the Group has property management projects in the Yangtze River Delta

WS L - A B AL FE - -
TN ~ %~ JEH WO B B B
B BN R R S o
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FHRE -~ Pw -~ R B0 B RN o
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- BB BRSO R
e R o

e

(4) ARSI I A ) 2 B A ST
EFRARIM ~ B T T R =
M~ PR -

(2)

3)

)

Region include Shanghai, Nanjing, Suzhou, Hefei, Jiaxing, Taizhou, Chuzhou, Lu'an,
Wuhu, Changzhou, Suzhou, Xuancheng, Chaohu, Fuyang, Hangzhou, Nantong and Wuxi.

Cities in which the Group has property management projects in the Bohai Rim Region

include Tianjin, Jinan, Xuzhou, Luoyang, Sugian and Zhengzhou.

Cities in which the Group has property management projects in the Midwest Region
include Nanchang, Yichun, Changsha, Wuhan, Xi'an, Ganzhou, Suizhou, Xiangyang,
Yueyang, Chongqing, Chengdu, Ji'an, Huanggang, Baoji and Xianyang.

Cities in which the Group has property management projects in the Western Straits Region
include Fuzhou, Putian, Pingtan, Nanping, Quanzhou, Sanming, Zhangzhou, Xiamen and

Foshan.
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VALUE-ADDED SERVICES TO NON-PROPERTY
OWNERS

The Group provides value-added services to non-property owners, which mainly
comprise (i) sales assistance services (involving assistance to property developers
in showcasing and marketing their properties, cleaning and maintenance,
security and visitor management), (ii) additional tailored services customised to
meet specific needs of its customers on an as-needed basis, and sales of goods,
(iii) housing repair services, (iv) preliminary planning and design consultancy
services, and (v) pre-delivery inspection services. Most of these non-property

owners are property developers.

In 2021, revenue from value-added services to non-property owners decreased
by 10.6% to approximately RMB371.2 million compated to approximately
RMB415.3 million in the same period of 2020, mainly due to the decreased
demand for services such as sales assistance services and additional tailored
services in the projects developed by the Group and the partner property
developers. The revenue from value-added services to non-property owners

accounted for 27.8% of the total revenue.

The table below sets forth a breakdown of the Group's revenue generated from

its value-added services to non-property owners for the period indicated:

{ELIRBS 78 AE U A W4
BET-HA=Z+—HIEHE
For the year ended 31 December
R e
2021 2020
ARHTT % ARETI %
RMB000 % RMB'000 %
T 8 IR Sales assistance services 217,679 58.6 223,530 53.8
FEHME i IRBs S Additional tailored services and
73 B sale of goods 102,791 27.7 142,623 34.3
5 & HEE IR Housing repair services 32,671 8.8 32,253 7.8
ISRV & & Preliminary planning and design
52 consultancy services 10,340 2.8 10,216 2.5
S AT A e R Pre-delivery inspection services 7,740 2.1 6,677 1.6
At Total 371,221 100.0 415,299 100.0
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COMMUNITY VALUE-ADDED SERVICES

The Group provides community value-added services to property owners and
residents under management, which mainly comprise (i) home-living services, (ii)
car park management, rental assistance and other services, and (iii) common area

value-added services.

In 2021, the revenue from community value-added services increased by 31.8%
to approximately RMB264.5 million compared to approximately RMB200.7
million in the same period of 2020, mainly due to the expansion of GFA under
management and the increased demand for real estate brokerage services related
to parking spaces. In 2021, revenue from community value-added services
accounted for 19.8% of total revenue, representing an increase of approximately

1.6 percentage points as compared with the same period of 2020.

The following table sets forth the revenue breakdown of community value-
added services for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

BETZA=S—HIR4ERE
For the year ended 31 December

TR e
2021 2020
AT % ARFTI %
RMB'000 % RMB000 %
K JE A g Home-living services” 125,646 47.5 118,923 59.3
B~ T Car park management, leasing
A H AL R @ assistance and other services” 119,946 45.4 67,437 33.6
o33 [ sl (R Common area value-added services® 18,902 7.1 14,299 7.1
st Total 264,494 100.0 200,659 100.0
W5 Notes:
(1) HEREREE - W - s - FRES (1) It mainly includes services such as cleaning, group purchase, turnkey furnishing, home
R B b 2 S0 2 TR o maintenance and utility fee collection services.
(2) FOT AR R A A AR (2) It mainly includes income from the management and assistance of parking lot leasing,
0y 2 T O A B Y s 8 A TR B R A TR provision of real estate brokerage services related to properties and parking spaces to owners
e and other services.
(3) SO A 5 e A58 4 037 DA e [ B AH R (3) It mainly includes common area advertising space and service income from common area

B -

leasing.

I RS A PR A F Zhenro Services Group Limited




T S o T

Management Discussion and Analysis

LES L:4:80C 7

P FEZFRA IR > AL EL
HhEE S (B AT BIHE AL A A
FIRTSE— B3 Woh ok > DA ER 4 A N R
891 H # U U IE 4 26 M A 2k oo 11
et o B -FE - —ENH=ZTH#E  E%
P2 A IRAE By AR Al I & B
A > HIEE R ARC I AAL R R
Bk - Mt m > AL E AR F A S
Rk 1Y P 2 A IR S L i) i
T A% P RS 5 MG BEAR RS -

T A= —H s AREER
[EESX-SX-SU=k /s §=-PEY (I X% §<
SR BE A 1. 40 8T oK o B EE B
EHEEMREMN - RY -~ WH - N R
o BN o I 7 SR Y B R UL A
AR 103.0 8 HG > HAppemagsn
RGBS WA K 2y N 41,7 F 8T ©

B8 5 Tl

LN

AAEEA EEAR B RET - OWEE
BRS¢ G FEEFHERES 5 Gtk g
EIRS 5 B Giv) i S48 A T 3RS - Wi
NIE $E@H&A%@AE%1 335.8 H #JL »
W T AR AR 1,102.8 F # T
HRAI21.1%

COMMERCIAL OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT
SERVICES

On 19 May 2021, the Group entered into an agreement with members of
Zhenro Properties Group, a connected person of the Company, to acquire
in aggregate 99% equity interest in Zhenro Commercial Management at a
total cash consideration of RMB891 million. Since 30 June 2021, Zhenro
Commercial Management has been accounted for as a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and its assets and liabilities has been consolidated
into the Company’s financial statements. During the Reporting Period, the
Group provides commercial operational management services to the tenants
and the customers, which primarily include (i) brand and management output

services; and (ii) Sublease services.

As at 31 December 2021, the number of commercial operation projects under
management of the Group reached 23, and the total GFA under management
was approximately 1.49 million sq.m.. The commercial operation projects
under management were located in Fuzhou, Changsha, Putian, Changzhou
and Taixing. During the Reporting Period, Zhenro Commercial Management
contributed RMB103.0 million to the Group's revenue, of which the revenue
from commercial operational management services was approximately RMB41.7

million.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue is mainly derived from four major businesses: (i) property
management services; (ii) value-added services to non-property owners; (iii)
community value-added services; and (iv) commercial operational management
business. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue amounted to
approximately RMB1,335.8 million, representing an increase of approximately
21.1% compared with RMB1,102.8 million in the same period of 2020.
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The following table sets out the revenue contribution of each business segment

during the period indicated:

BRETZAZT—HIEEE
For the year ended 31 December

e S KA CFCFAE ARG HRE
Percentage Percentage
2021 of revenue 2020 of revenue Growth rate
ARHT % ARWTT % %
RMB'000 % RMB000 % %
EXRLLE Property management services 658,328 49.3 486,794 44.1 35.2
R e E RS Value-added setvices to non-
property owners 371,221 27.8 415,299 37.7 -10.6
A S (B Community value-added
services 264,494 19.8 200,659 18.2 31.8
PSSR Commercial operational
management services 41,745 3.1
Mt Total 1,335,788 100.0 1,102,752 100.0 211

Wy 2 A TR S 7Y i A R Y e R i AR
He®MZ2_F _—F+-A=1+—HILF
BE o WA SRS A E BN B AR W 658.3
AEIC > IE AL BB AN49.3% - A1
WA SR 15 40 A E A R R R R Y R
I T R A A B T BRI A% b E R I I R A
Y B B TA MR 5 =05 % F 2L BB B -
e 2 1 (MBS 12 > T R 1D
i 5 B R A s e s 45 Ml 5 F) 7 oK K M
R FTEL o 2 AL [ 4 (8 AR S WA B 3
B R A o TR ) R RO I B4
B K B B b5 A AC MR B 5 oK B 4R T B
o

A

A A T ) B RO AL S B TR ~
W - A R EERA ~ KBRS~ B
TE MR ~ 5 R - W =B S
T8 15 B A

Property management services are still the largest source of income for
the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue from property
management services reached approximately RMB658.3 million, accounting for
49.3% of the total revenue of the Group. Such revenue growth was attributable
to the rapid growth of GFA under management, which was due to the Group’s
continuous cooperation with Zhenro Properties Group and its commitment to
expanding the third-party customers base. The decrease in value-added services
to non-property owners mainly due to the substantial decrease in the demand
for services such as sales assistance services and additional tailored services. The
increase in revenue from community value-added services was mainly due to the
increase in GFA under management and the increased demand for real estate

brokerage services related to parking spaces.

Cost of sales

The cost of sales of the Group mainly includes staff costs, subcontracting
charges, greening and landscaping costs, utilities expenses, taxes and surcharges,

depreciation and amortisation, office expenses and community activity costs.
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During the Reporting Period, the cost of sales of the Group was approximately
RMB907.7 million, representing an increase of approximately 26.2% as
compared with approximately RMB719.4 million in the same period of 2020.
The increase in the cost of sales was mainly due to the rapid growth of the
Group's business scale. The growth rate of the Group's cost of sales was higher
than the growth rate of revenue, mainly due to the rapid increase in the labor

costs and subcontracting costs for services to customers.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s gross profit increased by
approximately 11.7% from approximately RMB383.4 million for the same
period in 2020 to approximately RMB428.1 million.

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin of the Group decreased by

2.8 percentage points to 32.0% from 34.8% for the same period in 2020.

The gross profit margin of the Group by business line is as follows:

BETH=1—HIEE
For the year ended 31 December

SR CECEE THEEN

Changes in

gross profit

2021 2020 margin

LI EFIF F 278

Gross profit Gross profit percentage

margin margin points

% %

LE 3=sLliiers Property management services 24.3 23.2 1.1

I3 T E RS Value-added services to non-property owners 18.5 32.6 -14.1

A [ {E AR A% Community value-added services 67.0 67.3 -0.3
PSSR Commercial operational management services 52.9

At Total 32.0 34.8 2.8
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Administrative expenses

During the Reporting Period, the administrative expenses of the Group
increased by approximately 3.8% from approximately RMB140.0 million for
the same period in 2020 to approximately RMB145.4 million, mainly due
to the expansion of the scale under management, and the increase was much
lower than the revenue growth of the Group. During the Reporting Period,
administrative expenses accounted for 10.9% of the revenue, representing a
decrease of 1.8 percentage points as compared with 12.7% in the same period
of 2020, mainly due to the one-off nature of the listing expenses of the Group
incurred in the corresponding period in 2020 which were not repeated in 2021,
and the implementation of sound cost control measures for the enhancement of

the Group's operating efficiency.

Income tax expenses

During the Reporting Period, the income tax expenses of the Group decreased
by approximately 9.6% from approximately RMB61.5 million for the same
period in 2020 to approximately RMB55.6 million. The decrease in tax
expenses was mainly due to the decrease in profit before tax, and some of the

Group’s subsidiaries enjoy preferential income tax rate.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent company

During the Reporting Period, the profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to owners of the parent company for the year was approximately
RMB174.6 million, representing an increase of approximately 1.7% compared

with approximately RMB171.6 million for the same period in 2020.

Property and equipment

The property and equipment of the Group mainly included machinery,
electronic equipment, motor vehicles, leasehold improvements and other
equipment. As of 31 December 2021, the property and equipment of the Group
was approximately RMB7.6 million, representing an increase of approximately
7.8% as compared with approximately RMB7.0 million as at 31 December
2020.
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Trade receivables

The Group’s trade receivables mainly derive from revenue from property
management services, value-added services to non-property owners and brand
and management output services. As of 31 December 2021, the Group's trade
receivables amounted to approximately RMB310.8 million, representing an
increase of approximately 14.2% compared with approximately RMB272.1
million as of 31 December 2020. The increase was in line with the revenue

growth as a result of undertaking new projects and the business expansion.

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets

The Group's prepayments, other receivables and other assets primarily consist of
payments made on behalf of the property owners such as payments for the utility
bills and public facility maintenance fund, as well as security deposits with local
authorities and deposits in relation to the public biddings. As of 31 December
2021, the Group's prepayments, other receivables and other assets amounted
to approximately RMB56.4 million, representing an increase of approximately
76.3% compared with approximately RMB32.0 million as of 31 December
2020. The increase was due to the growth of the Group's business scale, which
has led to the increase in deposits, security deposits and reserve funds required

in the daily operations and transactions payments with business units.

Trade payables
As of 31 December 2021, the Group's trade payables amounted to

approximately RMB202.1 million, representing an increase of approximately
21.3% from approximately RMB166.7 million as of 31 December 2020. The
increase was mainly due to the growth of the Group’s business scale and the

increase in subcontracting services to independent third-party service providers.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach towards
its treasury policy. The Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position
to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and
other commitments can meet the funding requirements of the Group in the

foreseeable future.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group’s principal use of cash was working
capital and deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries, which was mainly funded
from cash flow generated from operations and proceeds raised from the initial

public offering of the Company.

The Group’s interest-bearing and other borrowings are all denominated in RMB
and bore interest at fixed rates. As at 31 December 2021, the borrowings of the
Group amounted to RMB118.1 million, compared to RMB27.4 million as at
31 December 2020. From the respective drawdown dates, the Group's interest-
bearing and other borrowings repayable within one year were RMB87.5 million
and repayable over one year were RMB30.6 million as at 31 December 2021,
while repayable within one year were RMB14.0 million and repayable over one
year were RMB13.4 million as at 31 December 2020. Except as disclosed herein
and apart from intra-group liabilities, the Group did not have any outstanding
loan capital, bank overdrafts and liabilities, or other similar indebtedness,

debentures, mortgages, charges or loans as at 31 December 2021.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank borrowings of RMB27,180,000
were secured by the pledge of 70% equity interest in a subsidiary of the

Company, namely Jiangsu Sutie Property Management Co., Ltd. (31 December
2020: Nil).

In addition, as of 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank borrowings of
RMB20,000,000 were guaranteed by Zhenro Group, a company controlled by
the controlling shareholder of the Company.
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FINANCIAL RISKS

Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s exposure to risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the
Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge interest rate risk. The Group's all bank

borrowings are obtained with fixed interest rates.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group primarily operates its business in the PRC. The currency in which
the Group denominates and settles its transactions is mainly RMB. Any
depreciation of RMB would adversely affect the value of any dividends the
Group pays to shareholders outside of the PRC. The Group currently does not
engage in hedging activities designed or intended to manage foreign exchange

rate risk.

Debt To Asset Ratio

The Group’s debt to asset ratio calculated as total interest-bearing bank
borrowings divided by total equity at the end of the respective period was
approximately 0.08 times as of 31 December 2021 (as of 31 December 2020:
approximately 0.02 times). Debt to asset ratio equals interest-bearing bank

borrowings divided by total equity.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no significant contingent liabilities.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES AND JOINT
VENTURES

On 19 May 2021, the Group entered into an agreement with Zhenro Properties
Holdings, a connected person of the Company, to acquire in aggregate 99%
equity interest in Zhenro Commercial Management at a total cash consideration
of RMB891 million. Please refer to the Company’s circular dated 9 June 2021
for details of the agreement and the acquisition. Since 30 June 2021, Zhenro
Commercial Management has been accounted for as a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and its assets and liabilities has been consolidated

into the Company’s financial statements.
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The consideration of RMB891 million was fully paid by the Group in 2021. As
the net profit of Zhenro Commercial Management for 2021 exceeded RMB60
million (i.e. the actual performance of Zhenro Commercial Management had
met the profit guarantee for the year ended 31 December 2021 under the
agreement), no adjustment to the consideration was required pursuant to the

agreement.

Financial impact of the acquisition is summarised in note 29 to the Company’s
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. Details of the acquisition
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 19 May 2021 and circular
dated 9 June 2021.

The acquisition would further improve the Group’s market position in China’s
property management industry and enhance the Group’s comprehensive service

capabilities in the property management industry on the existing basis.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have other material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries, associated companies or joint ventures during the

Reporting Period.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE GROUP

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no significant investment
held by the Group.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no plan for any material investments

or capital assets.

EMPLOYEES

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had approximately 5,034 employees (as of
31 December 2020: approximately 4,635 employees). As of 31 December 2021,
the total staff costs were approximately RMB499.4 million (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB395.3 million).
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In terms of talent training, the Group will further enhance its employee training
program with internal and external resources. The employee training programs
primarily cover key areas in the Group’s business operations, which provide
continuous training to its existing employees at different levels to specialise and

strengthen their skill sets.

The Group adopts remuneration policies similar to its peers in the industry.
The remuneration payable to its staff is fixed by reference to the duties and
the prevailing market rates in the region. Discretionary performance bonus
after assessments is paid to employees to reward their contributions. The
Group is subject to social insurance contribution plans or other pension
schemes prescribed by the local governments and is required to pay on behalf
of its employees, a monthly social insurance funds covering pension fund,
medical insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance and
unemployment insurance, and the housing provident fund, or to contribute

regularly to mandatory provident fund schemes on behalf of its employees.

In determining the remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors
and senior management, the Group will take into account salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors

and performance of the Group.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

The net proceeds raised in connection with the initial public offering of the
Company'’s shares in July 2020 (including the exercise of the over-allotment
options) amounted to approximately HK$1,267.7 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB1,141.7 million) (the “Net Proceeds”).
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As set out in the announcement of the Company dated 19 May 2021, the Board
had resolved to reallocate the net proceeds which were originally planned to be
used on acquisition of and investment in other property management companies
and community products and services as disclosed in the Prospectus, to the
acquisition of Zhenro Commercial Management. The reallocated use of the net
proceeds and the actual usage of the net proceeds up to 31 December 2021 are

set out below:

Bz
TR
FoAZ A
FiigscE  CEAPR WARBA HEHER
FREER HEFE PRI SRR
Unutilised
Net Proceeds

as of

P sk R Proposed use of Net Proceeds Utilised Net 31 December  Expected time of
RERR Net Proceeds Reallocation Proceeds 2021  full utilisation
ANEWIET ARWGHT  ARFOHT
RMB million RMB million RMB million
B8 A S Y Development of the Group's 2283 55.2 1731 RZFZTA
FEEHAR information management system +ZAZ+—HE
Before 31 December 2022
E— AL E Further development of the Group's 171.2 444 1268 W-F-H
[R5 | IRBH “Rong Wisdom” (BFBE +oA=1+—H7
service software Before 31 December 2022
— RS R General business operations and 114.2 114.2 - KA
BEES working capital Not applicable
iR I SR R S Acquisition of Zheno 628.0 628.0 - R
Commercial Management Not applicable
A5t Total 1,141.7 841.8 299.9

I RS A PR A F Zhenro Services Group Limited




B3O

Directors’ Report

il

FEREH

ARSE AT DRGSR RGP B LR
W5 G EF AR 5 Gii) b W38 (E R
W5 M (iv) T 2EHE S RS LR LA
50 S MRS > TR 2 IR iy S A
(BB -

AEEBEE X —F+H=1+—H
1l 4F B 2 5 B SE 5 O3 AT O AR AR R T A 3
i wf d B oA ] — 8

A2 ol

— eI

A AR T A A JBE 2 #5872
SETS B% e 2 b 20 I MO AR 4R 5 26 % 30
R R R B3 R A6 R B R
GrATIAL o A B R T S I o 2 B A A
A T A TR0 1) 2R B 1) 0 A7 s A 4 4 5
31 R 46 HIYE BLE wlm Lo ATl o IR
SR A= IR BUEE S
WAR B BRI W - A G 150 AT Ao
£ N

2 B e A E R &

7 £ [50 1Y Bl 1) 3 R B B AN o TR 3 LA
OH R DR BB AR R 5 i) %
e 52 R 41 A7 VR R BB B 1 4y 3 7 1L AR S
Tt e A A ) S B RS B o AR
AR AT B TR AR S W R 5 (i) SV T
S A A 1A e 2 15 o B2 LA 4 1 A 51
e s S B B A JE S A TR O T
[l AEE N ROE: PR Ly W= RN/ 7 UN
T KR WS 5 (v) B B ) 2E A PR
V14 SERCJRF IR 12 LAY 3 R R R 1 R 5 B
(vi) B UM ASE A B 25 T A b A B 1 JaRL

B o

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group has four business lines, namely, (i) property management services;
(ii) value-added services to non-property owners; (iii) community value-added
services; and (iv) commercial operational management services, forming an
integrated service offering to its customers that cover the entire value chain of

property management.

Analysis of the principal activities of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2021 is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and

Analysis” of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

General

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on the
Group'’s future business development are set out in the Chairman’s Statement,
as well as the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 26 to 30 and
pages 31 to 46, respectively, of this annual report. An analysis of the Group's
performance during the year using financial key performance indicators is set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 31 to 46 of this
annual report. The Group has no significant events after the end of the financial

year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties the Group faces include (i) its future growth
may not materialize as planned; (ii) uncertainty as to securing new or renewing
the existing property management service agreements on favourable terms, or at
all; (iii) uncertainty related to acquisitions which may not be successful and the
Group may face difficulties in integrating acquired operations with its existing
operations; (iv) no control over a majority of revenue generate from connected
persons of the Company; (v) risks related to development in the government
policies and regulations regarding the PRC property management services; and

(vi) risks related to the increasing raw materials price and labor costs.
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The Group is not subject to significant credit risk and liquidity risk. The
financial risks of the Group is mainly foreign exchange rate risk. As substantial
portion of the Group'’s businesses are conducted in the PRC and denominated
in RMB. Foreign currency transaction included mainly receipts of proceeds
from the Listing and payment of professional fees which are dominated in
Hong Kong dollars and US dollars. As at 31 December 2021, major non-RMB
assets are cash and cash equivalents denominated in Hong Kong dollars in the
amount of RMBG6.5 million and cash and cash equivalents denominated in US
dollars in the amount of RMB0.4 million. Fluctuation of the exchange rates of
RMB against foreign currency could affect the Group’s results of operations.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy, and
manage its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the movement of foreign

currency rate.

These financial risks, and the related risk management policies and practices
used by the Group are discussed in note 35 headed “Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies” to the consolidated financial statements of this annual

report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

It is the Group's corporate and social responsibility in promoting a sustainable
and environmental friendly environment, and the Group strives to minimize its
environmental impact and comply with the applicable environmental laws and
regulations. The Group has implemented reasonable measures in the operation
of its businesses to comply with all applicable requirements. Given the nature of
the Group's operations, it is believed that the Group is not subject to material

environmental liability risk or compliance costs.

The measures the Group took to ensure compliance with the applicable
environmental laws and regulations include: (i) formulating and improving
management measures and operational guidelines for energy conservation,
emission reduction and waste management; and (ii) actively adopting

environmentally friendly equipment and designs.

The Group had not received any material fines or penalties associated with
the breach of any environmental laws or regulations during the year ended 31
December 2021.

The 2021 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Group will be

published separately.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group continues to keep itself updated over the requirement of the relevant
laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure compliance. The Group had
complied with all relevant laws and regulations in all material aspects and have
obtained all applicable material licenses, approvals and permits from relevant
regulatory authorities. During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no
material breach of, or non-compliance, with applicable laws and regulations by

the Group.

Relationship with Employees

The Group believes that high-quality employees who value its corporate culture
are essential elements to promote the Group's sustainable growth. The Group
intends to attract and retain skilled and talented employees from reputable
universities of PRC through various initiatives, including its creative trainee

programs, competitive compensation packages and effective incentive system.

For details regarding employees and staff costs and the emolument policy of the
Group, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report — Employees and

Remuneration Policy”.

Relationship with Suppliers

The Group is dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers as long-term
business partners to ensure stability of the Group’s businesses. We reinforce
business partnerships with suppliers by ongoing communication in a proactive

and effective manner.

For further details regarding our major suppliers, please refer to the section

headed “Directors’ Report — Major Customers and Suppliers”.

Relationship with Customers

Customers’ satisfaction with our services and products has a profound effect on
our profitability. Our dedicated sales team is in constant communication with
our customers and potential customers to uncover and create customer needs
and help customers make informed decisions. Identification of customers’ pain
points alongside grasping the market trend are critical for the Group to timely

adjust the Group's operating strategies to fit the market requirement.

For details regarding the Group’s major customers, please refer to the sections

headed “Directors’ Report — Major Customers and Suppliers”.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the state

of the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 108 to 243.

FINAL DIVIDEND

After comprehensive consideration of the Group's distributable profits, financial
position and retained profits for future development in 2021, the Board resolved

not to recommend any final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021.

AGM AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The AGM will be held on Friday, 17 June 2022. A notice convening the
AGM will be published on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website and dispatched to the shareholders of the Company in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules in due course. For the purpose of
determination of eligibility to attend, speak and vote at the AGM, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 14 June 2022 to
Friday, 17 June 2022 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered. In order to attend, speak and vote at
the AGM to be held on Friday, 17 June 2022, all transfer of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on
Monday, 13 June 2022.
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RESERVES

Details of movement in reserves of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity

and note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Changes to the property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 13 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 are set out in

note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021

amounted to approximately nil.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on page 244 of this annual report.
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BE -2 —4F+__H=+—HILFEEF During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company nor any its

LA .

N/ e = o = AET [ = N T subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
ol m] AN AT AT BT RE SR o Company.

%$ DIRECTORS

WEE_E - —F+_H=+—HILFEF The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up
NMEEARERAY > RARFEEWFR to the date of this annual report are:

HHLEY WL

Directors Name

MgEf S

Mr. Lin Xiaotong

R e
M:r. Kang Hong

et
Mr. Huang Liang

EAIESEE
Mr. Huang Xianzhi

[FEX
Mr. Chan Wai Kin

Wit
Mr. Ma Haiyue

B 1 S
M:r. Au Yeung Po Fung

SRRt
Mr. Zhang Wei

Position

TBRHGRTE S (R F R+ AN A EZE AT ESE LR
TR TR AERERBTERE)

Chief executive officer and executive Director (appointed as executive Director
on 6 November 2020 and chief executive officer on 5 February 2021)

WTES (R_F AR HER(T)

Executive Director (appointed on 5 February 2021)

TBRHGRATE S (R F = F AL HEHE)

Chief executive officer and executive Director (resigned on 5 February 2021)

R LR RTES

Chairman of the Board and non-executive Director

FHITES

Non-executive Director

B FRATES

Independent non-executive Director

B FRATES

Independent non-executive Director

B FRATES

Independent non-executive Director
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In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors will retire by rotation at every annual general meeting (provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years) and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Mr. Huang Xianzhi,
Mr. Au Yeung Po Fung and Mr. Zhang Wei will retire from the Board by

rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has an unexpired service
contract which is not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation, other than under normal

statutory obligations.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out in “Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management”

in this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors has waived or

agreed to waive any emoluments.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the related party transactions as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the

end of the year ended 31 December 2021 or at any time during the year.

43R Annual Report 2021




R RS

Directors’ Report

H4 B d m AT BN BUR A 2 vl g
JUR R 25 T 0 OB ~ R B B By B
TRl vl 2 B IR

HoFR T =T —H o AAHE
ol R B AT BON B AR A A A B
] GE 28 a8 25 S B )55 XV T ) 1Y
PRy ~ AR B P 03 % RO HE R o B A AR R 2
Lo BB R0 565 35 2 Aok M AE A 2 R ZE AT LY
R T RC Bk > BURGRAEME S I ZH & A
2 A B A T W RE AR BOR AT

32 2B R B 3Tl N 8 e Ay B il
I I V9 B i B 2% AT

WoF £+ _A=+—H > FII AL
(A A R AT BN B BRAM) A e
I BRI 17 PP A AR R R T T M 19 5
336 A B2 A% 2> W ZEAF B I 5w M T R R
P 28 SR -

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to

the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the following persons (other than the Directors or the
chief executive of the Company) have interests or short positions in the Shares
or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under section 336 of the SFO:

RIS RS FHRGEHO RS ES
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Shares held" interest"”
e e XA R AR 656,348,500 (L) 63.26%
Mr. ZR Ou®? Interest in a controlled corporation
MR & 10 FC B R £ 656,348,500 (L) 63.26%
Ms. Lin Shuying® Interest of spouse
I R ST A Y WA 57,712,500 (L) 5.56%
Mr. GQ Ou®” Interest in a controlled corporation
FRLto FC{EHE £ 57,712,500 (L) 5.56%
Ms. Li Xi® Interest of spouse
fRIE A A 513,848,500 (L) 49.53%
WeiZheng Beneficial owner
e Haa A 71,250,000 (L) 6.87%
WeiYao Beneficial owner
(L5 Hafih A 71,250,000 (L) 6.87%
WeiTian Beneficial owner
& A A 57,712,500 (L) 5.56%
WeiQiang Beneficial owner
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Notes:

1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares. The calculation is based on
the total number of 1,037,500,000 shares in issue as at 31 December 2021.

) Each of WeiZheng, WeiYao and WeiTian is wholly-owned by Mr. ZR Ou. By virtue of Part
XV of the SFO, Mr. ZR Ou is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which WeiZheng,

WeiYao and WeiTian are interested in.

3) Ms. Lin Shuying is the spouse of Mr. ZR Ou. By virtue of Part XV of the SFO, Ms. Lin

Shuying is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. ZR Ou is interested in.

(4) WeiQiang is wholly-owned by Mr. GQ Ou. By virtue of Part XV of the SFO, Mr. GQ Ou

is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which WeiQiang is interested in.

) Ms. Li Xi is the spouse of Mr. GQ Ou. By virtue of Part XV of the SFO, Ms. Li Xi is

deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. GQ Ou is interested in.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors or chief executive
are not aware of any other person, not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company, who has an interest or short position in the Shares or the underlying
Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors was a director or employee of
a company which had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue derived from its top five
customers accounted for 30.3% of the Group's total revenue (31 December
2020: 40.2%) and the revenue amount from the Group's single largest customer,
Zhenro Properties Group, accounted for 20.8% of the Group’s total revenue (31
December 2020: 22.5%).

Other than Zhenro Group and Zhenro Properties Group, or their joint ventures
or associates, the Group's customers during the year ended 31 December 2021

were all independent third parties.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in any of the Group's five

largest customers.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the purchases from its top five suppliers
accounted for 19.3% of the Group’s total purchase cost (31 December 2020:
27.5%) and the purchases amount from the Group’s single largest supplier,
Beiyi Building Materials (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., accounted for 13.6% of the
Group's total purchases (31 December 2020: 4.9%).

For the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Group’s major suppliers
was also the Group’s customer and all of the Group’s major suppliers were

independent third parties.

None of the Directors, supervisors, their close associates or any Shareholders
who, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company's

issued share capital, had any interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and policies adopted by
the Group and discussed the Group's risk management, internal controls and
financial reporting matters with the management. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and considered that such statements have been
prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and requirements

with sufficient disclosure.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND TAX RELIEF

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association,
although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in the

Cayman Islands.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the

Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total of 5,034 full-time
employees (31 December 2020: approximately 4,635). As at 31 December
2021, the total staff costs were approximately RMB499.4 million (31 December
2020: approximately RMB395.3 million).

In terms of talent training, the Group will further enhance its employee training
program with internal and external resources. The employee training programs
primarily cover key areas in the Group’s business operations, which provide
continuous training to its existing employees at different levels to specialise and

strengthen their skill sets.
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The Remuneration Committee is mandated to formulate the
Group’s remuneration policy for the Board’s approval, and to make
recommendations to the Board on the Group’s annual salary adjustment,

the annual performance bonus and share award.

The objective of remunerating Directors is to ensure that there is an
appropriate level of remuneration to attract and retain experienced
people of high calibre to oversee the Group’s business and development.
Their remuneration is reviewed annually with reference to companies of
comparable business or scale, and any changes are subject to Shareholders’

approval.

Quality and committed staff are valuable assets contributing to the
Group’s success. In terms of talent training, the Group will further
enhance its employee training program with internal and external
resources. The employee training programs primarily cover key areas in
the Group’s business operations, which provide continuous training to its
existing employees at different levels to specialise and strengthen their

skill sets.

The remuneration payable to the Group’s employees is fixed by reference
to the duties and the prevailing market rates in the region. Discretionary
performance bonus after assessments is paid to employees to reward their

contributions.

In determining the remuneration and compensation packages of the
Directors and senior management, the Group will take into account
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and

responsibilities of the Directors and performance of the Group.
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U In general, the Group determines employee salaries based on each
employee’s qualification, position and seniority. As required by relevant
regulations, the Group is subject to social insurance contribution plans
or other pension schemes prescribed by the local governments and is
required to pay on behalf of its employees, a monthly social insurance
funds covering pension fund, medical insurance, work-related injury
insurance, maternity insurance and unemployment insurance, and
the housing provident fund, or to contribute regularly to mandatory

provident fund schemes on behalf of its employees.

The Company enters into labor contracts with all of its employees. The
Company offers its employees competitive remuneration packages that include
basic salaries, discretionary bonuses, performance-based payments and year-end
bonuses. To incentivize its employees and promote the long-term growth of the
Company, the Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the

sections headed “Director’s report — Share Option Scheme”.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not experience any

significant labour disputes or any difficulty in recruiting employees.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group does not have any employee who is required to participate in the

Mandatory Provident Fund in Hong Kong.

The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC government. The employees
of the PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to this retirement benefits scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme. The Company is not allowed
to use the contributions to the state-managed retirement benefits scheme which

have been forfeited to reduce the current level of contributions.

Particulars of the employee retirement benefits of the Group are set out in note

6 to the consolidated financial statements.

43R Annual Report 2021




R RS

Directors’ Report

Yk JBe it

AR CFREARNATIE AL R
B SRAT Wk A1 4t o SIE R A S RO RE T o %
s B 26 8 b H R AR AL o B RRCHE T
BB AN A RAUECHE 2 B1E (8
FHT0) AL R A - I E
B TARRIEA L R B (B R e By A
AR R -

AR5 M s Rt 0 A K - e A A
JRCHER 25 452 Hh S A B AR Y B AR % A %
H i+ 4 1 ] g OR 15 8 BT H OB 5t
AR BB R 1 T R OO
S AR B AR R R A A o A 4 1 2 o A
EEER ([28F ) KR - fE—
ToAAEF A= EROHE R #
FIERFE L By NETTEA -

TR ERIER T o EBEE GG
AT R b TR B ST AT R -
B Sk AR O B R R AR
#) > BT AT 2 BLAE 52 1 W AOHE - 4%
AR RBEE T E W (DU )
A — I A R FE TR A S 4 R
BE © Gyt oA 45 9 ) 4 B ZE A AR 4 )
B2 AR~ 2 B BT o] oAt b B 2E A (SRR
JE 75 0 IR TR R A R ) 1 ek
H 1A (RDAR B8 b7 B o 0 2 W <2 i 11
HIA) 5 R A 2 ) T8 AR i 3 4 ok
A~ 7R ST AT H At P O S 2 5 22 R
TR R E ) FEEA I REBIR
HEBEBTPIEEREE - BF - FES0R
2B (BB DU ) & H IR o

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 15 June 2020, the Share Option Scheme was conditionally approved and
adopted by the then shareholders of the Company and it becomes effective
from the Listing Date. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
the Company with a means to motivate the Participants (as defined below) and
retain employees of the Group, and to encourage employees to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and promote the long-term growth of the

Company.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board shall have the right
to grant options to any director or employee of the Group (the “Participant”)
who, in the sole opinion of the Board, have contributed or will contribute to the
Group at any time after the date on which the option is deemed to have been
granted and accepted and for a period of 10 years from that date (not exceeding
10 years from the Listing Date). As of 31 December 2021, the remaining life of

the Share Option Scheme is approximately 8 years and 5 months.

No offer shall be made and no option shall be granted to any Participant in
circumstances prohibited by the Listing Rules at a time when the Participant
would or might be prohibited from dealing in the Shares by the Listing Rules
or by any applicable rules, regulations or law. In particular, no options may be
granted during the period commencing one month immediately preceding the
earlier of (i) the date of the meeting of the Board of Directors (i.e. the date of
first notification to the Stock Exchange in accordance with the Listing Rules)
approving the Group's results for any annual, half-year, quarterly or other
interim period (whether in compliance with the Listing Rules or not); and
(ii) the deadline for the Company to publish its results announcement for any
annual, half-year, quarterly or any other interim period (whether in accordance
with the Listing Rules or not) until the date of actual publication of the relevant
announcements for annual, half-year, quarterly or interim results, as the case

may be.
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The maximum number of shares involved in the share options that may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company shall not exceed 100,000,000 shares in total, which is equivalent
to 10% of the total number of shares issued after the completion of the Global
Offering and approximately 9.64% of the total number of Shares issued as at the
date of this annual report (“Scheme Mandate Limit”). During any 12-month
period up to the grant date, the total number of Shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (including both
exercised and outstanding options) to each eligible Participant shall not exceed
1% of the issued shares on the grant date, unless otherwise separately approved
by Shareholders in general meeting with such Participant and his associates

abstaining from voting.

Share options can be exercised at any time during the period after the date on
which the options are deemed to have been granted and accepted in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and before the expiration of ten
years from that date. The exercise period of the share options is determined by
the Board at its sole discretion, but it shall not exceed 10 years from the Listing
Date. No share options may be granted after 10 years from the date of the Share
Option Scheme was approved. Subject to earlier terminations by the Company
in general meetings or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and

effective for a period of 10 years commencing on the adoption date.

Subject to such terms and conditions as the Board may determine, there is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised
and no performance target needs to be achieved by the grantee before the

options can be exercised.

The exercise price for each share involved in any particular share option granted
under the Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board at its sole

discretion, provided that the price must be at least the highest of the following:

. the official closing price of the shares as reported in the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant of the share options (which
must be the day when the Stock Exchange opens for securities trading

business);
U the average of the official closing prices of the shares quoted in the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the five business days

immediately before the date of grant of the share options; and

o par value of a share.
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Participants are required to pay HK$1.00 as consideration for the acceptance of

an option granted to them.

Further details of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out in

the Prospectus.

Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to the date of this annual
report, no option had been granted or agreed to be granted by the Company

pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report and based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained the minimum public float of 25% as required under the Listing
Rules.

AUDITOR

There has been no change in auditors since the Listing Date. The financial
statements have been audited by Ernst & Young who shall retire at the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A

resolution for the re-appointment of auditor will be proposed at the AGM.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the reserves of the Company available for distribution

to Shareholders amounted to approximately RMB1,047.1 million.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS

As of 31 December 2021, the Group has total outstanding interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings of RMB118.1 million, compared with RMB27.4 million
as of 31 December 2020. The Group'’s borrowings are mainly denominated in

Renminbi.

Details of the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings are set out in note 25

to the consolidated financial statements.
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RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY'’S SECURITIES
AND EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2021 was the Company, or any of its holding companies or
subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe for
securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in the
SFO or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate, nor did the Company enter into any

equity-linked agreement.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors and directors of the
Company's subsidiaries, or their respective associates had interests in businesses,
which compete or are likely to compete either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as required to be disclosed

pursuant to the Listing Rules.

CHANGES IN DIRECTOR’S AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF
THE LISTING RULES

Mr. Lin Xiaotong has been appointed as an executive Director with effect from
6 November 2020. He has been further appointed as chief executive officer,
member of the remuneration committee and an authorised representative of the

Company with effect from 5 February 2021.

Mr. Huang Liang resigned his position as an executive Director, chief executive
officer, member of the remuneration committee and an authorised representative
of the Company with effect from 5 February 2021 in order to pursue his other

business and work commitment.
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Mr. Kang Hong has been appointed as an executive Director with effect from 5
February 2021.

Mr. Xi Deshuai (i f53Fif1) resigned as the general manager of Fujian area of the

Group since 18 September 2021, due to his personal career plans.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of the Directors and Senior
Management”, there is no other change in Directors’ biographical details which
is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules
during reporting period of the Company.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In order to restrict competition activities with the Company, the Controlling
Shareholders, namely Mr. ZR Ou, WeiZheng, WeiYao and WeiTian, entered
into the Deed of Non-competition in favor of the Company on 15 June 2020.
Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, the Controlling Shareholders have
undertaken, among others, not to compete with the business of the Group,
and details of the Deed of Non-competition are set out in the sub-section
headed “Deed of Non-competition” in the section headed “Relationship with

Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has made a written confirmation to the
Board in respect of their compliance with the undertakings in the Deed of

Non-competition (the “Undertakings”) during the Reporting Period.
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Upon receiving the confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders, the
independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the same as part of the
annual review process. In determining whether the Controlling Shareholder
had fully complied with the Undertakings in the Reporting Period for the
annual assessment, the independent non-executive Directors noted that: (a)
the Controlling Shareholders declared that they had fully complied with
the Undertakings in the Reporting Period; (b) no new competing business
was reported by the Controlling Shareholders during the Reporting Period;
and (c) there was no particular situation rendering the full compliance of
the Undertakings being questionable. In view of the above, the independent
non-executive Directors confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, all of the
Undertakings were complied with by the Controlling Shareholders in the
Reporting Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to applicable laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective

offices, pursuant to the Articles of Association.

Such permitted indemnity provision has been in force for the year ended 31
December 2021. The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions that may be brought against the

Directors.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021, which are subject to the reporting

and annual review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

1. Pre-Delivery Property Management Services

(i)  Zhenro Properties Pre-Delivery Property Management

Services

On 31 December 2019, the Company entered into a pre-delivery
property management services framework agreement (the “Zhenro
Properties Pre-Delivery Property Management Services
Framework Agreement”) with Zhenro Properties, pursuant
to which, the Group agreed to provide pre-delivery property
management setvices for its residential property projects before the
delivery of such properties to property owners, including but not
limited to security, cleaning, landscaping, repair and maintenance
of common area and shared facilities (the “Zhenro Properties
Pre-Delivery Property Management Services”), for a term of
three years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022.
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(ii)

It was estimated that the maximum amount of service fees payable
by Zhenro Properties Group to the Group in relation to the Zhenro
Properties Pre-Delivery Property Management Services for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and the year ending 31 December
2022 would not exceed RMB22.0 million and RMB24.0 million,
respectively. The service fees paid/payable by the Group under the
Zhenro Properties Pre-Delivery Property Management Services for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was RMBS8.6 million.

Mr. ZR Ou Pre-Delivery Property Management Services

On 18 June 2020, the Company entered into a pre-delivery
property management services framework agreement with Mr.
ZR Ou (the “Mr. ZR Ou Pre-Delivery Property Management
Services Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which, the
Group agreed to provide to Mr. ZR Ou’s associates (excluding
Zhenro Properties Group but including its associates) (the
“Associates”) pre-delivery property management services for their
residential property projects before the delivery of such properties
to property owners including but not limited to security, cleaning,
landscaping, repair and maintenance of common area and shared
facilities (the “Mr. ZR Ou Pre-Delivery Property Management
Services”), for a term commencing on the Listing Date and ending
on 31 December 2022.

43R Annual Report 2021




R RS

Directors’ Report

RS E _E =
T—HILFEREE T
HE+T A=+ HIREE S B
E PN NG SN EY/E
IR IR 5 I A A 4R T Y A v IR
bRk R P N N
Mo 8 EH MK NRE3 1 HE
gL e ME E L+ H=
T H IR > B8 O Rk R
5% 56 15 3 A I A B IR S

AR EE R IG5 AR
Mo S HE T -
2. EHRE
() IEZeH S PR

W oE-NUET A=
H > AN ) BHLIE 48 2 5T 5
e B HE SR 1 k(T IE 4% M
B RBAERG R D) > P
AN S 9] [ 7% 1) O 4% 4 1 4R
P B AR B RS > B EA
BRI F 1 4% 7 4R [ 1 A =9
FETEH K HE R AL B
g T R H 54 DL % I 4% b
i 45 T 465 1 7 2 2R R AL
B RBEL - - A3k
P HERE - AR IR DA B H At A
B 3 (L PR 5 ([ 1 4% b 76 45 B R
» o\ EF EE-HH
BE R T A=
Ak A =4 -

It was estimated that the maximum amount of service fees payable
by the Associates to the Group in relation to the Mr. ZR Ou
Pre-Delivery Property Management Services for the year ended 31
December 2021 and the year ending 31 December 2022 would
not exceed RMB2.8 million and RMB3.1 million, respectively.
The amount of service fees payable by the Associates to the Group
under the Mr. ZR Ou Pre-Delivery Property Management Services
for the year ended 31 December 2021 was RMB2.8 million.

2. Management Services

@

Zhenro Properties Management Services

On 31 December 2019, the Company entered into a management
services framework agreement with Zhenro Properties (the “Zhenro
Properties Management Services Framework Agreement”),
pursuant to which, the Group agreed to provide to Zhenro
Properties Group management and related services including
but not limited to cleaning, landscaping, concierge, maintenance
of public order, security services, and other related value-added
services to the residential property projects of Zhenro Properties
Group and their display units, sales offices and community
clubhouses as well as commercial properties operated by Zhenro
Properties Group (the “Zhenro Properties Management
Services”), for a term of three years from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2022.

m IERMR¥ B A PR A F Zhenro Services Group Limited




RS

Directors’ Report

(ii)

HEHEEE -+ H=
T—HIEFEREE R
FrZH=t—HIEE > IE
A5 b 7 A [l 15 4% b 4 R AR
55 AT A 42 1 1Y o v RS 2 4
FORAE B AR ¥280.0H
Hon kR ANR¥E310.0 8T -
wE_F_—FT_H=1—
H R4F B > TF 26 b 2 4 18k IE
5 i 7 7 1R IR AT A 4 11 11
MR 5 2 A B s N R 259.0 8
T o

e iRcsil

i e SC VA & VAN S IR S
5w BRI SR 2 S A T S B R
5 HE 22 Th ke (T Ko 208 516 2 A L
MRBEAESR Woh sk 1) - PR UL > ASE
V) W 2 N4 304 3 B A
B R A5 > 35 RS RS 2 T 28
AW ETY)SEIHE KRR
7~ S 0 I o A [ R 4
DA B A 55 8 BAG B 7 SE
(IR WERNE) LA E R
TEIE F A 10 H A ) 26 52 10
B BBt mE - oK
J A~ GRS DA R L A AR
B 4 (AR s ([ Mk o 5 S A A Bl
M )) > WIRRZA A L B R
FEF T A=+ H
1k .

(ii)

It was estimated that the maximum amount of service fees payable
by Zhenro Properties Group to the Group in relation to the Zhenro
Properties Management Services for the year ended 31 December
2021 and the year ending 31 December 2022 would not exceed
RMB280.0 million and RMB310.0 million, respectively. The
amount of service fees payable by Zhenro Properties Group to the
Group under the Zhenro Properties Management Services for the
year ended 31 December 2021 was RMB259.0 million.

Mr. ZR Ou Management Services

On 18 June 2020, the Company entered into a management
services framework agreement with Mr. ZR Ou (the “Mr. ZR Ou
Management Services Framework Agreement”), pursuant to
which, the Group agreed to provide to the Associates management
and related services including but not limited to cleaning,
landscaping, concierge, maintenance of public order, security
services, and other related value-added services to the residential
property projects of the Associates and their display units, sales
offices and community clubhouses as well as commercial properties
(including office) operated or occupied by them and other
properties held by them for potential projects (the “Mr. ZR Ou
Management Services”), for a term commencing on the Listing
Date and ending on 31 December 2022.
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It was estimated that the maximum amount of service fees payable
by the Associates to the Group in relation to the Mr. ZR Ou
Management Services for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
the year ending 31 December 2022 would not exceed RMB160.0
million and RMB176.0 million, respectively. The amount of
service fees payable by the Associates to the Group under the Mr.
ZR Ou Management Services for the year ended 31 December
2021 was RMB94.5 million.

Consultancy Services

On 19 May 2021, Zhenro Commercial Management entered into a
consultancy agreement with Zhenro Properties (the “Consultancy
Agreement”) pursuant to which Zhenro Commercial Management has
agreed to provide commercial property operational and consultancy
services (the “Consultancy Services”) to Zhenro Properties Group,
including but not limited to: (i) pre-acquisition services in respect of
land for commercial properties, office buildings, apartments and hotels
(including but not limited to commercial land researches, commercial
related consultancy and studies); (ii) early-stage services for commercial
property projects having been obtained (including but not limited to
project positioning, business planning, store location, architectural
design, optimisation of mechanical and electrical engineering technology,
planning for tenant sourcing and opening, commercial lease planning,
management fee estimation and preparation of lease decision documents);
(iii) opening preparation services for commercial property projects having
been obtained (including but not limited to tenant sourcing, marketing
and promotion, pre-opening, renovation construction); (iv) management
services for property projects that have commenced operations; and (v)
specialised consultancy services. The Consultancy Agreement commenced
from 28 June 2021 and ends on 31 December 2022.
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Zhenro Commercial Management has become the Company’s indirect-
owned subsidiary upon the Group completed the acquisition of 99%

equity interest in Zhenro Commercial Management on 29 June 2021.

The proposed annual caps of the Consultancy Services for the year ended
31 December 2021 and the year ending 31 December 2022 are RMB80
million and RMB90 million, respectively. The amount of the Consultancy
Service fees received by the Group under the Consultancy Agreement for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was RMB10.8 million.

Lease Agreements

As a result of the Group's acquisition of Zhenro Commercial Management
in June 2021, the transactions contemplated under the Xi'an Lease
Agreement (as defined below) have become continuing connected

transactions for the Group.

On 10 May 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Zhenro Commercial
Management (“Zhenro Commercial Management (Xi'an)”) entered into
a lease agreement with a wholly-owned subsidiary of Zhenro Properties
(“Xi’an Jingheng Real Estate”) (the “Xi’an Lease Agreement”)
pursuant to which Xi’an Jingheng Real Estate would lease Xi'an Rainbow
Valley (P§&#M
term commencing from 10 May 2021 and ending on 31 December 2023.

) to Zhenro Commercial Management (Xi'an) for a

The proposed annual caps under the Xi'an Lease Agreement for each of
the year ended 31 December 2021 and the two years ending 31 December
2023 is RMB10 million for each year. The rental fee paid/payable by the
Group under the Xi'an Lease Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2021 was RMBO0.1 million.
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Zhenro Properties is indirectly owned by Mr. ZR Ou, one of the Controlling
Shareholders and is therefore an associate of Mr. ZR Ou. Mr. ZR Ou and his
associates are thus connected persons of the Company upon Listing. As at 31
December 2021, Mr. ZR Ou held approximately 54.71% issued shares of

Zhenro Properties.

Accordingly, the transactions under the Zhenro Properties Pre-Delivery
Property Management Services Framework Agreement, the Mr. ZR Ou Pre-
Delivery Property Management Services Framework Agreement, the Zhenro
Properties Management Services Framework Agreement, the Mr. ZR Ou
Management Setvices Framework Agreement, the Consultancy Agreement and
the Xi'an Lease Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for the

Company.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, all independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing connected
transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii)
according to the relevant agreements governing the transactions on terms that

are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the auditor of the
Company, has provided a letter to the Board, confirming that nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that the continuing connected
transactions mentioned above (i) have not been approved by the Board; (ii)
were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group; (iii) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and (iv) have exceeded the

respective annual cap.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 17 May 2021, the Group entered into an acquisition agreement (the
“Acquisition Agreement”) with a wholly-owned subsidiary of Zhenro
Properties (“Zhenro Properties Holdings”) pursuant to which the Group has
agreed to acquire an aggregate of 99% in Zhenro Commercial Management
from Zhenro Properties Holdings at an aggregate cash consideration of RMB891

million (the “Consideration”).

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, there would be a consideration
adjustment to the Consideration if the net profit of Zhenro Commercial
Management for the year ended 31 December 2021 is less than RMBG0
million. As the net profit of Zhenro Commercial Management for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was approximately RMB112.9 million, there was no

adjustment made to the Consideration.

Through this acquisition, the Group would further expand its business to
commercial management sector which will strengthen the market position of

the Group.

As Zhenro Properties Holdings was indirectly owned by Mr. ZR Ou, one of
the Controlling Shareholders and is therefore an associate of Mr. ZR Ou. Mr.
ZR Ou and his associates are thus connected persons of the Company. As at the
date of the Acquisition Agreement, Mr. ZR Ou was interested in approximately

54.60% issued shares of Zhenro Properties.

Save as disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had
not entered into any other connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions which are required to be disclosed in this annual report pursuant to

the Listing Rules.

43R Annual Report 2021




R RS

Directors’ Report

BB 75 38 5
BE-_Z-—F+-A=1+—HIFEE
7 55 8 (1) B W 07 28 B W A O AR A S R
KMEE31 -

R GE A M R R M ks 2 BRI 22 5
4G AR D5 Y I B 2 B 32 2 TR
P8 LR RS 0 AT AR AR AR A F R
MEBE 2L 5 2 Wy BN T 28 5 o BRIRA A
A9 S AT BON B 22 30 B O 58
Sy A b TR RIS U A B BT B E 1 R
EHEAC S o R ARYE LTRSS 41y
AT BTG AR R~ A R T
R HERLE o B A AT EEE AR
(2 F M fem AT BON B BR A ) S i 9 B i
J5 38 Gy W A I A b T BRI SR A+ DY A i
E B B 22 5 s AR S B AT 5 o BRA AR
[R5 | e [ BRHEAE 5 | — B i 4 5%
FO > EHRL > AW EREEM 1T
T A A BRI 7 28 2 W AS T B R R
AT R [ BEAS S | o [ R B 52
Gy | (BUVIE DL 8 ) B2 28 A2 Wl Bl sl L
REEE A+ A= —HILEE
CLASSF T IS 1 DU A T I R L o

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2021 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

The related party transactions set out in note 31 to consolidated financial
statements include related party transactions disclosed under accounting
standards and some of related party transactions which also constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The related party transactions in respect of the remuneration of
Directors and chief executives of the Company constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, these
transactions are exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders” approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The related party transactions in respect of the remuneration of key management
personnel (other than directors and chief executives) of the Company did not
fall under the definition of connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed
under the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” and “Connected
Transaction” in this annual report, the Directors believe, all other related party
transactions set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements do not
fall within the definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing connected
transactions” under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules (as the case may be). The
Company confirmed that it was in compliance with the disclosure requirements
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Other than disclosed in the sections headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, “Connected Transaction”, “Related Party Transactions” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” and note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements contained in this annual report, no contract of significance was
entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling
Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December
2021 or subsisted at the end of the year and no contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a Controlling
Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries was entered into during the year ended 31

December 2021 or subsisted at the end of the year.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this annual report form

part of this annual report.

By order of the Board
HUANG Xianzhi
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 24 March 2022
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The Group is committed to maintaining and strengthening high standards of
corporate governance by focusing on principles of integrity, accountability,
transparency, independence, responsibility and fairness, in order to safeguard
and protect the interests of the Shareholders and to enhance corporate value
and accountability system. The Company has adopted the principles and code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as the basis of the Company’s
corporate governance practices, and the Corporate Governance Code has been

applicable to the Company with effect from the Listing Date.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all applicable
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code. Unless otherwise
stated, reference made in this corporate governance report in relation to the
Corporate Governance Code is referred to the provisions contained in the
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules in force during the year ended 31 December
2021 and as at 31 December 2021. The Board will continue to review and
monitor the practices of the Company for the purpose of complying with the
Corporate Governance Code and maintaining a high standard of corporate

governance practices of the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board takes on the responsibility to oversee all major matters of the
Company and is charged with promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. The Board has general powers for the
management and conduct of the Company’s business. The day-to-day operations
and management are delegated by the Board to the management of the
Company, who will implement the strategy and direction as determined by the
Board.

The Board will review the structure and composition of the Board from time to
time in light of prevailing circumstances, in order to maintain a high standard

of corporate governance practices of the Company.

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Company. The Company has also adopted a board diversity
policy which sets out the objective and approach to achieve diversity of the
Board.

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, the
Board comprises two executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three

independent non-executive Directors.
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The composition of the Board during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up

to the date of this annual report is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Xiaotong (Chief Executive Officer) (appointed as executive Director on
6 November 2020 and chief executive officer on 5 February 2021)

Mr. Kang Hong (appointed on 5 February 2021)
Mr. Huang Liang (resigned as executive Director and chief executive officer on
5 February 2021)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Huang Xianzhi (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Wai Kin

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Ma Haiyue
Mr. Au Yeung Po Fung
Mr. Zhang Wei

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 14 to 25 of this annual

report.

No Board member has other relationship with the other Board members and the

chief executive officer of the Company.

Code provision A.2.1 (which has been renumbered as code provision C.2.1
since 1 January 2022) of the Corporate Governance Code states that the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The chairman, Mr. Huang Xianzhi,
focuses on the overall management of the investment strategies and business
development of the Group. The chief executive officer, Mr. Huang Liang (for
the period from 6 December 2019 to 5 February 2021) and Mr. Lin Xiaotong (for
the period since 5 February 2021), are responsible for day-to-day business and
management of the Group. Such division of responsibilities helps to reinforce

their independence and to ensure a balance of power and authority.
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Each of the executive Directors, namely Mr. Lin Xiaotong and Mr. Kang Hong,
has entered into a service contract with the Company on 6 November 2020
and 5 February 2021, respectively, and each of the non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors has entered into their respective letters of
appointment. The principal particulars of these service contracts and the letters
of appointment are (a) for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from
6 November 2020 (for the executive Director Mr. Lin Xiaotong), 5 February
2021 (for the executive Director Mr. Kang Hong), 6 December 2019 (for the
non-executive Directors) or 10 June 2020 (for the independent non-executive
Directors), and (b) are subject to termination in accordance with their respective
terms. The service contracts may be renewed in accordance with the Articles of

Association and the applicable rules.

The aggregate remuneration (including fees, salaries, contributions to pension
schemes, share-based compensation expenses, discretionary bonuses, housing and
other allowances and other benefits in kind) payable to the Directors for the year

ended 31 December 2021 was approximately RMB7.8 million.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior management is determined with
reference to salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and performance of the Group. Details of the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management for 2021 are set out in
notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to
code provision B.1.5 (which has been renumbered as code provision E.1.5 since
1 January 2022) of the Corporate Governance Code, the annual remuneration
of members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December

2021 is set out below:

TR A T A\
Number of

senior management

Remuneration to the senior management by band

500,001 ¥ IC % 1,000,000 45 7C HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 1
1,500,001%%@2,000,000%7—5 HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1
st Total 2

BE_F#_-#+-A=+-HIL5EEF
A £ ] SNf7 48 i) T 2 T B s BN
FHTATEN 4 > VB2 I A AR 45 [ B A A 42
V0 15 1) 2 B 10 2y T A 1

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no remuneration was paid by the
Group to the Directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to

join or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of office.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has three independent
non-executive Directors, which meets the requirement of the Listing Rules
that the number of independent non-executive directors must represent at least

one-third of the Board and should not be less than three.

The Company has received a written confirmation of independence from each of
the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing

Rules, and considers them to be independent.

The Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to ensure that
the Board procedures are followed. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
Mr. Wang Yi was one of the joint company secretaries. Mr. Lei Kin Keong,
(an vice president of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited
(a company secretarial service provider) was the other joint company secretary
until his resignation on 24 December 2021. The Company has engaged Ms. Lin
Sio Ngo, a manager of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited
(a company secretarial service provider), as another joint company secretary since
24 December 2021 to assist Mr. Wang in discharging his duties as company
secretary of the Company. Ms. Lin’s primary contact person at the Company was
Mr. Wang Yi.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Wang, Mr. Lei and
Ms. Lin have undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has arranged
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) training in order to develop and
refresh the knowledge and skills of all Directors as part of their continuous

professional development.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, all the Directors have attended the
aforementioned ESG governance training and read the relevant materials to keep

themselves abreast of regulatory developments and changes.

Code provision A.1.1 (which has been renumbered as code provision C.5.1 since
1 January 2022) of the Corporate Governance Code requires that board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals
with active participation of the majority of the Directors, either in person or

through electronic means of communications.

The Board held four meetings during the year ended 31 December 2021 for
reviewing and approving the audited annual results of the Company together
with its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2020; the connected
transaction of Zhenro Properties and the Company details of which are set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 20 May 2021 and circular dated 9 June
2021; the interim results of the Company together with its subsidiaries for
the six months ended 30 June 2021; the change of the members of the Board.
The Directors expects to convene at least four regular Board meetings in each
financial year at approximately quarterly intervals in accordance with code
provision A.1.1 (which has been renumbered as code provision C.5.1 since 1

January 2022) of the Corporate Governance Code.

Code provision E.1 (which has been renumbered as code provision F.2.2 since
1 January 2022) of the Corporate Governance Code requires that board should
obtain communication with the shareholders, especially through participation of

the annual general meeting.
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Annual general meeting was held on 18 June 2021, all the Board members has
attended the meeting. An extraordinary general meeting was held on 28 June

2021, all the Board members attended the meeting.

The table below sets out the details of Board meetings attendance of each

Director during the year ended 31 December 2021.

R
HERGERIY
Attended/Eligible to

attend Board meeting

Executive Directors

M:r. Lin Xiaotong (appointed as executive Director 4/4
on 6 November 2020 and the chief executive
officer on 5 February 2021)

Mr. Kang Hong (appointed as executive Director 4/4
on 5 February 2021)
Mr. Huang Liang (appointed as executive director 1/1

and the chief executive officer on 17 December
2018 and resigned on 5 February 2021)!

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Huang Xianzhi (Chairman) 4/4
Mtr. Chan Wai Kin 4/4

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Ma Haiyue 4/4

Mr. Au Yeung Po Fung 414

Mr. Zhang Wei 4/4
Note:

(1) Mr. Huang resigned on 5 February 2021. Since there was only 1 Board meeting and no
annual general meeting was held during the period, he was only required to attend 1 Board

meeting.

The chairman of the Company held meeting with the independent non-executive
Directors once during the year ended 31 December 2021 without the other

Directors present.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code. The Board reviewed the
Company'’s corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management during the
Reporting Period, the Company's policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
written employee guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the Corporate

Governance Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has three principal Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
Each of the Board committees operates under its terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are available on the website of the Company

and that of the Stock Exchange.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional

advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code. The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr.
Zhang Wei and Mr. Ma Haiyue, independent non-executive Directors, and Mr.
Chan Wai Kin, non-executive Director. Mr. Zhang Wei has been appointed as
the chairman of the Audit Committee, and Mr. Ma Haiyue has the appropriate
professional qualifications or related financial management expertise as required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not limited to,
(i) reviewing and supervising financial reporting process, internal control
system, risk management and internal audit of the Group; (ii) providing
recommendations and advices to the Board; (iii) performing other duties and
responsibilities as may be assigned by the Board; (iv) reviewing the Company’s
financial information; and (v) performing the Company’s corporate governance
functions in order to comply with the Corporate Governance Code and the
disclosure requirements in the corporate governance report as contained in

Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
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During the Reporting Period, 2 meeting of the Audit Committee was held and

the attendance record of the Audit Committee members is set out in the table

below:
i /e
LV
Attended/Eligible
Directors to attend
Mr. Zhang Wei (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Ma Haiyue 2/2
Mzr. Chan Wai Kin 2/2

The Audit Committee reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance
procedures, internal control (including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting functions) and risk management systems,
effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function and processes and the
reappointment of the external auditor. The Board had not deviated from any
recommendation given by the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,

resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The Audit Committee also reviewed interim and final results of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the interim period and the fiscal year as well as the audit
report prepared by the external auditor relating to accounting issues and major

findings in the course of audit.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code. The Nomination
Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Au Yeung Po Fung and Mr.
Ma Haiyue, independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Huang Xianzhi,
non-executive Director. Mr. Huang Xianzhi, who is the chairman of the Board,

has been appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, but are not limited
to, (i) reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspective) of the Board at least
annually and making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes to the composition of the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; (ii) identifying, selecting or making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorship, and
ensuring the diversity of the Board members; (iii) assessing the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors; (iv) making recommendations to
the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the Directors and succession planning for the Directors (in particular
the chairman and chief executive); and (v) reviewing the policy of the board
diversity (the “Board Diversity Policy”), including any measurable objectives
for implementing such Board Diversity Policy as may be adopted by the Board

from time to time, and the progress on achieving the objective.

During the Reporting Period, 2 meetings of the Nomination Committee were
held and the attendance record of the Nomination Committee members is set

out in the table below:

R HE
KM

Attended/Eligible
Directors to attend
Mr. Huang Xianzhi (Chairman) 2/2
Mzr. Au Yeung Po Fung 2/2
Mr. Ma Haiyue 2/2

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee has
reviewed the nomination policy and the Board Diversity Policy; assessed
the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and made
recommendation to the Board in relation to appointment of the Director and

re-election of retiring Directors at the annual general meeting.

The Nomination Committee has conducted an annual assessment of the
independence of each independent non-executive Director and made
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors and senior

management of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the
Corporate Governance Code. The Remuneration Committee consists of three
members, namely Mr. Zhang Wei and Mr. Au Yeung Po Fung, independent
non-executive Directors, and Mr. Huang Liang, executive Director, who has
resigned as an executive Director, the chief executive officer and a member
of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 5 February 2021 and was
replaced by Mr. Lin Xiaotong (appointed as a member of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 5 February 2021). Mr. Au Yeung Po Fung, the
independent non-executive Director, has been appointed as the chairman of the

Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but are not limited
to (i) establishing, reviewing and providing advices to the Board on the Group's
policy and structure concerning remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies concerning such remuneration; (ii) determining the terms
of the specific remuneration package of each Director and senior management
member; and (iii) reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Directors from time

to time.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model described in code

provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the Corporate Governance Code in its terms of reference.

During the Reporting Period, 2 meetings of the Remuneration Committee were
held and the attendance record of the Remuneration Committee members is set

out in the table below:

W HE

kB

Attended/Eligible

Directors to attend
Mr. Au Yeung Po Fung (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Zhang Wei 2/2
Mr. Lin Xiaotong 2/2
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The Remuneration Committee discussed and reviewed the service agreement,
appointment letter and remuneration policy for Directors and senior
management of the Company, and made recommendations to the Board on the
service agreement, appointment letter and remuneration packages of individual

executive Directors and senior management.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY

DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. The provisions under the Listing Rules
in relation to compliance with the Model Code by the Directors regarding
securities transactions have been applicable to the Company since the Listing
Date. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the Reporting Period.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
which sets out the selection criteria and procedures to nominate board

candidates.

The Nomination Policy aims to nominate suitable candidates to the Board.
Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee shall identify
suitable board candidates and make recommendation to the Board, after
assessing a number of factors of a candidate, including, but not limited to,
reputation for integrity, accomplishment and experience, commitment in respect
of available time and relevant interests, independence of proposed independent
non-executive Directors and diversity in all aspects. The Board shall have the
final decision in relation to its nomination of any candidates to stand for election

at a general meeting.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as appropriate,

and recommend revision to the Board for consideration and approval.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”), pursuant to
which the Company may declare and distribute dividends to the Shareholders,
provided that the declaration and distribution of dividends is not in excess of

the amount recommended by the Board.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the discretion
of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend will be subject to the
approval of the Shareholders. In proposing any dividend payout, the Board
shall also take into account, among other things, the Group’s financial results,
Shareholders’ interests; general business conditions and strategies, financial
condition, capital requirements, taxation considerations, contractual, statutory
and regulatory restriction (if any), and any other conditions the Directors may
deem relevant at such time. Any payment of the dividend by the Company is
also subject to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands

and the Articles of Association.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there is no

assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific periods.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Company recognises the benefits
of having a diversified Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in supporting the attainment of the Group’s strategic
objectives and sustainable development. The Group seeks to achieve diversity of
the Board through the consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to professional experience, skills, knowledge, education background,
gender, age and ethnicity. The Directors have a balanced mix of experiences,
including overall management, brand improvement, business development,
legal, finance, auditing and accounting experiences. Furthermore, the ages of the
Directors range from 40 years old to 53 years old. The education background of
the Directors ranges from economics and business administration to law, with
degrees awarded by education institutions in the PRC and Hong Kong to the

United States.
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The Directors recognize the particular importance of gender diversity and
that gender diversity at the Board level can be improved given its current
composition of all-male Directors. In order to ensure gender diversity at
the Board level, the Nomination Committee is currently in the process of
identifying at least one suitable female candidate who has necessary skills and
experience to the Board for its consideration of Director with an ultimate aim
to achieve a target of at least 20% female representation in the Board. The
Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy with the aim of achieving
an appropriate level of diversity among Board members according to the
circumstances of the Group from time to time. In summary, the Board Diversity
Policy sets out that when considering the nomination and appointment of a
Director, with the assistance of the Nomination Committee, the Board would
consider a range of diversity of perspectives, including but not limited to the
professional experience, skills, knowledge, education background, gender,
age and ethnicity, in order to better serve the needs and development of the
Company. All Board appointments will be based on merits and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of

diversity to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy from time

to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
The Group has adopted all applicable provisions of the Code on Corporate

Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its
own corporate governance code. The Board is the highest governance body
of the Group and undertakes the ultimate responsibility for the sustainable
development of the Group. The Group includes several work groups, which
assist the Group to formulate and review the responsibilities, vision, strategy,
framework, principles and policies of the Group’s ESG, and monitor main
ESG trends and related risks and opportunities, in order to ensure the effective

execution and implementation of ESG policies passed by the Board.

The company identifies and evaluates ESG issues through regular internal
and external communication channels and research of a third-party agency.
The relevant issues shall be reviewed by the Board and implemented by
related functional departments. Meanwhile, the Company shall monitor
the development trend of international ESG governance regularly, emulate
governance standards of the counterparts, and continually enhance the
establishment, management and progress review of ESG-related goals to

continuously enhance our governance.
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The Governance structure and responsibilities are as follows:

The Board

ESG work groups

The Board, as the highest governing body for the
management and public disclosure of ESG matters of the

Company, mainly performs the following functions:

1. Review the risks and importance related to the

Company’s ESG matters

2. Considering and approval of the Company’s ESG
strategy and goals

3. Supervise and review of the Company’s ESG-related
policies, management, performance and progress of

related goals

4. Considering and approval of ESG-related

disclosures of the Company

5. The Board shall hold meetings about ESG
governance at least twice a year to monitor and

review progress of ESG governance

The ESG work groups, established by the Board, shall assist
the performance of the Board’s duties and promote the
implementation and co-organization of the Company’s ESG

policy, detailed as follows:

o formulating sustainable development strategy
and targets for the Company, and providing
recommendations and advices to the Board on

relevant sustainable development

o identifying and determining the risks and
opportunities related to ESG matters of the
Company, and regularly reporting the assessment

results to the Board
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Relevant functional

departments

examining and validating ESG-related policies,
management, performance and progress of related

goals of the Company

supervising and overseeing all functional
departments to comprehensive implement
sustainable development strategy and related
actions of the Company, and coordinating and
promoting the implementation of ESG-related

matters

checking and reviewing the public disclosure of the
Company’s performance on ESG-related matters,
and taking charge of the overall planning and

preparation of the ESG reports

the ESG work groups shall report ESG work
progress to the Board regularly for other matters

authorized by the Board

implementing ESG-related strategies and

management measures of the Company

assisting ESG work groups with data collection and

providing feedback
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Company appointed Ernst & Young as the external auditor for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Details of the fees paid/payable in respect of the audit and non-audit services
provided by Ernst & Young for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in
the table below:

(AR¥TL)

P d@ 4t i e Services rendered (RMB'000)
Ft s - Audit services:

AR B 1 B Bk AR 1Y A B T Annual audit of the financial statements of the Group 1,700,000

HoAb g ARG Other audit services 600,000

FeFewt M Non-audit services 900,000

3,200,000

5 B it

HRA R G MBEMERNORNLIE > DA
BN W AR AT ) £ S 55 R0 DA R s
WA 245 MO T o A% SO A L S B
2 0 R R AT B O AR BB 104
F107H o MR EE —F _—F+ A
S HAEFE R R > T
BAEN SR EORN E/MER - /FiR %
B~ AT A B R AR o S R A
HEUE AR B B SRR -

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flow during the Reporting Period. A statement from
the auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is
set out on pages 104 to 107 of this annual report. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors have selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial

statements on a going concern basis.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal control
and risk management systems in order to safeguard the Group's assets and
Shareholders’ interests and reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control and risk management systems on an annual basis so as to ensure that
internal control and risk management systems in place are adequate. The
Company also has an internal audit function which primarily carries out the
analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
issuer’s risk management and internal control systems, and reports their findings

to the Board on, at least, an annual basis.

The Group’s internal control and risk management systems include a
well-established organizational structure with clearly defined lines of
responsibility and authority. The day-to-day departmental operations are
entrusted to individual department which is accountable for its own conduct
and performance and is required to operate its own department’s business within
the scope of the delegated authority and to implement and strictly adhere to the
strategies and policies set by the Company from time to time. Each department
is also required to keep the Board informed of material developments of the
department’s business and implementation of the policies and strategies set by
the Board on a regular basis. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide

reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems of the Group
to ensure that a sound system is maintained and operated by the management
in compliance with the agreed procedures and standards. The review covered all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions. In particular, the Board considered the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and budget
of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
The review was made by discussions with the management of the Company,
its external and internal auditors and the assessment conducted by the Audit
Committee. The Board believes that the existing internal control system is
adequate and effective, in particular, for financial reporting and Listing Rules

compliance.
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Process used to Review the Effectiveness of the Risk Management
and Internal Control Systems and to Resolve Material Internal

Control Deficiency

Risk assessment report and internal control review report are submitted to the
Audit Committee and the Board annually. For the year ended 31 December
2021, the Board had performed a review on the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control system by Audit Committee, including, but
not limited to (i) the changes in the nature and extend of significant risk and
the Company’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the external
environment; (ii) the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring
of risk and the internal control systems; (iii) the extent and frequency of
communication of monitoring results between the Audit Committee and
the Board which enable them to assess the internal control of Company and
the effectiveness of risk management; (iv) the significant control failures or
weaknesses that have been identified; and (v) the effectiveness of the Company’s
processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance. The Audit
Committee and the Board confirmed that the risk management and internal
control system were effective and adequate for the year ended 31 December
2021. No significant areas of concern that might affect the financial, operational
and compliance controls, and risk management functions of the Group were
identified by the Audit Committee and the Board. The scope of such review
covers the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff performing
the Group's accounting and financial reporting functions and their attitude
on the internal control of the Group. The Board will continue to work with
the management to discuss and follow-up on the status of remediation of the

internal control weaknesses and to monitor the risks of the Group in the future.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company takes seriously of its
obligations under the new Part XIVA of the SFO and the Listing Rules. The
Company has adopted a continuous disclosure compliance policy which sets out
guidelines and procedures to the Directors and officers of the Group to ensure
inside information of the Group is to be disseminated to the public in equal and
timely manner. Briefing session is held regularly for officers to facilitate their

understanding and compliance with the policy.
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SHAREHOLDERS

Convening of Extraordinary General Meetings by Shareholders

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Board may whenever
it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings. Pursuant to the Articles of
Association, general meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition
to the Board or the secretary of the Company of any one or more members of
the Company holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company. Such meeting shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may convene the general meeting in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of

the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

To safeguard Shareholder’s interests and rights, separate resolutions are and will
be proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue, including the election

of individual Directors.

The procedures for Shareholder to propose a person for election as a Director is
available on the Company’s website (http://www.zhenrowy.com). Shareholders
may lodge written notice to the joint company secretaries of the Company at
40/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, provided that the minimum length of the period, during which such
written notice is given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that the lodgment
of such notice shall commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting. The written notice
will be verified with the joint company secretaries of the Company and upon
their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, they will ask the
Nomination Committee and the Board to consider to include the resolution
in the agenda for the general meeting proposing such person to be elected as a

Director.
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There are no provisions in the Articles of Association for the Shareholders
to put forward proposals at general meetings. Shareholders who wish to put
forward proposals may request the Company to convene an extraordinary general

meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the above paragraph.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries about the Company may be put to the Board by contacting the
Company or directly by raising the questions at an annual general meeting or
extraordinary general meeting. The contact details of the Company are set out in

the Company’s website (http://www.zhenrowy.com).

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the

following:

TR AR 5 A2 i AT B 666 7 LA TE 5% 007 A
Building No.7, Honggiao Zhenro Center, Lane 666, Shenhong Road,

Honggiao Business Core District, Minhang District, Shanghai

Hudik

Address:

B RE EA (+86) 21-61258655
Telephone: (+86) 21-61258655
TR L

E-mail address:

Je BRI AT 4% ) A ) 7 s R R B RO
s PR S B O PR H (i 5y A
AT 2 R KIE R 1839 G L1771 2-
17169880 EFIBRAE o

xulei@zhenro.com/mengnal @zhenro.com

xulei@zhenro.com/mengnal @zhenro.com

Shareholders may also direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to the
Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, whose address is Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings. At the forthcoming annual
general meeting, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) will be available to

meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The memorandum and articles of association of the Company has been amended
and restated with effect from the Listing Date, and it is available on the
respective website of the Stock Exchange and the Company. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, there was no change to the Company’s constitutional

documents.
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Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of Zhenro Services Group Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhenro Services Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
108 to 243, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary

of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs") issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided

in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated

financial statements.

m IEZ R A AT Zhenro Services Group Limited




M 3 A% i o7

Independent Auditor’s Report

I S 0 O

(2

Key audit matter
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Purchase price allocation for business combination
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
acquired Zhenro Commercial Management Co.,
Ltd. and its subsidiaries with a cash consideration of
RMB891 million, and performed a purchase price
allocation exercise for the acquisition, which resulted
in recognition of the customer relationship of
RMB25 million, and goodwill of RMB707 million,
representing the excess of considerations transferred
and the amount of non-controlling interests in the
acquirees over the fair value of identified net assets

acquired.
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Significant judgements and estimates were involved
in the fair value assessment of the identified customer
relationship and the recognition of goodwill arising
from the business combinations. The determination
of the fair value involved significant management
judgement and estimates including the adoption of
appropriate valuation methodologies and the use of

significant assumptions in the valuation.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Our audit procedures in relation to the assessment of purchase price

allocation for business combination included:

(@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

AL SIS T R ARG (LT 2 B T~ BB RO
assessing the competency, objectivity and independence of the external

valuer engaged by management;

TS BRI s T S TR B 0 B A (BB > IS B2 O
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obtaining the valuation reports in relation to the purchase price
allocation for the acquisitions, and engaging our internal valuation
specialists to assess the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
adopted by management, the reasonableness of discount rate
and expected useful lives of the customer relationship used by

management;

TENFRMHERERR ST > BB B G i 2 R E
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Challenging and assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions
used in the cash flow forecasts with the involvement of internal
valuation specialists, and comparing these assumptions with the
relevant historical data of the acquired company and market data,

where applicable; and

BAE RS B BB AT ER A B -

Checking the mathematical accuracy of the calculations of the fair

value of customer relationship and goodwill.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Purchase price allocation for business combination (Continued)
s T 4 D 0 B TR 2 B B 2
TR - LU % BRI AT A5 R i
S A U A A R R R S AR - B
R AL B S AL O o

We consider this area a key audit matter given the
magnitude of the customer relationship and goodwill
recognised arising from the business combination,
and the significant judgements and estimates
involved in the fair value assessment of the customer
relationship and the recognition of goodwill arising

from the business combination.

R R 48 8 A B R SRR M 58 2.4 > 3 /029 ©
Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and

29 to the financial statements.
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Key audit matter
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Goodwill impairment assessment
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group had goodwill of

RMB767 million arising from a series of acquisitions.
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Goodwill is tested for impairment annually.
The goodwill impairment review performed by
the Group’s management involves a number of
significant judgements and estimates including those
regarding the identification of cash-generating units
(“CGUs"), operating profit forecasts, the annual

revenue growth rates and discount rates.

A BTE RZ R > T A B A R A
AR A B B L £ R

We focused on this area because of the complex
and subjective management estimation made by

management on the key assumptions.

B4R R A R M Rk 2.4 5 3 Jk6 -
Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and

16 to the financial statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

F AR T o i B R S A

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

A AT B LG 14 (D A 350 < A A R o (L
TR

Our audit procedures to evaluate the impairment test carried out by

management and assess the value-in-use of the CGUs included:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

R R B {EL B i B 52 A
BB E TR BB

involving internal valuation specialists to assist us in evaluating the

B m) i E i ]

valuation methodologies and discount rates used by the Company for

determining the recoverable amounts;

B0 T PO AR R BRI InE B R R AR I B K SE R I TR
W B AWEARENRTRHEE —F A F A=
H kAR B B e A BRI BB R B — B |t

examining the underlying data used, such as management’s projection
on the future revenues and operating results by investigating whether
the forecasts were consistent with the financial performance of each
CGU during the year ended 31 December 2021; and

P A Bl AR AL SE B B R AR SORTE AR IR > LIRHE
BB G EEBARIERR -
examining the business development plans and historical annual

growth of each CGU to evaluate the growth rate of each CGU.
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B S )

R E
Key audit matter
BN A 5 R 1818

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

R_Z_—F+ZA=+—H > AEHES
JRE SR L R i (L AR W30 A BT 0 B
R NRW 375 A 8T SOl E R A R
35 HETL ©
As at 31 December 2021, the net carrying amount of
trade receivables of the Group was RMB340 million,
including the gross amount of RMB375 million and
the allowance for impairment of RMB35 million.

35 1 1 ME WSO TR T g o A i 25—
THBR M IE > 5 i & M R =
HAGGE LR > HAEMERMEEHE 5 GRIE
HME R (BFRBAEME « BT
ALBk  ATNEAE DR R K AT RE R B AL NS Bl
AR AT H A T 73 0B IR A th SR B o
We identified the recoverability assessment of
trade receivables as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements and the significant judgement
exercised by management in estimating the expected
credit losses for trade receivables including, the
existence of disputes, historical payment records,
forward-looking factors and any other available
information that may impact the estimated expected
credit losses.

R P 0 A P B SRR M 3 2.4 > 3 820 -
Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and
20 to the financial statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

T AR IR v o o i B R S A

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

4 Tl 5 o S T i o] o ) A P B4
Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability of trade receivables
included:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

)

(vi)

T IRAS B P05 S ME WG U S 18 16 7 DA B PR A
%%gﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ%%%%%&@ﬁﬁ
25

obtaining an understanding of how management assessed the expected
credit losses for trade receivables, and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of key controls relating to the monitoring of
the recoverability of trade receivables;

AL R B B BT O R R BOR S (B R R
B BTSRRI - E R LHEEE)

evaluating and testing the methodologies and data/parameters used by
management, including historical loss information, forward-looking
factors, probability of default and the expected loss rate;

AT AR > ik BT E R M AR R SRR B 5 I
SRR IR K B B L

executing analytical review procedures by analysing the fluctuations of
significant outstanding balances and trade receivable turnover days;

R MEST HO B S R AR B B B SO T 0 MG
ERR S AR DL

testing, on a sampling basis, the subsequent settlement of trade
receivables to cash receipts and the related supporting documentation;

S L S S D LA BRI S 3 PR A 2 B M R (L
W —F - —F+ T =+ HE SRR R RIS E T bk
B s &

testing the ageing profile of trade receivables as at 31 December
2021 used in the calculation of the allowance for impairment of trade
receivables, on a sampling basis, to sales invoices and other relevant
documents; and

APfl R B R L R E R AL -
assessing the adequacy of the Group'’s disclosures in the financial
statements.
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L E S 2 8 WP
CEE 22

Key audit matter

REY L1

Valuation of investment properties
R-FZ—F+ZA=1+—H BEENEK
BN P B A 5% 5 A SR AR 1 A
A AR 166 A BT -

As at 31 December 2021, the investment properties
of the Group were located in the Mainland China and

their aggregate carrying amount was approximately
RMB166 million.

B B 45 ) AR AR B S AN A (R E T Y
G (EIR AP EIEAT IR - 2 B EISE R A F
(L AR L TR - T S i o S AR A T
SARDL o SR AN 6] (908 (B 77 3 B2 AR w21 2 B
EAF KA FEME o B BEYERAME
BOHEE F RS AL I -

The Group’s investment properties were stated at fair
values based on valuations carried out by independent
external valuer. Significant judgement is required
to determine the fair values of the investment
properties, which reflects market conditions as at
the end of the reporting period. The use of different
valuation techniques and assumptions could produce
significantly different estimates of fair values.
Accordingly, the valuation of investment properties

is identified as a key audit matter.

R TR 98 8 A A T SR R B 2.4 > 3 15 »
Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and

15 to the financial statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

T S TR AR 4 o L o S O

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEMBCEM R ERITIERREF B4
Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation of the investment properties
included:

(@)

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

A (B R A ~ BV B SO - DA T MR A (LR BR
)i (B 77 ¥ B R ARG 5

assessed the competency, objectivity and independence of the Valuer,
as well as obtained an understanding of valuation approach and key

assumptions used by the Valuer;

il P Al (0 Ba A\ SR A AR R R A A 200 > S B S A A
AT B S5 % T B 5 S5 A 5 (L 3 A BRI o 4t b A v
A8 (LB 8 P B 0 St LA B T 357 R R TR LU e
HEATREAG 5 &

assessed the validity of the related data used as inputs for the
valuations and involved our internal valuation experts to assist us in
evaluating the valuation methodology and the underlying assumptions
and evaluated the source data used in the valuation by benchmarking

them to relevant market information on a sampling basis; and

A A LR ol B R LBl A B A A U EE A > DA
A AT BRI 5 K

examined the sensitivity analysis prepared by management on the
significant unobservable inputs to evaluate the magnitude of their

impacts on the fair values; and

Al &R A A Rt LB B E A (B A B R B -
assessed the disclosures related to the valuation of investment

properties in the consolidated financial statements.
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TR At 9 3L B0 R}

5 AR S YO TR ST oAl R
ELAR MR AP R0 OB R L A R I
A BT8R -

B BB R AR 0 5 0 0 3 A
B T R A A R B RAT AT

R o

MEFFGTMBRRMNE > FENEER
IR R > (R 5 L B R 7 Bl
SO 0 R B A AE AR AR R R Y BB A AE
ERAM  BUP AR EREHRBRAL - 555
SR CEAT IO TAR S5 MMl B o B K B
B > BB AREE - B B
A e o

6240 50 A5 W R AR I B
it

B A A TR B A R
B 0 5 A o 4 B B e % D 491 B 98 R
BUE > i WEC LI 221 3 S W L B 5 1 B 5
WAk o AT I R R S R B
WA B R B o DURE % SR AR M R
ANFEAE P 7 TR o R T2 A K R R

ik o

TEf WAR S B IR . HAFERAAHT
fli RAEE AR S > W EE B A
BHEOEER (WER) - BRF BAFERR
A BEEE RS ILEE  SERI SN
AL PR T AT - 75 RIZEER T LR A
RARER EFHE -

FirZAamY BARAHEHFBETUER
B AEEMBHRSEFORET -

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to

do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting

process.
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A R A T W e AU
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AHBUREEMEM -

B S B R P IR A MR A A A
RIEAT B 4% TR A RE R A R SR I A 2 1Y
K S R PR < S R R T R S B R
PR AR R SR A G BT IS LR T
JRFE AR AR AR & B TR AT ) RO RE A B B > B
B A E RS AR AL -

TERBHEFHEAETERNBRS - 5%
BRI > (REFEEMBERRE - BEI5

o R B AT A b R B R T B
S5 ik A A B 8k RO Y Ry 3R
t BT AR LR % 5 R - D
BEERTREMEENELRE > FRE
FE MR o R BGR T REW SR
W i FRER R REE SRR
A B B UL > PR K R B R R
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R B R A A R -

o RAHETEBT SR R 940 1 R
H R A BB 0 A ©

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s internal control.

U Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

U Conclude on the appropriateness of directors” use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Siu Fung Terence Ho.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

HWE-F-—FEt+-H=1—HILFEE

Year ended 31 December 2021

i TR e e <5
Notes 2021 2020
AR AR¥Fr
RMB000 RMB 000

A REVENUE 5 1,335,788 1,102,752
B8 LA Cost of sales (907,677) (719,377)
T GROSS PROFIT 428,111 383,375
HABUA B i Other income and gains 5 15,980 8,163
1TH B Administrative expenses (145,359) (140,003)
SR A R A Impairment losses on financial assets, net (27,636) (13,497)
ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ?ﬁﬂ&(ﬁ/ Fair value gains/(losses) on

(Eﬂﬁ) investment properties 15 (27,700) 100
[Ei§<yi %N Finance costs 7 (10,109) (1,296)
JRE A B 2~ ] 4 Share of loss of associates - (149)
BBt i i A1) PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 233,287 236,693
P54 B <2 Income tax expense 10 (55,646) (61,534)
A P Hhi PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 177,641 175,159
PIN AL HEAS - Attributable to:

(S /NEIE7 2SN Owners of the parent 174,578 171,647

E Ui g Non-controlling interests 3,063 3,512

177,641 175,159

YNGR ETIEE PN EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

JRE A A i 8 1) TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS

OF THE PARENT
AR¥o0.170 AR¥o0.197t

A R Basic and diluted 12 RMBO0.17 RMBO.19
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

WE-Z-—F+A=+—HILFE
Year ended 31 December 2021

= e = L
2021 2020
ARH T ANR#T T
RMB000 RMB 000
Gaskogll! PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 177,641 175,159
oA 2 i e 1 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
NERERAHES T HE Other comprehensive loss that will not be reclassified
R < HA R REE to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
RGN ET LM RE S 258 Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations (14,379) (61,290)
AR T ] R A R Net other comprehensive loss that will not
TR A5 2 At 2 G B 4R 4 be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods (14,379) (61,290)
NI REE - BRBIH  OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE
YEAR, NET OF TAX (14,379) (61,290)
AR ) 4 T W A R TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 163,262 113,869
IR AL Attributable to:
ESYNEIE7 2PN Owners of the parent 160,199 110,357
E Uiy Non-controlling interests 3,063 3,512
163,262 113,869

4E# Annual Report 2021 109




o o B R L A

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R AZT—H
31 December 2021

WaE e S 2 “ECRE
Notes 2021 2020
ANRWFIT ANRH T
RMB’000 RMB000
FEEy NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ENE L] Property and equipment 13 7,570 7,020
il R Right-of-use assets 14(a) 8,194 6,856
Ei'a-CyES Investment properties 15 166,490 21,600
[ Goodwill 16 766,626 59,537
HAh e & = Other intangible assets 17 52,127 30,797
iy k=N E’Jﬁfg Investment in associates 18 980 -
Tl A S B R IA Finance lease receivables 19 53,718 -
RIEHITH G Deferred tax assets 26 20,321 19,515
Fe i Eh G A Total non-current assets 1,076,026 145,325
B E CURRENT ASSETS
Tl e KR Finance lease receivables 19 58,795 -
B 7 BENCIE Trade receivables 20 310,832 272,117
JRE Wi BT ) sk T Due from related companies 31 275,024 74,757
FATHIE ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ( KIH  Prepayments, other receivables
B A& and other assets 21 56,361 31,967
B4 KBl E&%EY Cash and cash equivalents 22 736,914 1,451,514
iRk Pledged deposits 22 4,616 -
L) B A Total current assets 1,442,542 1,830,355
B E CURRENT LIABILITIES
B 5 e 3IA Trade payables 23 202,118 166,659
HAbREATFKIE L ERT 2 Other payables and accruals 24 479,932 317,111
JREAST R /A ) 3K IE Due to related companies 31 2,594 4,885
a1 EERAT B HoAth jﬁ?}#( Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 25 87,544 14,000
B IE Tax payable 37,365 55,637
HEAR Lease liabilities 14(b) 70,596 3,991
LB B AR Total current liabilities 880,149 562,283
L A NET CURRENT ASSETS 562,393 1,268,072
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w e AR LR
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e A
31 December 2021

W &E TR TR
Notes 2021 2020
ARBTI ARFIC
RMB'000 RMB 000
B KR I B £ TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 1,638,419 1,413,397
FEimE £ 5 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
AT EERAT B A £ 3K Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 25 30,555 13,375
HEAE Lease liabilities 14(b) 79,808 6,731
TR AR TE & A5 Deferred tax liabilities 26 44,578 9,655
HoAth JRE A 3R Other payables 24 10,177 =
FEIiEh A (A Total non-current liabilities 165,118 29,761
FEE NET ASSETS 1,473,301 1,383,636
oS EQUITY
(EYNEE T PN Y T Equity attributable to owners of the parent
A Share capital 27 7,867 7,867
fititts Reserves 28 1,443,273 1,355,699
1,451,140 1,363,566
RS Non-controlling interests 22,161 20,070
HERERS TOTAL EQUITY 1,473,301 1,383,636
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

WEZR = —HIMERE
Year ended 31 December 2021

ATIAE R NIl
Atributable to owners of the parent
o — B B -
CRIRE  RIEE  EARE  oRRE ERRE JERE  RERN A JeREE M
Stutory  Exchange Non-
Issued Share Copidl -~ Merger ~ surplus  fluctuation ~ Retained controlling Toul
apial  premum® reserve® reserve®  reserves®  reserves’  profits® Towl — interests equity
NHTT ARKTE RETT ARETT ARBTD ARKTE ARRTE ARETD ARETE ARET
Wity M sy Wimo  Hiime
Note2]  Note8)  Note28h) ~ Note28(c)  Note28(d)
e | At January 2020 3 - M5 88 2006 S IBd R 168 1806
g Pt o e e - - - - - - Mg omE e my
EREHAHER ‘ Other compreensiv loss for the year
Ly Exchange diffrences on translacion
of freign operaions = = = = = (61,290) = (61,290) = (61,290)
ERRAGSE Toral comprehensive income
firte e . . - - N NN 15 A N €Y.
BAFERRGS Transfer to starutory surplusfunds = = = = 1478 = (1478) = = =
BRAREE [ERAREE) Tisue ofaresfor the niil public
ikt ofting (1P0) M L - - - - - 1T - 1T
ﬁﬁ%é@%ﬁﬂﬂﬁ% Exerciseof the over-allotment option 54 153,05 = = = = = 153,776 - IBT6
Rl S sueexpents - (a6 - - - - - (a6l - (a6l
ERLEARD Capitaisaion sse ofshares 349 (3497) = o - - - - B -
e 3 o oy At 31 December 2020 807 L3189 JAU) (40488) 2563 (0,290 29570 1363566 000 138,60
RERZRELZAZ -0 At 31 December 2020 and
& i | January 201 LS L s a0 2950 L3600 13866
b ) Puoic for the year - = = = = = 174578 174578 3,063 177,641
EREATER Other comprehensive loss
, fortheyear
SRR £ Exchange diferences on tanslation
of foreign opracons - - - - - (43 - (1) - (1)
ERAEIGSS Torl comprehensive income
forthe year - - - - - () 1A 16019 306 16320
E}}\ﬁn@l@%ﬂéﬁ Transfe o tatutory surplus funds - - - - 21,469 - (21469) - - -
ERCE-RERARS Fi 2000 dividenddeled - me) - - - - - me) - M)
YOEHE 7 (it Acquscion ofsubsdaies (e 29) - - - - - - - - 1858 188
FEREREE Capita inection from non-controling
\ interests = = = = = - = = 250 250
FFERRRANRE Dividends paid to non-controling
shareholders - - - - - - - - (5,280) (5,280)
i e ol e At31 December 2021 807 1061564 175 (f0,488) #3012 (15669) 652019 1450140 D6 1AB0
* HEMBREAER _F_—F+ A=+ * These reserve accounts comprise the total consolidated reserves of RMB1,443,273,000 (2020:

Héa BRI EnmsEaMEREA
R#1,443,273,000 0 (ZFE T4 AR
1,355,699,0007C) ©

RMB1,355,699,000) in the consolidated statements of financial position as at 31 December
2021.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-F-—FE+-H=1—HILFE

Year ended 31 December 2021

Bk TR “ECRE

Notes 2021 2020

NRWFIT ANR¥ T

RMB’000 RMB000

REHH B e CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

R AT ] Profit before tax 233,287 236,693
I Adjustments for:

WS LA VR Finance costs, net 7 10,109 1,296

FE A Interest income 5 (1,062) (936)

JRE A — [T v e 1R Share of loss of an associate - 149

BEWENTE Fair value (gains)/losses on

(ess) / stE investment properties 15 27,700 (100)

I ENE L i Depreciation of property and equipment 6,13 5,861 4,050

i IR S e B Depreciation of right-of-use assets 6,14(a) 3,352 2,844

o H A AT Amortisation of other intangible assets 6,17 6,342 4,239

Fil A 5 B SRR TR i (E Impairment of finance lease receivables 6,19 2,932 =

B 5 G IR I E Impairment of trade receivables 6,20 11,100 13,081

JRE M PR ) SR T U Impairment of due from related companies 6,31 12,707 -

JFC b R SR T Bk B Impairment of other receivables 6,21 897 416

313,225 261,732
B oy e R TE R Increase in trade receivables (46,739) (196,933)
FTHRIE ~ HAREIRERIE ] (Increase)/decrease in prepayments,

HAtEE () /Wb other receivables and other assets (19,329) (744)
JRE Wi PR W ) K TR 384 Increase in amounts due from related companies (155,765) (23,884)
JREAST BT 2 ) ik S Decrease in amounts due to related companies (2,270) (579)
B 5 ME A K TR i Increase in trade payables 30,119 118,198
HAbREATFKIE L RERT 2 Increase in other payables and accruals

e 144,027 59,050
FLHHHE 38 Increase in pledged deposits (1,616) -
il AL B R R R I D Decrease in finance lease receivable 17,718 -
REMEEE Cash generated from operations 279,370 216,840
RS Interest received 1,062 936
EATFLE Interest paid (5,585) (886)
BT BLIE Tax paid (79,266) (56,615)
REHH I ABSE TS Net cash flows from operating activities 195,581 160,275

continued/
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BE B+ A =+—H L

Year ended 31 December 2021

WaE e S 2 “ECRE
Notes 2021 2020
ANRWFIT ANRH T
RMB’000 RMB000
REEB B SR CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
FEE M RS Sty Purchases of items of property,
HAH plant and equipment 13 (6,549) (3,691)
HEWE - BB Kkt Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
JHH Frg oA plant and equipment 877 225
i B LA T Purchase of other intangible assets 17 (2,081) (1,990)
& ALY Proceeds from disposal of other
RGS L] intangible assets 191 =
HEE U B /A RN Settlement of payables for acquisition
JRE A R IH of a subsidiary (9,800) (11,200)
Wi i e g 2 Acquisition of subsidiaries 29 (847,955) -
40T BTN R YK Advances to related companies - (933)
R A R K Repayment from related companies - 908
NBE A R I E Investment in an associate (980) -
TR 5 0 i P B 4 Net cash flows used in investing activities
TR (866,297) (16,681)
MEEE B SRR CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
R ) B Advances from related companies 31 - 4,037
Ir) [ B/ T 42 2 Repayment to related companies 31 (21) 93)
HRAT R New bank loans 127,366 10,000
TEARRAT S A Bk Repayment of bank and other loans (45,142) (3,000)
BAT AR T 5 2K0H Proceeds from issue of shares - 1,026,571
BB ICHE 52K Proceeds from the over-allotment option = 153,776
e B84 7 B S Share issuance expenses = (38,640)
1) BB 2 ) FF 5 BT R Dividends paid to non-controlling
AR shareholders of a subsidiary (5,280) =
I e i v Capital injection from non-controlling interests 2,450 -
HIRCEZRAERPMRE  Final 2020 dividend declared (72,625) -
FEAFK (FHBEALE) Lease payments including related interests (36,253) (1,883)
BB T B e Net cash flows from financing activities
TR (29,505) 1,150,768
continued/
YA
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HEBENRER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

WE-F -+ -A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2021

i TR —F R
Notes 2021 2020
AREFI ANRBTIL
RMB'000 RMB 000
B4 R BL& 5 EY NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH
(W) /g AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (700,221) 1,294,362
FERBLE KRS EY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,451,514 218,442
B 2R S T 2 288V A Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (14,379) (61,290)
ERBIE KB EE Y CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 736,914 1,451,514
B4 RBESEMAR ST ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bl RARAT & R Cash and bank balances 22 741,530 1,451,514
R % K Less: Pledged deposits 4,616 -
B& BRI B4 Rk CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bl&E Y AS STATED IN THE STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS 736,914 1,451,514
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

R

FE+ZA=+—H

31 December 2021

1.

’Aﬂl’(%l@ﬁﬂ

AR AR _F-NE+ZATLHE
BH & St ML R A A o AL
A FE MRS IE LR 190 Elgin Avenue,
George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9008,

Cayman Islands °

AR B A ) E A AN R LA
B ([ e 1),/ o i s = s A B A0 3
EEY R MY RGN - R L
{EL PR A 39 AR5 DA B i S A
B -

ARNFERGIR -F _FELA TR (
iHH ) E&%‘%Hﬁﬁ%i%@fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
(T3 hr |) R LT -

ARmERRS
RABCR R -

7% A T A A 2 A A

7 i P J 2w B R
A2 L F I A RS ATE

i

Name

HEHA -
Directly held:

Future Prosperity Holdings Limited
([ Future Prosperity (BVI)])

Future Prosperity Holdings Limited
(*Future Prosperity (BVI)’)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 17 December 2018. The registered office address of the
Company is 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9008,
Cayman Islands.
The Company’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
property management services, value-added services to non-property
owners,community value-added services for residential and non-residential
properties, commercial operational management services in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”)/Mainland China.
The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 10
July 2020 (the “Listing Date”).
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Group is Mr. Ou Zongrong.
Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

AERAL /ot

WER A CEmEER/ KA

DREEHY Ak R A REmM  FEEHR

Place and date Nominal value

of incorporation/ of issued Percentage of

establishment ordinary/ equity

and place of registered attributable to  Principal

operations share capital the Company  activities

R RER

(SRR )/

“F-ME-ATtCR LOOETE 009 FEHE

British Virgin USD1,000 100%  Tnvestment holding

Islands (‘BVI")/

22 January 2018

- IE 2% fi % 4E 1B A B A B Zhenro Services Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

R -

e

~E A= t—R

31 December 2021

1.

2 ) B B E B a0)
A 1 B I 2 W) R (4

4

Name

B4 (4
Directly held: (Continued)

ERRETRARAR
(TS s v |

Zhenro Services China Limited
(“Zhenro Services (BVI)")

e
Indirectly held:

Future Prosperity (HK) Limited
([ Future Prosperity (HK)))
Future Prosperity (HK) Limited

(“Future Prosperity (HK)')

EERERRARAR
(TERREFE])

Zhenro Services Hong Kong
Limited (“Zhenro Services (HK)")

MR o A R AR
(M EE )

Fuzhou Huihua Corporate
Management Consultancy
Co., Ltd. (‘Fuzhou Huihua")*

RELAMERH AR

Fujian Zhenro Property Service Co., Ltd.

1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AL /
LEVGE
UREESH
Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

operations

SRETHE/
“E-NEFZRTIA
BVI/

19 December 2018

i/
“F-NEZAZTH
Hong Kong/

20 February 2018

Bt/

“FMEFZA AR
Hong Kong/

24 December 2018

i ARALAE
(") /Bt /
“FNE-A=1-R
People’s Republic

of China (‘PRC’)

Mainland China/

31 January 2019

/s
“F-ZEZAAR
PRC/Mainland China/
8 March 2013

CEREER/
AR BT
Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

1T
USD1

16T

HKS$1

16T
HKS1

500,000,000
RMB500,000,000

AR H526,320,00078
RMB526,320,000

AT
RBEE 2

Percentage of
equity
attributable to

the Company

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

FEEH

Principal

activities

Bk

Investment holding

BRER

Tnvestment holding

Bk

Tnvestment holding

Bk

Tnvestment holding

ES

Property management
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Notes to Financial Statements
“EC St
31 December 2021

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

1. 2AvREEER 2 I
A BA KL A 7 W& R (48)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AR/ ot
WHR A CRmbER / AN
4 NREES kAt REmA  FEEE
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued Percentage of
establishment ordinary/ equity
and place of registered attributable to  Principal
Name operations share capital the Company  activities
IR : ()
Indirectly held: (Contined)
ERERBARA /R
(TS H3MH ) “FRRECACH B 50,000,007 100 e
Zhenro Property Services Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/ RMB50,000,000 100%  Property management
(“Zhenro Property Services”) 2 February 2000
0l / R/
RMERDEE R RAA “EREAATER AEH1000,0007E 100%  HEEH
Fuzhou Zhenro Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100%  Property management
Management Co., Led. 17 September 2010
/R
IFEHERERRARA “E-NERRAAH AR H2,000,0007C w00 EHERE/BE
Jiangxi Meishi Property PRC/Mainland China/ RMB2,000,000 100%  Property agency/brokerage
Brokerage Co., Ltd. 6 June 2019
/R,
R F TR RBARA “F-MEEAZER B 5,000,007 s YEER
Hubei Changfang Zhenro PRC/Mainland China/ RMBS,000,000 51%  Property management
Property Setvices Co., Ltd, 30 July 2018
0l /R
HETAAE TRREARAA “E-RE-AHAH AEH1000,0007E 100% AR R RAEEARTE
Yichun Shou Weida Engineering PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100%  Utiliies installation and
Services Co., Ltd. 15 January 2015 maintenance services

IE 2% fi % 4E 1B A B A B Zhenro Services Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

R -

e

~E A= t—R

31 December 2021

1.

2] BAEBE B )
A B E A 7 &R (4)

4

Name

IR : ()

Indirectly held: (Contined)

EREERBARAT
(HIRNIEE R ERARAR)
Zhenro Enterprise Setvice Co.,
Ltd. (formerly known as “Jiangsu

Aitao Property Management Co., Ltd.”)

RUTMEDHEHEREAR
(FIfR[ RUERDEERARAA )
Changsha Zhengwu Commercial
Enterprise Property Service Co., Led.
(formerly known as “Changsha Aitao

Property Services Co., Led.”)

IEEHEnERARAEAR

(NTgkEE )

Jiangsu Sutie Property Management
Co., Ltd. ("Jiangsu Sutie”)

ERMRE AR ARAA

Zhenro Property Management

Services Co., Ltd.

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AEIRAL /Bt

WHRAH CRmEER/
NREES AR A
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued
establishment ordinary/
and place of registered
operations share capital
/R

ZERRCACE-R R 500000007
PRC/Mainland China/ RMB30,000,000
21 February 2001

/R

“E-\EZARH AR 0000007C
PRC/Mainland China/ RMBS,000,000
6 March 2018

il / R/

“EF-E-AlA NRH11,0000007C
PRC/Mainland China/ RMB11,000,000
4 January 2001

/R

“E-JEmAZTEA KR 500000007
PRC/Mainland China/ RMB30,000,000
24 April 2019

AT
RBEE 2

Percentage of
equity
attributable to

the Company

100%
100%

100%
100%

70%
70%

100%
100%

FEEH

Principal

activities

WEER

Property management

WEER

Property management

ESH

Property management

WEER

Property management
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Notes to Financial Statements
“EC St
31 December 2021

L A BB ) L.
B 2 7 I RER )

P /
LEYGE

4 UREEES
Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

Name operations

EERA « ()
Indirectly held: (Contined)

/R,
BN R ARAA “E-NELATH
Suzhou Keli Property Brokerage Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/
10 July 2019
/R
BHENEHARAR TN
Guangzhou Zhengwu Trading Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China/
14 November 2018
o /B /
LHEBEFHHARA “ETEEAATCA
Shanghai Zhengzhi Electronic PRC/Mainland China/
Commerce Co., Led. 12 August 2020
/R,
BMEERERERLARAT “ECEEAACYH
Fuzhou Rongguanjia Real Estate PRC/Mainland China/
Brokerage Co., Ltd. 21 September 2020
/R
ERAEEERARA “ERETATCH
Zhenro Rongxiang Property PRC/Mainland China/
Management Co., Led. 12 October 2020

CEREER/
AR B
Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

NEH1.000,0007C
RMBI,000,000

AR HE1,000,0007C
RMB1,000,000

B 820,000,000
RMB20,000,000

NE1.000,0007C
RMBI,000,000

B #100,000,0007%
RMB100,000,000

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

KA
REE A

Percentage of
equity
attributable to

the Company

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

FEEH

Principal

activities

R A

Property agency services

B30

Commercial trading

[E3:0)

Commercial trading

REAY

Real estate brokerage

ESE

Property management

- SR 4 B 4 A 7] Zhenro Services Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

R -

e

~E A= t—R

31 December 2021

1.

2] BAEBE B )
A B E A 7 &R (4)

4

Name

MR : ()
Indirectly held: (Contined)

HMEREE R RAA
Xiamen Zhento Property

Management Co., Ltd.

RHEREL RS A RAT
Fuzhou High Tech Zone Zhenro
Property Service Co., Led.

ERFRERARAT

Zhenro Business Management Co., Ltd.

HEREAEEHARAA
Shanghai Rongjue Apartment
Management Co., Ltd.

RRERDFREARAT

Guangxi Zhenro Property Service Co., Ltd.

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AL /
LEVGE
UREESH
Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

operations

&/ e,/
“EZREART R
PRCMainland China/
17 June 2020

& /s

e Sty 113
PRC/Mainland China/

24 March 2021

E / PRk
“EHRAZTH
PRC/Mainland China/
30 June 2021

/R,

e St 71V by =
PRC/Mainland China/

23 August 2021

& /s

i S {1
PRC/Mainland China/

4 November 2021

CEREER/
AR BT
Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

NEH1.000,0007C
RMBI,000,000

R H 612,044,900
RMB612,244,900

B B50,505,0007€
RMB50,505,000

NEH1,000,0007C
RMBI,000,000

E2,000,0007C
RMB2,000,000

AT
RBEE 2

Percentage of
equity
attributable to

the Company

100%
100%

1%
1%

9%
9%

100%
100%

100%
100%

FEEH

Principal

activities

WEER

Property management

hEER

Property management

ESH

Property management

WEER

Property management

ES

Property management
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Notes to Financial Statements
“EC St
31 December 2021

1.

) BB BEOR )
B 2 7 T RER )

4

Name

EERA « ()
Indirectly held: (Contined)

BOREAERH A RAA
Qidong Zhento Property Secvice Co., Ltd.

AR IR AR
Hubei Rongshi Property Service Co., Led.

HERHERARAR
Shanghai Rongbai Trading Co., Led.

R R A
Shanghai Rongzun Business Consulting Co., Ld.

RS HAARAA

Shanghai Rongcong Business Consulting Co., Led.

LR B AR AT
Shanghai Rongkehui Technology Co., Ltd.

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

P /

LEYGE CEREER/ A

UREEDH AR B RERAE  FEER

Place and date Nominal value

of incorporation/ of issued Percentage of

establishment ordinary/ equity

and place of registered attributable to  Principal
operations share capital the Company  activities

e/ R/

i S IV AR H6,000,0007C 100%  HEEH
PRC/Mainland China/ RMB6,000,000 100%  Property management
23 August 2021

e/ R/

B¢ S 3 ) I EH1,0000007C 100% WEER
PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100%  Property management
21 October 2021

]/ R/

e S 2 NEH20,000,00072 100% %
PRC/Mainland China/ RMB20,000,000 100%  Trading

15 January 2021

e/ R/

“F_-ERATMA EH1,000,0007C 100% i
PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100%  Business consulting
14 May 2021

e/ R/

“ECERACHA EH1,000,0007C 100% Ptk
PRC/Mainland China/ RMBI,000,000 100%  Business consulting
20 May 2021

]/ R/

B S o v 8,000,000 7C 100% iR
PRC/Mainland China/ RMBS,000,000 100%  Technical services
20 July 2021

IE 2% fi % 4E 1B A B A B Zhenro Services Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

R -

e

~E A= t—R

31 December 2021

1.

2 ] B B E B a0
A BB A w gl (4g)

4

Name

ks - ()
Indirectly held: Continued)

HERBRIRGARAA

Shanghai Rongzhijia Decoration Co., Ltd.

RYEAHEERARAA
Changsha Zhenro Commercial

Management Co., Ltd.

4 (6 H) HEERARAR
Zhento (Putian) Commercial

Management Co., Led.

BAHERREEREEAARAA
Fuzhou Mawei Zhenro

Commercial Management Co., Ltd.

HRERTEE A RAA
Nanjing Zhenro Commercial

Management Co., Ltd.

1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AL/ Bt
WERIH
DREELY
Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
and place of

operations

& /s
“R-ERACHER
PRC/Mainland China/

23 June 2021

i/ R/
“EERAZTH
PRC/Mainland China/
30 June 2021

TR/ R/
“EERAZTR
PRC/Mainland China/
30 June 2021

& /s
“RZ-ERRETR
PRC/Mainland China/
30 June 2021

i/ R/
“EERAZTH
PRC/Mainland China/
30 June 2021

CRiEEER/
AR A
Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

AFE8E15,1000,0007E
RMB15,000,000

A 81,000,0007
RMB1,000,000

RH10,000,0007€
RMB10,000,000

NB1,000,0007C
RMBI,000,000

AE81,000,0007
RMB1,000,000

KNS
R

Percentage of
equity
attributable to

the Company

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

TR

Principal

activities

L E

Decoration

HEEHE

Commercial management

HEER

Commercial management

HEER

Commercial management

HEEHE

Commercial management
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Notes to Financial Statements
“EC St
31 December 2021

1.

2w B B T B a0
A BB A F g R (4g)

4

Name

WEERA « (F)
Indirectly held: (Continued)

EXHEHEERARAA
Zhenro Neighborhood Commercial
Management Co., Led.

ERFRNEERARAA

Zhenro Taixing Commercial Management Co., Ltd.

BELATEERARAA

Xi'an Zhenro Commercial Management Co., Led.

HEERHERAREARAR

Shanghai Zhento Commercial Management Co., Led.

MR EERARAA

Fuzhou Zhento Commetcial Management Co., Led.

9 A IR AR A8 v I AT o S 28

3 -

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AL,/ Bt

WHRHH CRiEEER/ AATEL

DRBEES A BB RiERAE  FEEH

Place and date Nominal value

of incorporation/ of issued Percentage of

establishment ordinary/ equity

and place of registered attributable o Principal

operations share capital the Company  activities
/s

“E-ERAZHR AR H50,000,0007C 100%  FEEH
PRC/Mainland China/ RMB30,000,000 100%  Commercial management
30 June 2021

]/ R/

“EC-ERASTH NEH1,000,0007C 100%  FEEH
PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100%  Commercial management
30 June 2021

e/ R/

“E-ERAZTH AEHL,000,0007C 100%  FEEH
PRC/Mainland China/ RMBI,000,000 100%  Commercial management
30 June 2021

/s

“FERAZTH EHE1,000,0007 100% FREHE
PRC/Mainland China/ RMBI,000,000 100%  Commercial management
30 June 2021

]/ R/

“EC-ERASTH NEH1,000,0007C 100%  FEEH
PRC/Mainland China/ RMB1,000,000 100%  Commercial management
30 June 2021

*

Fuzhou Huihua is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law.

IE 2% fi % 4E 1B A B A B Zhenro Services Group Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements
“EC St
31 December 2021

2.1

26 B SR BE R )

A1 B PO o 2~ W) R R ()

A4 S L 1 4 B 4 A7 R 24 029 73
HRBHELT -

FT A T v B A £ 2 I ) 2 S04 A
T AR ERERRRE NEHGER
AR XAREER RS - TR
AL AT IE B4 A -

R

A F 3 AR RO R P e 2
S UM B R R B S e B R A
TR A9 B 98 R S > A SR LT T
R IE AR S MBI - g #EH
TR A 3B B A T S R R 0 2 A
PR P o LU S AR R BB R A
TE 7 S B R T Y K B R R
}&o

AR AL

SR B IRE A AL F LB A A
(GG A%EHE ) e —F-—F+H
=t—HILFENRBERE - HEAF
T — [H] A2 R 4 4 o
(RFEEEHEEE) - BAEENS HE
B G 2 B B R IE R B = A
REF DA I B 725 48 S BUE B S RE g (R4
AEMERARNDUEEREHZHH
TE B0 R AT HER) 3% 55 TR > RTER
1 PEHIHE -

2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

The Group's subsidiaries registered in the PRC are all limited liability

companies.

The English names of all group companies registered in the PRC
represent the best efforts made by the management of the Company to
directly translate the Chinese names of these companies as they have not

registered any official English names.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the

investee).
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Notes to Financial Statements
—E——ft=A=+—H
31 December 2021

2.1 GiILHE &) 2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

AL ) R H A DR ESH &L
FIPNEA &R LD I [N
PR H RS HA B EH S e
ZRE— UM EE LB > 6B

@ HEEEHSHMBEERGANEH
L

(b)  HAbEH BT LR K
() ACHRMINFDME IR R -

WS 2 ) B85 R R Y e BRAS % ) 7 ]
— BN B R AR o [
GIEVES SRS VICE ey L PAEy (P
AR - R LA .

18 4 S HCAh 2 T SO B 45 AEL AR 2 i A
QUL YNGE H DN E Xl £ A
Al o B b 2 0 2 FBORE it B
Ktk o DA 4 B N ] AR SR T A B
O F 2 5 A B O e R AR
BOA ~ B KB B B IR B AR
AL o

fif 5 BT B O B Bk = IREE IR
AT BB SE > AEEGEHN
A B EH R R T A EHE - — X
WS J 2 ) ) A R i 8 /R A B (Ol R
REEHIME) > AR 2R 22 5 BHR

Basis of consolidation (Coatinued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,

including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date

that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between

members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity

transaction.
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value
of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's
share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed

of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time for

the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39,
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond

30 June 2021 (early adopted)
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described below:

(@) Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which
affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark
is replaced with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The
amendments provide a practical expedient to allow the effective
interest rate to be updated without adjusting the carrying amount
of financial assets and liabilities when accounting for changes in
the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of financial
assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the
interest rate benchmark reform and the new basis for determining
the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis immediately preceding the change. In addition,
the amendments permit changes required by the interest rate
benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations and
hedge documentation without the hedging relationship being
discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on transition
are dealt with through the normal requirements of IFRS 9 to
measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having to meet the
separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as
a risk component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of
the hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable requirement
is met, provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk
component to become separately identifiable within the next 24
months. Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial statements to
understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an

entity’s financial instruments and risk management strategy.

The amendment did not have any impact on the Group's financial

statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

Amendment to IFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not to
apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising
as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by 12 months.
Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to rent concessions
for which any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided the other
conditions for applying the practical expedient are met. The
amendment is effective retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendment recognised as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits at the beginning of the

current accounting period. Earlier application is permitted.

The amendment did not have any impact on the Group's financial

statements.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised [FRSs that have

been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRS 3
Amendments to TFRS 10
and TAS 28 (2011)

IFRS 17
Amendments to [FRS 17
Amendments to IFRS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2
Amendments to JAS 8
Amendments to TAS 12
Amendments to IAS 16
Amendments to IAS 37
Annual Improvements to

1FRSs 2018-2020

Amendments to IFRS 16

Reference to the Conceptual Framework'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture’

Insurance Contracts’

Insurance Contracts®’

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current®”

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Definition of Accounting Estimates’
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a SingleTransaction’
Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use'
Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract’
Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, Illustrative
examples accompanying IFRS 16,
and IAS 41

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021°

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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As a consequence of the amendments to IAS 1, IASB Interpretation 5 Presentation
of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the

corresponding wording with no change in conclusion
’ As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in October 2020, IFRS 4

was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply IAS

39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be applicable

to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its requirements.
The amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its recognition
principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine
what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of
IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed
in a business combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to
IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the date of first application, the Group will

not be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and TAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 (2011) in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do
not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011) was removed
by the IASB in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date will
be determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for

adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current
or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with specified
conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability at
the end of the reporting period if it complies with those conditions at
that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that
the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The
amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a settlement
of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any

significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities
to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than
their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is
material if, when considered together with other information included in
an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to IFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply
the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments
to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance provided
in the amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory,
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The Group
is currently assessing the impact of the amendments on the Group’s

accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify what changes in accounting estimates are
and how these differ from changes in accounting policies and corrections
of errors. Accounting estimates are now defined as monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The
amendments also clarify how entities use measurement techniques and
inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group's financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise
to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as leases
and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required to
recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
shall be applied to transactions related to leases and decommissioning
obligations at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented,
with any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or other component of equity as appropriate at
that date. In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to
transactions other than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier

application is permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did not
recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences for transactions related to leases. Upon initial application of
these amendments, the Group will recognise a deferred tax asset and a
deferred tax liability for deductible and taxable temporary differences
associated with right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and recognise the
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits at the beginning of the earliest

comparative period presented.

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any
such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant
and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the
earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the entity
first applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the

Group's financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether
a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract
comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate
directly to a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do not relate directly
to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to
the counterparty under the contract. The amendments ate effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied
to contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment
to the opening equity at the date of initial application without restating
the comparative information. The amendments are not expected to have

any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to
IFRS 1, IFRS 9, Illustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS
41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable to the

Group are as follows:

. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.
An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact on the

Group's financial statements.

o IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in Illustrative Example
13 accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS

16.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendment to IFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the availability of
the practical expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease modification
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
covid-19 pandemic by 12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient
applies to rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided
the other conditions for applying the practical expedient are met. The
amendment is effective retrospectively for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 April 2021 with any cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendment recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits at the beginning of the current accounting period. Earlier

application is permitted.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application. So far, the Group
considers that these new and revised IFRSs may result in changes in
accounting policies but are unlikely to have a significant impact on the

Group's financial performance and financial position.
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POLICIES

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of

the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group's investment in an associate is stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group's share of net assets under the

equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of associates is included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group's investment
in the associate, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates is included as part of the Group's investment in

an associate.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale, it is
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for

Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired
set of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive process that

together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the

separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any

resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is

accounted for within equity.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after

reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets

or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for

goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and

the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act

in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising

the use of unobservable inputs.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,

either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole) at the end of year.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than deferred tax assets, financial
assets and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on
a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of

cash-generating units.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Coatinued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories

consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of year as to whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the

relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and
that person
(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or of a parent of the Group;

or
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POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)

@

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other

entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third

party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of

the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or

to the parent of the Group.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Property and equipment and depreciation

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When an item of property and equipment is
classified as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified
as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 5. The cost of an item of property and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to

its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts
as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them

accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property and equipment over its estimated useful life. The

principal annual rates used for this purpose ate as follows:

Machinery 10%
Electronic equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Leasehold improvements 33%

Wherte parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful
lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives
and the depreciation method ate reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at

least at each financial year end.

An item of property and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties include car park spaces held to earn rental income
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business, and
leased commercial properties which are being recognised as right-of-use
assets and subleased by the Group under operating leases. Investment
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair

value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. A leased property
which is recognised as a right-of-use asset is derecognised if the Group as
intermediate lessor classifies the sublease as a finance lease. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is

derecognised.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the retirement or

disposal.

Other intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Other intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of other intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Other intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
other intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each

financial year end.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Other intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment loss and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 5

years.

Customer relationship

Customer relationship acquired in business combinations is recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Customer relationship has a finite useful
life and is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method over the expected useful
lives, taking into account the prior experience of the renewal pattern of

property management contracts, which is 10 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use

assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the

lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leased office buildings 3 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the

asset.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

b)

19)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or

condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g. a change
to future lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the

underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of buildings and equipment (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets to
leases of office equipment and laptop computers that are considered

to be of low value.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating lease

or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in other income
in profit or loss. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they

are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as finance

leases.

At the commencement date, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at
the present value of the lease payments and related payments (including
the initial direct costs), and presented as a receivable at an amount
equal to the net investment in the lease. The finance income on the net
investment in the lease is recognised in the statement of profit or loss so

as to provide a constant periodic rate of return over the lease terms.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified as a
finance lease or operating lease with reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to which
the Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition exemption, the Group

classifies the sublease as an operating lease.

Rental income derived from the Group's sublease services is presented as
revenue and derived from leasing of car park spaces is presented as other

income.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease components, the
Group applies IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(“IFRS 157) to allocate consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from lease component

on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under IFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial

recognition are considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not part of the
original terms and conditions are accounted for as lease modifications,
including lease incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction of

rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a new
lease from the effective date of the modification, considering any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease

payments for the new lease.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently

measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for

“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”)
on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit

or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value through profit or

loss.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that

the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or

impaired.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed

from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if,
and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group

could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”)
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the

contractual terms.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the

timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and

forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash

flows.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the

simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss

allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss

allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade and note receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic

environment.

IE 58 R 7% 45 M 4 BR A B Zhenro Services Group Limited




§U 25 e e B

Notes to Financial Statements
“EC St
31 December 2021

2.4 HRERHBORBEE @) 2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

R

B T

4 PB4 06 R 4006 A f
I NHOR () -

0 0 W R O B > TS DA FHE
Il (i e i Ak A B A B0
HMEAL 2 5 A& -

7% S 9 < 5 69 S 0 B I %
Al A T~ AT R ) B R R
BT BT <

RAGHE
A ENREEEBRI LT 28

R A 7142 19 % A 1

MR - 2R A FHR R TR
RO > BRI RSB B
AER > A RATIR - 5 kiR A
A 6 S 375 A0 R ) 0 R B R > Wi
R PE R 4 PO R -

S AR T 22 5SS I A 4 8 1
DA B AR R R — 2 £ 2 D A
RE RN UES 3PN EAbL S
& o

AL R E A
& A R BRI T I EAE MR BR O
B3 S R A 1L R

CEAGEACS N C S ha NI Ci= ¢ N
o TR SR KA ] B < B B
BOAG » SE B B R B E R
o BB RT B0 2 3 R AR Y
A 11T AR R R B BN HERD, > T4 A R
TG (LY 25 A 48 i 2 -

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and

borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable

transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
amounts due to related companies and interest-bearing bank and other

borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their

classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included

in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the

liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts

is recognised in profit or loss.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and

settle the liability simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form

an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks which are not

restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided

that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of year of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is

included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,

either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of year, taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing

in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of year between the tax bases of assets and liabilities

and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,

except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business consolidation and, at the time of the transaction, affects

neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and an associate, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business consolidation and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and an associate, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be

utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of year
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of year and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of year.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected

to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that

the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange

for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently

resolved.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods
or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or setvices is one year or less, the transaction price is not
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component, using the

practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(a)  Property management services

For property management setvices, the Group bills a fixed amount
for services provided on a monthly or quarterly basis and recognises
as revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right to invoice
and that corresponds directly with the value of performance

completed.

The Group charged property management fees in respect of the
property management services on a lump sum basis and on a

commission basis.

For property management services income from properties managed
on a lump sum basis, where the Group acts as principal and is
primarily responsible for providing the property management
services to the property owners, the Group recognises the fees
received or receivable from property owners as its revenue and all

related property management costs as its cost of services.

For property management services income from properties
managed on a commission basis, the Group recognises the revenue,
which is calculated by a certain percentage of the total property
management fees received or receivable from the property units on
behalf of the property owners, for arranging and monitoring the

services as provided by other suppliers to the property owners.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Value-added services to non-property owners

Value-added services to non-property owners include sales
assistance services, additional tailored services, sales of goods,
housing repair services, pre-delivery inspection services to property

developers, preliminary planning and design consultancy services.

Revenue from value-added services to non-property owners
including sales assistance services, additional tailored services
customised, housing repair services, and pre-delivery inspection
services to property developers, which are billed on a monthly or
quarterly basis and are recognised as revenue over time when the

relevant services are rendered.

Revenue from preliminary planning and design consultancy
services is recognised at the point in time when such services are
rendered and accepted by the customer. Revenue from sales of

goods is recognised when the goods have been delivered.

Community value-added services

Community value-added services include home-living services,
car park management, rental assistance and other services, and

common area value-added services.

Revenue from home-living services is recognised when the
relevant services are rendered. Payment of the transaction is
due immediately when the community value-added services are

rendered.

Revenue from car park management, leasing assistance and other
setvices, and common area value-added services is recognised when
the related services are rendered and the customer simultaneously

receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(d)  Brand and management output services

Brand management output services are provided to property owners

and include consultancy services and tenant sourcing setvices.

Consultancy services include market positioning, business planning
consultancy services and design and construction consultancy
services, which are billed on a monthly basis and are recognised as

revenue over time when the relevant services are rendered.

For tenant sourcing services, the Group charges a pre-agreed
amount in respect of each lease agreement entered and the revenue
is recognized at a point in time when a tenant enters into a lease

agreement with the property owner.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the

financial asset.

Rental income derived from leasing of car park spaces is recognised on
a time proportion basis over the lease terms. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the

accounting period in which they are incurred.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of

the dividend can be measured reliably.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the payment is received or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers

control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property and
equipment and other intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract
with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the following criteria

are met:

(a)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract

that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance

obligations in the future.
()  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the statement
of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer
to the customer of the goods or services to which the asset relates. Other

contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. The subsidiaries operating in Mainland
China are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central

pension scheme.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. Interim dividends are simultaneously
proposed and declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately

as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the

functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of year.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) until the net investment is disposed of, at which time the
cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss. Tax
charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary

items are also recorded in OCI.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also

recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the

advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies
other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each of the reporting period and their profits or
losses are translated into RMB at the exchange rates that approximate
to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular

foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment
property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of
the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not
constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property
and the present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting to
substantially all the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains
substantially all the significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of these properties which are leased out and accounts for the contracts as

operating leases.

Principal versus agent consideration for revenue from contracts

with customers

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its promise is a
performance obligation to provide the specified services itself (i.e. the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those services to be provided by
the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent). The Group is a principal
if it controls the specified service before that service is transferred to
a customer. The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified service by another party. In
this case, the Group does not control the specified service provided by
another party before that service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or
commission to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging

for the specified services to be provided by the other party.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Fair value assessment of the identified intangible assets and the

recognition of goodwill arising from business combinations

Significant judgements and estimates were involved in the fair value
assessment of the identified intangible assets and the recognition of
goodwill arising from business combination. These significant judgements
and estimates include the adoption of appropriate valuation methodologies
and the use of key assumptions in the valuation (mainly annual revenue
growth rate, discount rates and expected useful lives of the identified

intangible assets). Further details are given in notes 16 and 29.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of goodwill was
RMB766,626,000. Further details are given in note 16.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various

customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type).

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses
(i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the

financial assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables (Continued)

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type).
The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance,
if forecast economic conditions are expected to deteriorate over the next
year which can lead to an increased number of defaults, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates

are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs

on the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note 20.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level

of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial long-term assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets, including right-of-use assets, property
and equipment and other intangible assets at the end of year. These
non-financial long-term assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less
costs of disposal is based on available data from binding sales or lease
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value-in-use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of

those cash flows.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties, including car park spaces and the leased
commercial properties held as a right-of-use asset, are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at their fair value, details
of which are disclosed in note 15. The fair value of the investment
properties was determined by reference to valuations conducted on these
properties by an independent and professionally qualified valuer using
property valuation techniques which involve certain assumptions of
prevailing market conditions. Favourable or unfavourable changes to
these assumptions may result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties included in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the corresponding adjustments to the changes in fair value
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Details of the fair
value of investment properties are disclosed in note 15 to the financial

statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease,
and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (‘IBR”) to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what
the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the
terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the
subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is
required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s

stand-alone credit rating).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of property
management services, value-added services to non-property owners,
community value-added services and commercial operational management
services. Information reported to the Group’s chief operating decision
maker, for the purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment,
focuses on the operating results of the Group as a whole as the Group’s
resources are integrated and no discrete operating segment information is

available. Accordingly, no operating segment information is presented.

Geographical information

During the year, the Group operated within one geographical location
because all of its revenue was generated in Mainland China and all of its
long-term assets/capital expenditure were located/incurred in Mainland

China. Accordingly, no geographical information is presented.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers

During the year, revenue from Zhenro Properties Group Limited and
its subsidiaries (“Zhenro Properties Group”) contributed 20.8% (2020:
22.5%) to the Group’s revenue. Other than the revenue from Zhenro
Properties Group, no revenue derived from sales to a single customer or a
group of customers under common control accounted for 10% or more of

the Group's revenue for the year.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue represents income from property management services,
value-added services to non-property owners and community value-added

services during the year.

An analysis of revenue and other income and gains is as follows:

= sl

2021 2020

AREFI ANRBTIL

RMB000 RMB’000

ERAERHBA Revenue from contracts with customers 1,313,955 1,102,752
HAhARIE A Revenue from other sources

— BERH IR — Sublease services 21,833 _

1,335,788 1,102,752
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Continued)

EREAELWA Revenue from contracts with customers
G A ER (i)  Disaggregated revenue information
LE S e HE  RERER
WO MRS MERE WK it
Value-added Brand and
Property servicesto  Community — management
management  non-property  value-added output
services owners services services Total
ANRWTE  ABWTT ARFTFT AREFT  ARKTI
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
i 2 2021
T g B Type of goods or services
HRft Rendering of services 658,328 371,21 264,494 19912 131395
Wi Geographical market
R Mainland China 658,328 371,01 264,494 19912 131395
W AT Timing of revenue recognition
K i ER A Revenue recognised over time 658,328 360,881 138,848 10,203 1,168,260
TAHE— I BB A Revenue recognised at a point
in time - 10,340 125,646 9,709 145,695
ERAHAMS Total revenue from contracts
with customers 658,328 371,221 264,494 19912 1,313,955
“FRE 2020
T g B Type of goods or services
PRt Rendering of services 486,794 415,299 200,659 - L0275
Wi Geographical market
B Mainland China 486,794 415,299 200,659 - L0275
W AR e Timing of revenue recognition
Hs A Revenue recognised over time 486,794 306,273 81,736 = 874,803
TRE— B HERR A A Revenue recognised at a point
in time - 109,026 118,923 - 227,949
ERBARASR Total revenue from contracts
with customers 486,794 415,299 200,659 = 1,102,752
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5.  REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

@@

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised in
the current reporting period that was included in the contract

liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

RO <22
2021 2020
AR ANRHT 7T
RMB 000 RMB 000
NERFEA G R B EN Revenue recognised that was
EHERRIRA included in contract liabilities
at beginning of year:
Y38 PR LA R i Property management services,
B P P s and brand and management
output services 136,253 103,997
B BT (ii)  Performance obligations

A A A 42 B 40 S AT 1 SRR
T

Y5 B PLIR T K TF 2 - 18 (IR
#

WS LR B I I 3 £ (B RS
M > A4 B A B R B RN &
BRERRACA > SZ A H R B A [
E4 B b 1% A Bk 2 1 % F R A9
(EEABE - AL TR
HITH » AR ZE R A AR
BRBEAIRAT

Ft I B IR

SRS T R AR AR 5 @ R
B —4F > FR 45355 0 4% R R Il 48
KRIBATHIB K AT

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is

summarised below:

Property management services and value-added services to

non-property owners

For property management services and value-added services to
non-property owners, the Group recognises revenue in the amount
that equals the right to invoice which corresponds directly with
the value to the customer of the Group’s performance to date on
a monthly or quarterly basis. The Group has elected the practical
expedient for not disclosing the remaining performance obligations

for these types of contracts.

Community value-added services

The services are rendered in a short period of time which is
generally less than a year and there was no unsatisfied performance

obligation at the end of each of the reporting period.
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5.  REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(ii)  Performance obligations (Continued)
Brand and management outpur services

For brand and management output services to property owners,
the Group recognises revenue in the amount that equals the right
to invoice which corresponds directly with the value to property
owners of the Group’s performance to date on a monthly or
quarterly basis. The Group has elected the practical expedient for
not disclosing the remaining performance obligations for these

types of contracts.

JEABBON B e 2 Other income and gains
SR R CRAE
2021 2020
YN n AR¥Fr
RMB000 RMB 000
HAfg A Other income
FLEURA Interest income 1,062 936
BB Government grants 3,866 2,472
HERA Rental income 2,966 2,881
BA(E BN FTE B Value added tax additional deduction 3,048 1,742
RVEF & AR E A Finance income from finance leases 3,292 =
HAth Others 1,746 117
15,980 8,148
Wets Gains
2 S TR E g Gain on disposal of items of property
and equipment - 15
15,980 8,163
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6. BB B A 6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
AR AE B B AT A TR ks (REA) L The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
TREREL
Fifsd TR “ECRE
Notes 2021 2020
ANRWFFI ANRHTT
RMB’000 RMB000
YIZE - Wi Rk it es Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 13 5,861 4,050
RS ETE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 14(a) 3,352 2,844
FAbMTY e i Amortisation of other intangible
assets 17 6,342 4,239
Kt AHBEAEFT B ENFK Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities 14(c) 5,075 5,324
A G Auditor’s remuneration® 3,463 4,029
455 PR D (VR R Impairment of financial assets, net
il L R SR T W V5 Impairment of finance lease
receivables, net 19 2,932 =
B 7 RS 3K T Ui L 1 A Impairment of trade
receivables, net 20 11,100 13,081
JRE WA By A T T Impairment of due from
related parties, net 31 12,707 -
B S K (V38 Impairment of other
receivables, net 21 897 416
1R B A B S (LA 22 % Employee benefit expense
HEATBON B (FEs) ) (including directors’ and chief
executive's remuneration
(note 8)):
TE ~ Hra LM, Wages, salaries and other
allowances 431,137 371,416
BRI E R AL e AR A Pension scheme contributions and
social welfare 68,279 23,905
499,416 395,321
< R RS I A A A R B & Auditor’s remuneration in 2020 included a portion of audit fee for the existing
ey g — iﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ% AR 689,000 shares of the Company of RMB689,000 which was charged to the statement of
76> HERZF-FEBEHRTHER - profit or loss in 2020.
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7. BEMAR 7. FINANCE COSTS
B R NR An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
e =t
2021 2020
ANRIWFTFI ANRHT 7T
RMB000 RMB 000
SRAT B Fopth i 3R S, Interest on bank and other borrowings 5,585 886
A B A R B 2 Interest expense on lease liabilities 4,524 410
10,109 1,296
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8. T Rodw mAT BN BB 8.

A5 LB~ B A AR5 383 (1)

( NONOYIG DY NG T 5 & %
i EERE) B 55 2 4 R 11 A 4 R

BETBAEHMIT

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as

follows:
e S ZRCRA
2021 2020
ANREFIT AR
RMB000 RMB 000
4 Fees 600 355
HAth 4 Other emoluments:

e B R EYER Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4,715 4,349
BEACAT Performance related bonuses 238 1,478

RIREFTE 3 B At & 4 Al Pension scheme contributions
and social welfare 2,214 153
7,767 6,313

(@ BFEHfTES
IO 20 S G LS 2
SAERCEFEAA T ABEE
BAA T AT © 42
5t 3L BT F MR

(a) Independent non-executive directors
Mzr. Au Yeung Po Fung, Mr. Ma Haiyue and Mr. Zhang Wei were
appointed as independent non-executive directors of the Company
on 10 June 2020. The fees paid to independent non-executive

directors during the year were as follows:

e S ZRCRA
2021 2020
ANR¥F ANRBTT
RMB000 RMB 000

B FPATES Independent non-executive directors:
R B e Mr. Au Yeung Po Fung 200 111
A A Mr. Zhang Wei 200 111
RSB A Mr. Ma Haiyue 200 111
600 333
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8. HHRAEBAHMABEHM S DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

(#5) REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) HfTEFLRIEATESR (b) Executive directors and non-executive directors
TR 2021
Bk
4 b At BB R
i REDHR BReAL e HimA A
Salaries, Pension scheme
allowances and Performance- contributions and Total

Fees benefits inkind  related bonuses social welfare remuneration

AT ARWTT  ARWTT  ARETZ  ARETZ

RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
WirEE Executive ditectors:
Fo Mr. Huang Liang* - 210 11 - 21
¥ e Mr. Kang Hong*** - 1,817 139 1,080 3,036
PR JE A Mr. Lin Xiaotong** - 2,288 88 1,134 3,510
- 4315 238 2,214 6,767
FRITES - Non-executive directors:
EIBEE Mr. Huang Xianzhi - 200 - - 200
PR Mr. Chan Wai Kin - 200 - - 200
- 400 - - 400
- 4715 238 2,214 7,167
o WA —F - E AT * Mr. Huang Liang has resigned as an executive director and the chief executive
BEAE AR 22 A1 94T 3 2 e AT BU AR officer of the Company with effect from 5 February 2021.
e
Rk MBS SRR =R A+ — ] *k Mr. Lin Xiaotong has been appointed as an executive director with effective from
ANHEZEAANTHESE > Wit 6 November 2020 and has been appointed as the chief executive officer with effect
F o] BT BT from 5 February 2021.
A -
ok FRRSEER R —FETHIH ##k%  Mr. Kang Hong has been appointed as an executive director with effect from 5
BRERPITES - February 2021.
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8. R NREWNITBABSEM 8 DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

(#) REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) T EFRIERATESE 4 (b) Executive directors and non-executive directors
(Continued)
TR R 2020
Rk
Bie o IR G0
fils Eafl kA el Hi A
Salaries, Pension scheme
allowances and Performance-  contributions and Total
Fees  benefitsinkind ~ related bonuses social welfare remuneration
ANREFT AREFT AR¥FT NREFr ANREFT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
HfrEE Executive directors:
HIL Mr. Huang Liang* - 1,942 1,154 79 3,175
PRBEY et v Mr. Lin Xiaotong®* - 396 324 8 728
A Mr. Huang Sheng - 1,611 - 66 1,677
- 3,949 1,478 153 5,580
FHiTES Non-executive directors:
ke Mr. Huang Xianzhi - 200 - - 200
BRfER A Mr. Chan Wai Kin - 200 - - 200
= 400 = = 400
= 4,349 1,478 153 5,980
* Uy oy e e Y = N = & Mr. Huang Liang has resigned as an executive director and the chief
BEAE AR 20 A AT 3 2 AT Bl executive officer of the Company with effect from 5 February 2021.
B o
G MBEEAE R —F —FE—H Hk M:r. Lin Xiaotong has been appointed as an executive director with effective
NHEZATAATES > R from 6 November 2020 and has been appointed as the chief executive
FEZH R HERERITE officer with effect from 5 February 2021.
K o
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9. T s wH MR H 9.

A TR T 4% doe e A B 2 B L4 T 4
B(CFFE MAEF) > HFENHF
P e 1 SRS b SO RS © BREA A RIS
B mETEARNEG T =4 (CF =%
B =) B R B AR AR BE 35

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two directors

(2020: two directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note

8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining three

(2020: three) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief

executive of the Company, are as follows:

FEREAR -

e L
2021 2020
AR ARBTIL
RMB’000 RMB’000
B B R EYEA Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,308 3,244
BERACAT Performance related bonuses 2,132 503

RAREFTE K S At & 4w F Pension scheme contributions and social
welfare 325 177
4,765 3,924

B e LD R R R R R AT
LGNS I U UN oI

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid

employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:

g B A% Number of employees
e = T
2021 2020
1,000,001 #7765 1,500,000%7C  HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 = 3
1,500,001 ¥ 762 2,000,000¥7C  HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 2 -
2,000,001 # 76 22,500,000% 70 HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 -
o Total 3 3
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10. Wifest 10.

INCOME TAX

A S 1 E0R A 4 A B 2 W RE I R A
T A BB ) i M I A TR A i
BRI B o RABF ST S
BB HE R R R R BB > A
T B 2 T I e 56 A e e B T IS Y
W B 2~ ) RN AT T T B - A SR
JA 7 it S WS 2 ) 41k ZR 48 A B
B > TR o ST 0 5 00 7S ol E A
AL foT FE RRBL i 71 -

R — A TR B R 25 o A
V95 T R s ) 2 A /N R A 2 (T /I
RIS AI A 3E ]) P B A - TR AL
HR20% W FF S B R B
125%850% 7 HHBLIE o AL —
] o T 2 ) o7 7 e T G S 1 i G AL
b AR R > 6 9% I B TSR
= o

The Group is entitled to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members of the Group
are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands, the Group’s subsidiaries
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands are not
subject to any income tax. The Group's subsidiary incorporated in Hong
Kong was not liable for income tax as it did not have any assessable

profits arising in Hong Kong during the reporting period.

The general corporate income tax rate in PRC is 25%. Certain of the
Group’s subsidiaries enjoy the preferential income tax treatment for
Small and Micro Enterprise (“SLE”) with the income tax rate of 20% and
are eligible to have their tax calculated based on 25% or 50% of their
taxable income. One of the Group’s subsidiaries is located in Economic
Area of GuangXi North Bay in western regions of China and enjoy the

preferential income tax rate of 9%.

—g=— 224
2021 2020
AR ANRBTIL
RMB000 RMB’000

RPH — P A Current — Mainland China:
AN S H Charge for the year 58,916 71,735
IR (B 3E26) Deferred tax (note 26) (3,270) (10,201)
AR BT S AR Total tax charge for the year 55,646 61,534
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10. PifdBt a0

11.

TAH 5 > AN W) B R 23 Wi A )
AL M BT 75 ) i B I i 7 B R AT A B
0 1 2 D F 0 L S B R

A B BT B B S ARG T

10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

effective tax rate for the reporting period is as follows:

A reconciliation of tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the

majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income tax expense at the

—RF “E LA
2021 2020
ANR¥F ANRBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR il Vi Profit before tax 233,287 236,693
Yk B BLRET A At the statutory tax rate 58,322 59,173
R A 1 B AR A Lower tax rate for specific provinces
HERL R or enacted by local authority (7,502) (1,540)
Wk 2 v AL B 12 Loss attributable to associates = 37
I3 Expenses not deductible for tax 842 738
TR R B OB T e 1 Tax losses unutilised from previous years (558)
RHEABIE R Tax losses not recognised 4,542 3,126
AL B E B R AR Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate
BLIE S 55,646 61,534
JBe B, 11. DIVIDENDS
—RF e G <2
2021 2020
ANR¥Fr ANRBTT
RMB000 RMB’000
EER-ZE_TFERMBE 2020 final dividend declared
— B % 0.08 5 7T — HK$0.08 per ordinary share 72,625 -

BE-ZF-FTHEF-_A=Z+—PRLLEE
FIAR IR BREA R R BN —F = —
AV RANEE O KN il

June 2021.

The final dividend of the year ended 31 December 2020 was approved
4. by the shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company on 18
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12.

BEA A B R AN A
B & A

o T RS AR ) 4 A AR B ) I 0
FEA AR A H 1A 35 R B 7 A T
JEIRET-28101,037,500,000 % (ZF =%
4 885,621,585 ) wHAAL - AR 4 ik
AR (Bt ak27) $547499,000,000 LA A

) O M B MR R 5 AR Y B AL B AT
(B&E27) #17250,000,000 A2 7% 48
Je 2 ABGRR M L AR o R A% AR R I O
A0 S G AL AT B AT W B AM B 1 8
FIRCREF A =4 H IR E
JE B SE BT o

AEBRBE T - FR_F T
T A= AR AR I E AT

o PR A R R R T B AR JH E T
=

12.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on the
profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,037,500,000
(2020: 885,621,585) in issue during the period, as adjusted for the
assumption that 499,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company issued
under the Share Split (note 27) and 250,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company issued under the Capitalisation Issue (note 27) occurred after
the reporting period, as if these additional shares issued under the Share
Split and the Capitalisation Issue had been completed throughout the
year ended 31 December 2020.

The Group had no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the
year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

TR “ERCTH
2021 2020
AR T AR T
RMB’000 RMB000
il Earnings
at S B IR A B M BT F Y Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
BRI R A AEMGE | of the parent, used in the basic earnings per
share calculation 174,578 171,647
et H
Number of shares
S =
2021 2020
JBeAn Shares
FHAR A S R 2R Weighted average number of ordinary shares
i PR 48 PR 2 B84 T TR in issue during the year used in the basic and
TNHET- 28 diluted earnings per share calculation 1,037,500,000 885,621,585
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13. W Bkt 13. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
B BT B s HEWERE A5t
Electronic Motor Other Leasehold
Machinery  equipment vehicles  equipment improvements Total
NRETT ANRBTE ARWTT ARWTZ ARWTZ ARWTZ
RMBY00 ~ RMBU00 ~ RMB00O ~ RMBU00 ~ RMBOOO  RMBUOO
“ECELTH 31 December 2021
EJr#
ZEZFE-A—H: Al January 2021:
ﬁfazt: Cost 899 9,160 988 48 4350 15,445
ZitiE Accumulated depreciation (309) 4,675) (363) ) (3,075) (8,425)
R T 5 Net carrying amount 590 4,485 625 45 1,275 7,020
REFZ—4H—H—H>  At1 January 2021, net of
k25t accumulated depreciation 590 4,485 625 45 1,275 7,020
RE Additions 381 1,200 146 2,077 2,745 6,549
Y A ) Acquisition of subsidiaries 1 363 1 314 60 739
HE Disposals (74) (33) (104) (666) - 877)
ERERTE (ko) Depreciation provided during
the year (note 6) (376) 2,015) (102) (357) (3,011) (5,861)
e Sy b At 31 December 2021, net of
St—H > MBREFHTE  accumulated depreciation 522 4000 566 1413 1,069 7,570
RZF =+ A At 31 December 2021:
=1—A:
A Cost 1,207 10,624 1,031 1,761 7,155 21,778
it Accumulated depreciation (685) (6,624) (465) (348) (6,086)  (14,208)
FRIEHE Net carrying amount 522 4000 566 1413 1,069 7,570
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13. W3 Bkl =) 13. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Wl ETE Bl b HEVEEE Mt
Electronic Motor Other Leasehold
Machinery  equipment vehicles  equipment  improvements Total

ANRETE ARETT ARWTT ARWTT ARKTT ARETT
RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOO  RMBUOO

CECRELTH 31 December 2020

z+~

ZRCFE-A—H " Acl January 2020:

ﬁMK Cost 860 7,824 919 - 2,804 12,407

ZiE Accumulated depreciation (250) (3,494) (152) - (907) (4,803)

JRE (A Net carrying amount 610 4,330 767 - 1,897 7,604
MEZZZFHE—H—H>  Acl January 2020, net of

MR EGHE accumulated depreciation 610 4330 767 - 1,897 7,604
HE Additions 77 1,951 69 48 1,546 3,601
e Disposals 6) (219) - - - (225)
FRFHETE (k) Depreciation provided during the

year (note 6) 91) (1,577) (211) (3) (2,168) (4,050)

REZZFHEFA At 31 December 2020, net of

Z4—H HREFE  accumulated depreciation 590 4,485 625 45 1,275 7,020
e Sy g At 31 December 2020:

=t+-H:

WA Cost 899 9,160 988 48 4350 15,445

it Accumulated depreciation (309) (4,675) (363) 0) (3,075) (8,425)

JRE A Net carrying amount 590 4485 625 45 1,275 7,020
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14. HE 14. LEASES
AL AR A RFA The Group as a lessee
75 B SR A 0 T B AE & HE The Group leases certain units in buildings as its office spaces, and lease
Az BN FZE 1A - terms range from three to five years.
WML Tk R » AEFR T —4F As disclosed in note 15, the Group leased four commercial properties
— AT (BALEE B ) A located in Mainland China from property owners, which are related
T T R PR G DY S ZEE > [ E PR parties of the Group, in January 2021 for a fixed term of 3 years.
B3 o ASEEAE & B i B HERR AT A % The Group recognised right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
B RHE A BRI ARG E - investment properties and lease liabilities at the lease commencement
date.
(@) fERIRERE (@  Right-of-use assets
TS AR B A 42 (B P A O o 1 R T The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the
EVE LI movements during the year are as follows:
e a2 CRCRE
2021 2020
ANRW¥F ANRBTIT
RMB000 RMB’000
VNN Office building
w—H—H At 1 January 6,856 8,173
HE Additions = 1,527
WS BT 28 7] (P EE29) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) 4,690
rEE R (ko) Depreciation charge (note 6) (3,352) (2,844)
R+ZA=1+—H At 31 December 8,194 6,856

- IEZ R A AT Zhenro Services Group Limited




§U 25 e e B

Notes to Financial Statements
—E——f+-A=+—H
31 December 2021

14. B& a0 14. LEASES (Continued)
ASEEAE B AR 4) The Group as a lessee (Continued)
(b) MEAM (b)  Lease liabilities
TAZSAE BEAH S A (G I IR Th (E S ) The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during
mE the year are as follows:
TR “ERCRA
2021 2020
ARHToC ARHTIT
RMB000 RMB000
iv—H— A IR EE Carrying amount at 1 January 10,722 10,668
W E New leases - 1,527
Wi BB A 7 (BEE29)  Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) 171,411 -
SN EREODIIS) Accretion of interest recognised during the year 4,524 410
(NE Payments (36,253)) (1,883)
RHZA=+—HM
HR 1w B Carrying amount at 31 December 150,404 10,722
iV Analysed into:
I GEiEN =g =R i Current lease liabilities 70,596 3,991
JR B B 4 Non-curtent lease liabilities 79,808 6,731
AR B AR B H 23 B 8 A B 5 The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 35.
35 °
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14. M @) 14.

LEASES (Continued)

AEE R AN A1)
(c) 4 2 e P A I L B ) 4
wE

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases

are as follows:

SR CRRE

2021 2020

AR T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

& A EF B Interest on lease liabilities 4,524 410

5 FFRE 5 2 P B o Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 3,352 2,844

A BRI B B X Expense relating to short-term leases

(FFAATHEEI ) (included in administrative expenses) 5,075 4,617
ARIREEEERERN Expense relating to leases of low-value assets

B (FEAATELB ) (included in administrative expenses) - 707

Jiigiz bt Ak Total amount recognised in profit or loss 12,951 8,578

()  FEZ AT A I BB R
FMEE300) ©

AR B A2y AR

A [ 4 TR <2 B e A — TELOE RS B A
3 1A FE 0 S 6 O i DA O 48 i
A o T ET A A A E A
oA VR AR B AT R > TR el TP
01 B AR Y TS T AL o T AR AR
A AT ORI A E o AL B
R T 22 B A O R A M AR AE TR
AR &8/ ANRT21,833,00070 (=
FFTAF R o

BAh » AEEREEEHE LM ER
TR HR R b P B B B (B s) o
B ek — M B oKk AP AT a4 - I
AR T T DL B R R A o AR [ T
R 1) B A 4 i A A AF TR R A
A SRS NR2,966,00000 (2%
FAE - AR ¥2,881,0007T) ©

(d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 30(c) to the

financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leased out retail stores of commercial properties in Mainland
China under subleasing arrangements to receive rental income. Leases of
retail stores are either with only fixed lease payments or contain variable
lease payments that are based on pre-agreed percentage of sales recognised
by the tenants and the minimum annual lease payment that are fixed
over the lease term. Rental income arising from subleasing arrangements
recognised by the Group was recorded in revenue, in amount of
RMB21,833,000 during the year (2020: nil).

In addition, the Group leases its investment properties (note 15) of car
park spaces in Mainland China under operating lease arrangements. The
terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits
and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions. Rental income arising from car park spaces recognised
by the Group was recorded in other income, in amount of RMB2,966,000
during the year (2020: RMB2,881,000).
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14. Rl @) 14. LEASES (Continued)
AREEEEBMA 4) The Group as a lessor (Continued)
WoE - —FE+"H=+—H  A&£H At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by
A IR AR A [ AR 48 B ELAH P AN AS A BB & the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with
BT REBOCR R & T its tenants are as follows:
TR AR
2021
AR
RMB000
—5ER Within one year 32,882
J
i —EER MR After one year but within two years 19,460
52,342
15. &ﬁ%% 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
HE
[LES7E S
B R A5t
Leased
commercial
properties —
Car park  right of use
spaces assets Total

ANEHTFIL  ARETIE ARETI
RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000

“F—H+"H=Z1+—H 31 December 2021

iv—H— H iR {E Carrying amount at 1 January 21,600 - 21,600
W BB 2 ) (FfFE29) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) - 172,590 172,590
N TE TR T 1R I R Net loss from a fair value adjustment - (27,700) (27,700)
WTZA=+T—HMHMEEE  Carrying amount at 31 December 21,600 144,890 166,490

“RIFETZA=Z1T—H 31 December 2020

—H— B iR {E Carrying amount at 1 January 21,500 - 21,500
ONFE AR B A5 A T A Net gain from a fair value adjustment 100 - 100
A+ H =+ — R Carrying amount at 31 December 21,600 - 21,600
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15.

IE 58 R 7% 45 M 4 BR A B Zhenro Services Group Limited

BEWME @)

7% AR T ) 10 SE S A o I A Y
A7 % {1 A R o FRRE ([ i I RE D)
R 7 A A A A B T T A Y
EMEYE (HiE14) - AEENRE
W3 TS B ST S A AR A (T =
Tt A7 A SE R AL Kb sh A PR W) (1 22 T
1 1) BT FER —F 4+ A=
T—HEM A ARM166,490,0007C ° A&
45 [ 1O 5 A T T R B R E
AT A1 HIA (E R R 3 A 42 B ) SE 1 1 5D
AA o AR ME A S T 5 A0k - B
AL R BRI o AT
o0 AR A T B
TR AT B TSR A L 1 A0 1 11R o % Al
G AT o

AT B
T 3R A SR BRI T (E R R
JE &

I5.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group’s investment properties consist of car park spaces situated in
Mainland China and four leased commercial properties which are being
recognised as right of use ("ROU”) assets and subleased by the Group
under operating leases (note 14). The Group's investment properties
were revalued on 31 December 2021 based on valuations performed by
Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“JLL"), an
independent professionally qualified valuer, at RMB166,490,000. The
Group’s senior finance manager and the chief financial officer decide to
appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations
of the Group's properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group’s senior finance manager and the chief financial
officer have discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and

valuation results when the valuation is performed for financial reporting.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group’s investment properties:

e i S sl 6K 01V M AR

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2021 using

WG EATEE EARTEE
R LN ¢ LN ¢
(%) (%) (=40 At
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ANRWTL  ARWTT  ARETT  ARETL
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
SEOAT IE H AT Recurring fair value measurement for:
REVEATERE
Hifi] Car park spaces - - 21,600 21,600
THERENE Leased commercial properties
— HREEE — ROU assets - - 144,890 144,890
- - 166,490 166,490




§U 25 e e B

Notes to Financial Statements
—E——f+-A=+—H
31 December 2021

15. BLEWE @) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
WG JE 8 (4) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

REFRZREF A=+ — AR TR AFER 2
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020 using
mENE  EATEE EAATEE
iR WAMDE  WAMGR

(F—5R) (F_5R) (F=5) A5t

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ANRETFT  ARWTT ARETFT AREFTL
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

SLUTIE B AT THY Recurring fair value measurement for:

RHWA AR R -

Hifi] Car park spaces - - 21,600 21,600
WAL > 6 — G — RN TS During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
2T o = A A B between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2020:
(CBEBE ) o Nil).
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15. EWE w0 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Concinued)

AR 40
LR 7 45 B W) A (6 B 1 A £ £ 9l

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key inputs to

I B A A the valuation of investment properties:
fhi Bl FORON AT B A\ o -5
Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
. 2 S 202
2021 2020
Bifif RIEMEA A TSNS SEEGTEER ARM234000  ARH225,000
oA R (Tl 85 s IE YN TEARH
A AR EE L S e F AR AFEBE) 261,0007C 270,0007C
YESLEIRY
Car park spaces  Direct comparison method-based ~ Market unit price per lot RMB234,000 to RMB225,000 to
market observable transaction (the higher of the market RMB261,000 RMB270,000
of similar car park and adjusted unit price, the higher of
to reflect the conditions the fair value)
of the subject properties
Rt BT I R T A B ALY B R (A R ARWS 7 eE AR
fipEgE  WHHeRIAREERTS: & A TERE ARW6.87C
Wit Al BB
ROU assets Income approach -based on market ~ Market yield expected (the higher of the RMBS5.7 to N/A
under rents of all lectable units of market yield expected, the lower of RMBG6.8
operating the properties are assessed and the fair value)
lease discounted at the market yield
expected
(=3eR=2 By Sl g ARW327EE AR
TS (B E b AF ARW7.378
(E#)
Assessed prevailing market rents, RMB3.2 to N/A
per square meter per day RMB7.3

A B 9 i 355 BEL AR R b i A Bt

S¢7/E PN R EDNUE IO

(the higher of the prevailing
market rents, the higher of

the fair value)

A significant increase in the market unit price per lot would result in a

significant increase in the fair value of the investment properties.
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16. GOODWILL

16. W

TR 22

2021 2020

AR T ARET T

RMB000 RMB 000

—H— B i pA B Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 59,537 59,537

Wi B A B 2 ) (fE 3 29) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) 707,089 -

A= HE A Cost and carrying amount at 31 December

B S fE 766,626 59,537

TR 9 Impairment testing of goodwill

A% S T35 8 S5 2 DF B M 7 B T 20 B
EUT=MHEELRL (ReEts
iz ) ARSI o W25 Bl e A B )
A T < TS AR AR 8 (R R E
1T % 46 w3608 P 2 7 A L O A 9 T 4

BT I B e T

The Group’s goodwill acquired through business combinations was
allocated to the following three cash-generating units (“CGUs”) for
the impairment testing. The recoverable amounts of these CGUs have
been determined based on a value-in-used calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period

prepared by management.

Bl A FLAL B = 37 R WEREERR AmfRE B
Annual
revenue Terminal Discount
CGU Principal business Goodwill growth rate growth rate rate
ARHTIT
RMB000

S

=t—H
31 December 2021
R UES P
Jiangsu Aitao Property management 19,507 3~5% 3% 13.2%
TLRR AR WEH
Jiangsu Sutie Property management 40,030 3~5% 3% 13.2%
Zhenro Commercial LEZ/ES 8L

(FiE29)
Zhenro Commercial Commercial property

(note 29) management 707,089 10~15% 3% 12.4%
“FFETCA

=+—H
31 December 2020
TLRRE UES P
Jiangsu Aitao Property management 19,507 3~5% 3% 18.2%
TLRR AR WEH
Jiangsu Sutie Property management 40,030 3~5% 3% 18.2%
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16. W% ) 16.
T2 A B R )
R 4 e L B 6 3
WET BT o B B AT 7 B
T T 0B B (B
B AR B 5 B T

MELR — P IR B R B BRBLAT G R
Sl F e BEL A 28057 A I B 5 SRR

Wedn AF R R — ARG B IR AR Y B
S AR AL T DI AR 9 R AR A AT R
(AT R Bz — -

Rt R — KRt KBTI EME N > &
SRR B F53.0% ©

ALBEHER S > HREEFAENE
AR A AT AT 5 2 ] RESE B 4 R R
e A L A < A 67 PG T i [ g o

ROFERCECFET AT
SURES YL T F VY EL LT
SRR TR

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculations of the
above-mentioned CGUs. The following describes each key assumption on
which management had based its cash flow projections of the CGUs to

undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific

risks relating to the relevant unit.

Annual revenue growth rate — The predicted revenue growth rate of the
CGUs for the five years subsequent to the date of assessment is one of the

assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations.

Terminal growth rate — The terminal growth rate was estimated to be

3.0% which has taken into consideration the prevailing industry practice.

The management of the Group believes that any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions of the value-in-use calculation would not

cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the CGUs.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the management of the Group
determined that no impairment of goodwill should be recognised for the
CGUs.
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17. JCABAEH % A

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

A % PH# Bt
Customer
Software  relationship Total
ANRETT  ARWTT ARWTL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E-—H#+-H=+—H 31 December 2021
WoE - —F—H—H: At 1 January 2021:
JRA Cost 4,539 35,919 40,458
BT Accumulated amortisation (1,015) (8,646) (9,661)
AR HE Net carrying amount 3,524 27,273 30,797
W_F_—F—H—H Carrying amount at 1 January 2021
f1 B T 3,524 27,273 30,797
NE Additions 2,081 - 2,081
W S A ) Acquisition of a subsidiary 680 25,102 25,782
e Disposal (191) - (191)
SENFHEEESS (FiEEo) Amortisation provided during the
year (note 6) (1,495) (4,847) (6,342)
N - —F+H Carrying amount at
=1 — H iR (A 31 December 2021 4,599 47,528 52,127
W_F - —F+=H At 31 December 2021:
=+—H:
A Cost 7,138 61,021 68,159
R Accumulated amortisation (2,539) (13,493) (16,032)
ARV Net carrying amount 4,599 47,528 52,127
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17. Hfbie & =)

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Ligts % F Bk Hat
Customer
Software relationship Total
ANREEFIE AREFLT ARETFIL
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000
i EE@‘I" H=+—H 31 December 2020
EA# FoFE—H—H : At 1 January 2020:
JRA Cost 2,549 35,919 38,468
ZEtEey Accumulated amortisation (368) (5,054) (5,422)
HR T Net carrying amount 2,181 30,865 33,046
R_F_FFE—-H—H Carrying amount at 1 January 2020
B T ] 2,181 30,865 33,046
INE Additions 1,990 = 1,990
R RS (P EE6) Amortisation provided during the year
(note 6) (647) (3,592) (4,239)
NECRAETTH Carrying amount at 31 December 2020
=+ —H AR E 3,524 27,273 30,797
N_FEZRE+TTH At 31 December 2020:
=t+—H:
%N Cost 4,539 35,919 40,458
S Accumulated amortisation (1,015) (8,646) (9,661)
HRETH Net carrying amount 3,524 27,273 30,797

- IEZ R A AT Zhenro Services Group Limited
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18. TG A vl B

18. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

MG R Share of net assets

TR “E R
2021 2020
AREFIL ANREFr
RMB’000 RMB 000
980 -

AEEBE AR REEWT

e

Name

T R R S A FR A ]
(TEFEYE])

A R R S A FR A F]
(“Ai Tao Feng Hui")

P 2 SR R A PR

AR Fo8 B [ SR ok 1 AR5 A B

Particulars of the Group’s associates are as follows:

Al B S H B

Place of registration

and business

HE A
PRC/Mainland China

R o B A
PRC/Mainland China
R e A
PRC/Mainland China

AR M A
PR At RS
Percentage of

ownership interest

attributable Principal
to the Group activities
48% ESCE
48% Property management
49% B SEgis
49% Property management
49% /ES gL
49% Property management
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19. il ¥ AL A HE oSk o8

19. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

e S
2021
BB
JE WK BUE
Present value
of minimum

finance lease

2021
5z N <giEN =
e e

Minimum

finance lease

receivables receivables
ANRHFo NRETT
RMB’000 RMB000
Al AR B RS R L 4 Finance lease receivables comprise:
—4ER Within one year 60,327 62,884
B In the second year 55,118 61,975
A In the third year = -
115,445 124,859
FHE S Gross investment in the lease i N/A 124,859
ISP SIS PN Less: Unearned finance income A N/A (9,414)
JRE TS AL 5 £+ 3B (B Present value of minimum lease payment
receivables 115,445 115,445
RNy izt L] Less: Allowance for credit loss (2,932)
112,513
ST Analysed as:
R Current 58,795
FERD Non-current 53,718

IE 58 R 7% 45 M 4 BR A B Zhenro Services Group Limited
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20. B 5 REBGK 20. TRADE RECEIVABLES
SR “ECFE
2021 2020
AREFI NREFIT
RMB000 RMB’000
B 5 eI IR Trade receivables 340,602 293,207
WE Impairment (29,770) (21,090)
310,832 272,117

B 5 e WK T 2 AR A 0 3 A R
B~ TR TR E M - AL (RS X
7 SR TR S o AR A R B
TR BE BRI I SR o

JA S 5 IR L % 52 P % 4 e 4R
AR B B o RE S SR O SR e 7 BT 4 T

Trade receivables mainly arise from property management services,
value-added services to non-property owners, community value-added
services, and commercial operational management services, and are due
for payment upon the issuance of the demand notes in accordance with

the terms of the relevant agreements.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting

period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

TR —ER T

2021 2020

ANRWFIT ANR¥T

RMB’000 RMB'000

—4ER Within 1 year 275,919 259,523
—F AE 1 to 2 years 33,210 11,026
Rt S 2 to 3 years 1,703 1,568
310,832 272,117
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20. 5 REWGK I () 20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

B 5 RE WO B s T B A O S B I T

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables

are as follows:

- e e <5

2021 2020

ANRIEF NREFr

RMB000 RMB’000

5] At beginning of year 21,090 9,237
WA (ko) Impairment losses, net (note 6) 11,100 13,081
LS 1Y Ak i ] 3 Amount written off as uncollectible (2,420) (1,228)
FR At end of year 29,770 21,090

BE-F_-4#+-A=+—RFLLHEE
F) Ml 15 78 4 188 T 7 o 2 1 0 B WSk
TR Y AR h 8% AR TR

JA A i 0T B T 438 4 4 A A7 (L
SHr > Lhat B EHIE B R - SR ))
HETBA B FE X 2 0 & F 23
AR A K MR E © % mt B R RsAR
FMRERTR B Rl BT
5B B A 1 2~ R O B R A A
TR 00 T B B T 5 RS o

— BT o i B R A A ) A
=R RO A S PR 5 AT I B A
B 5 REWCERI TS T A -

The increase in the loss allowance during the year ended 31 December
2021 was due to the significant changes in the gross carrying amount of

the trade receivables which were past due.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with
similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events,

current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more than three

years and are not subject to enforcement activity.

- IEZ R A AT Zhenro Services Group Limited
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20. B S MEBGKIE ) 20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
TCHEAN R e RN ALY Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
S BECGR B (5 Bl b & 8 - Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:
—F_—#+-H=+—H 31 December 2021
i
Past due
—HEPT —FEIE ZFEEF st
Less than lto2 2to3
one year year years Total
ERUIESS THik Expected credit loss rate 5.8% 21.0% 70.7% 8.7%
AR A Gross carrying amount
(NR¥TT) (RMB'000) 292,760 42,022 5,820 340,602
FHESEE Expected credit losses
(NRHT0) (RMB’000) 16,841 8,812 4,117 29,770
—E-ERE+ A =+—H 31 December 2020
f
Past due
—HUTF —EFE ZE=F M5t
Less than 1to?2 2t03
one year year years Total
EEEERER Expected credit loss rate 5.3% 18.7% 71.9% 7.19%
AR (B Gross carrying amount
(NR¥TT) (RMB’000) 274,074 13,554 5,579 293,207
HE B Expected credit losses
(NR¥TT) (RMB'000) 14,551 2,528 4,011 21,090
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21, FAPEE > HAbEBGKEE 21

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

Al OTHER ASSETS
TR e S <22
2021 2020
ANRIWFTFIT ANEHTT
RMB’000 RMB 000

REEF s FHEZEMRER 13 Payments on behalf of customers

to utility suppliers 30,254 15,170
oAt P 3H Other prepayments 5,044 3,133
4 Deposits 15,415 9,576
I] § I%ih*” Advances to staff 4,212 2,079
oA RE WS IE Other receivables 3,351 3,027
58,276 32,985
BE Impairment (1,915) (1,018)
56,361 31,967

TR AKOH ~ At B oS T R A E Y

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of prepayments,

AR MT other receivables and other assets are as follows:
e Sy TERTRI
2021 2020
AREFIL ARHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
4] At beginning of year 1,018 604
T (B s TR T A ( M]L&G Impairment losses, net (note 6) 897 416
U 1 3k i ] Amount written off as uncollectible = )
R At end of year 1,915 1,018

T (5 B4R ) 58 52 0 45 [ 1) 48 i
ik > RABRETEETGE - k5
TE%@%LJ%E%M&HJWWM&W%
ARARFOR U EB (WEH) - R =F
**@Jr*H:Jr*El@ﬂ%H’wéﬂE%%
3.69% (ZFEZF4 1 3.4%)

Expected credit losses are estimated by applying a loss rate approach
with reference to the historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is
adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. The loss rate applied as at 31 December 2021
was 3.6% (2020: 3.4%).

- IEZ R A AT Zhenro Services Group Limited
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22. BERBESHEY RIKE 22

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

£ DEPOSITS

=% S 225

2021 2020

ANRIWFTFIT ANRHT 7T

RMB’000 RMB 000

Bla RAUTH R Cash and bank balances 741,530 1,451,514

W KRS Less: Pledged deposits (4,616) -

B KB eEED Cash and cash equivalents 736,914 1,451,514
WoE-—F+HA=1+—H  AR¥ As at 31 December 2021, bank balances of RMB4,616,000 were pledged

4,616,000 7C I SR 1T 45 SR B AR Sy 45 T
YIS B K IR A AR 5 o

REFBZ—FTHA=+—H B&K
%Eﬁ?ﬁ*ﬁ?u}\%’ﬁ?%{?éﬁﬁ%*ﬁﬁjx&
#734,664,0007C (—F “F4F « AR
754,679,00000) © AR H i Hhi ik
Ry HoAb B W > MEAR DR B A b A R A B
R B 5 W ~ 5 R I R A SR AR 2 > A
2 T 0 O 0 0 A A MR A T A T B 2 4R
FTH N B St 40y oAt B 8 o

FROR RAT I B & 4% 8 H AT 3G )
FIFGHS - RITHHRARREERFH
B K RC BRI BRAT - B RB &5
0 0 B T BELHL AP AR A

23. B SRR 23.

as security for performance of certain property management contracts.

At 31 December 2021, the cash and bank balances denominated in RMB
amounted to RMB734,664,000 (2020: RMB754,679,000). The RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash

equivalents approximated to their fair values.

TRADE PAYABLES

TN RSL R B 2 H I B 5 A SR An aging analysis of the trade payables as at the end of year, based on the
WRES BN R invoice date, is as follows:

e S “ECRE
2021 2020
ANR¥F AR T T
RMB’000 RMB000
—4ER Within 1 year 197,760 164,532
R — Over 1 year 4,358 2,127
202,118 166,659

55 WAL s 2 A st B R — B Lhoo H
PREGH -

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on

90-day terms.
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24, JUAb KA K0 B it #¢

24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

i3 e i e <2

Notes 2021 2020
ANRIWFFI ANR¥T
RMB’000 RMB000
B4 Current portion
BRI Contract liabilities (a) 151,277 120,417
B % & Deposits received (b) 29,749 15,177
S e 2 W) A AR Consideration payables for
acquisition of a subsidiary - 9,800
HFALEAE S YK Receipts on behalf of
community residents 88,787 52,618
JRE A L %5 B A A Payroll and welfare payable 103,887 86,273
JFC At R AT 6 Other tax payables 32,234 21,344
T Rental advances 56,327 =
HAt Others 17,671 11,482
479,932 317,111
HERIHARS 7 Non-current portion
ik & Deposits received (b) 10,177 =
490,109 317,111
W3E - Notes:

(a)

(b)

TR 1 5 A0 1 A B A 2 ) ) S B
5 e 2 S (ELHRHS B A [ B R 5 2
WO SRR ] o AR AR
SR I R S G (RS 5 4 R 1
SRR R R B AR o B 1E & R R AT
ZHTOR— B RE A A A R AR
P PRI

SEORTE Ay F AL B P IRE R SCH AR £ o 2
DA R 1 7R NSO ) PR 4 4

(a)

(b)

The contract liabilities as at the end of year are related to short-term advances
received from customers for the Group's property management services and
value-added services to non-property owners and community value-added services.
The Group receives payments from customers based on billing schedules as
established in the property management and value-added services to non-property
owners contracts. A portion of payments is usually received in advance of the
performance under the contracts which are mainly from property management

services.

The balance mainly represents security deposits received from tenants and suppliers

and rental deposits from lessees.

IE 58 R 7% 45 M 4 BR A B Zhenro Services Group Limited
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25. it B AT B ILAb AR sk

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS
e S o Y S [ e =|
At 31 December 2021
BRI (%) e AR¥TT
Effective
interest rate (%) Maturity RMB 000
RV Current
SRATERK — AL Bank loans — secured 5.2 e i 20,000
2022
SRATEEK — A Bank loans — unsecured 44-5.2 TR TUE 57,044
2022
RIAE Y BRI ES 7 Current portion of long term
SRATRER — AR Bank loans — secured 5.0 ERITH 8,000
2022
SRATER — Bank loans — unsecured 4.7-5.2 TR 2,500
2022
87,544
JERP Non-current
SRATEIK — A Bank loans — secured 50 B4R 19,180
— g — ).
ZERINE
2023-2026
SRATER — Bank loans — unsecured 4752 _E=EFR 11,375
U
R
2023-2024
30,555
118,099
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25. wH R8T BILAAG K ) 25.

BORROWINGS (Continued)
REZZRFE+FZA=1+—H

At 31 December 2020

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

HFEFIHR %) g AR
Effective
interest rate (%) Maturity RMB 000
B 154 Current
TR Bk B AR 3 Current portion of long term
SRATHER — A K4 Bank loans — secured 5.6 TR 2,500
2021
SRAT R — AL Bank loans — unsecured 5.2-5.4 TR T A 11,500
2021
14,000
FE B Non-current
SRAT R — AR Bank loans — secured 56 _—EFTHEFE 7,500
o
2022-2024
SRATEK — M Bank loans — unsecured 52 _EHFTTHEFE 5,875
o
2022-2024
13,375
27,375

IE2% R 4 B 45 FR A ®] Zhenro Services Group Limited
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25. wtBEAT BICABAT % a0 25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)
R e S <22
2021 2020
AREF ANRHT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
iy Analysed into:
—IENER Repayable within one year 87,544 14,000
CEAFNER Repayable within two to five years 30,555 13,375
118,099 27,375

ASE B fE S LR RHE 4% 2
GIES oS

ACE A= H o AEE
HERAT 1 3 N R 27,180,000 00 (=& —
AR ) HAS AR I — T BB A W) VL AR A
BN 709 RHEHLHR o R T - —F =
H=Z1—H » AEEMERTHERIRARE
20,000,000 70 ( =& ZRAF © ) B
Jie SR i A R E S SE B A R AR ([ IE
LM NE ) PER o

The Group'’s borrowings are all denominated in RMB and bore interest at

fixed rates.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank borrowings of
RMB27,180,000 (2020: nil) were pledged by 70% equity interests of
Jiangsu Sutie, a subsidiary the Group. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group's bank borrowings of RMB20,000,000 (2020: nil) were guaranteed
by Zhenro Group Co., Ltd. (“Zhenro Group Company”), a company

controlled by the controlling shareholder.
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26. WERERLIE 26. DEFERRED TAX
AER > IRIERITE G E KB EN BT The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as
follows:
R ARV & e Deferred tax assets
Ll
SHMEERE  WAMER  RREL HEAR it
Losses
available for
Impairment offsetting
of financial  against future Accrued Lease
assets taxable profits expenses liabilities Total

NERTE  ARRTT  ABWFT  ARFFT  ARETT
RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUWO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO

RZZ_FE-H-H At 1 January 2020 3,036 3,239 3,086 2,673 12,034
ERFIA/ (B E) BEH  Deferred tax credited/(charged) to profit
IEIERUA (IfiE10) or loss during the year (note 10) 3,067 6,796 (516) 13 9,560

MEEZFEFTH=+—H At31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021

R=Z_—%-A-H 6,103 10,035 2570 2,686 21,304
e YN Acquisitions of subsidiaries 801 5,788 134 42,853 49,576
ERFEA /(IR H) B8 Deferred tax credited/(charged) to profit

AR (i 10) ot loss during the year (note 10) 6,771 (7,200) 906) (7,939) 9,273)
AZ ==+ ZH=T—H Act31 December 2021 13,675 8,623 1,798 37,601 61,697

IE 2% fi % 4E 1B A B A B Zhenro Services Group Limited
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26. EREBLH ) 26. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
IEAERLIE A Deferred tax liabilities

kEME  MEHE
Yy AERE  ATERD  BRGOH it

Change in
Amortisation fair value of
of intangible ~ Right-of-use investment  Finance lease
assets assets properties receivables Total

NEHTE  ABETT  ARFFT  AREFT  ARHTx
RMBUOO  RMBUWO ~ RMBOW)  RMBUO)  RMBUOO

REF-FE—A—H At 1 January 2020 7,716 2,043 2616 - 12375
R GIA) /RBER  Deferred tax (credited)/charged to profit
EAEBUE (Wi 10) or loss during the year (note 10) (898) (328) 385 = (841)

REFZFEFZA=1—H  At31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021

R=FZ—%—A—A 6,818 1715 3001 - 11,534
B A Acquisitions of subsidiaries 6,276 1,170 43,148 36,369 86,963
B iyt AR A IR R Deferred tax credited to profit or loss

(Ht10) during the year note 10) (1,21 (838) (6,266 4,27) (12,5)
REZZ-FFZA=1—H  At31 December 2021 11,882 2,047 39,883 3,142 85,954
WoE - —FE+"H=+—H  E% For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have
ME > & TEREBIEEE R A KR been offset in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
BB AR UL R NS o DL Bt S December 2021. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances
e H BT E AR EBIE A BR AT for financial reporting purposes:

R “E R
2021 2020
ANRWFIT ANBHT
RMB’000 RMB000

TR SR A BRI R N TERR AY Net deferred tax assets recognised in the
R o T e v (E consolidated statement of financial position 20,321 19,515

iy Q?A WKL R A TR Y Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
R AR TE B fE AR consolidated statement of financial position 44,578 9,655
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26.

- IEZ R A AT Zhenro Services Group Limited

AR (40

8 AGE YN ERE IR R
SN 365 7 I ) 3 R ST B AR B A
B B A TR RS Al 109 1 TE 0
Bl wilE 2% FE—A—HigkE
BN —EFLE+ A=+ —H
T8 A T B o A e ) B R A B 4
B R RS R AR E > TR
HEREMBIZE - AEENBHBES
109% (" "4 1 10%) o WL > A4
V26 A % 2 A AP B A St T ) I 2 )
MEZEENFE—H—HEELENEF
T3 R e PR S B AR TR B

WoFEo—F+H=+—H > W
A A [ v B A S R R R A R ZE
AN TE B 1 2 R Hh 20 1 E A5F 1) T 4 B e
FRAT AT AR AL B IE o b T A AR T4
o B A9 b B A ) A R B i o
TR 74 T 11 O 4 (R B A v B 3t
TERRSR AR B E R 2 > WOFE T T
110 3195 2 A K ] BE 43 I A R % B v o B
FEE S v B A B A R A R TSI A
ﬂﬁaﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ
#INE390,668,0007C (ZF R4
ANEH#369,215,0007C) ©

A 4 B A B A 3 A B TR R A A
R#62,932,0007C (ZF _FF : ARH
52,643,00070) » H A HEAREE % 55 Bk AR s
3501 27 8 1 R 2R LB T A1 11 9 R
—BRAEFM -

o A A S o EU O M 4R 2 I YR
WA BAGEBRE R AN K] RE B R
0 1) DG 6 B R B A 1R I
E R BUHEE

26.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 10% (2020: 10%). The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings

generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2021, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that
are subject to withholding taxes of the Group's subsidiaries established
in Mainland China. This is because the Company controls the dividend
policy of the Mainland China subsidiaries and the directors determined
that the Group’s fund will be retained in Mainland China for the
expansion of the Group’s operation, so such retained earnings are not
likely to be distributed in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amounts
of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately RMB390,668,000 (2020: RMB369,215,000).

The Group had tax losses arising in Mainland China of RMB62,932,000
(2020: RMB52,643,000), that will expire in one to five years for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the entities in which the losses

arose.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the losses as
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available

against which the taxable losses can be utilised.
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26. BB ) 26. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
S ML T 578 B WERDIE IR TE B Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following
item:
e S 2 R CFTE
2021 2020
ANRWFFI ANRHTT
RMB’000 RMB000
FiIA N 1E Tax losses 28,440 12,504
27. Ak 27. SHARE CAPITAL
=t DS e
2021 2020
TER R Number of ordinary shares:
HIE - Authorised:
HQE{EO 002 25 JC Y5 48 i Ordinary shares of US$0.002 each
(ZFRZFAF 1 0.0023F70) (2020: US$0.002) 20,000,000,000  20,000,000,000
C#1T Issued:
E&‘E{Eo 002 35 70 1Y 5 488 i Ordinary shares of US$0.002 each
(ZFZFAF 1 0.002FT0) (2020: US$0.002) 1,037,500,000 1,037,500,000
e S “EFE
2021 2020
AR T ANEWTF T
RMB’000 RMB000
B Amounts:
EEITREE Issued and fully paid:
BT {0002 3 7T Y 38 38 Ordinary shares of US$0.002 each
(ZF A £ 0.002370) (2020: US$0.002) 7,867 7,867
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27. A )
B 5 A G L 9 7 I AR S B A

27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

A summary of movements in the Group's issued capital during the year is

T as follows:
C#TRNEA CRITHRA
Number of
shares in issue Issued capital
g ANBWHTFIT
Notes RMB 000
N_F_FRE—~H—H At 1 January 2020 1,000,000 349
libehgiisa Share Split (a) 499,000,000 -
GARIEEAT Capitalisation issue (b) 250,000,000 3,497
2RREE (NIERE Global offering (excluding shares issued
TR AR L B HE RS AT Y e ) under the over-allotment option) (c) 250,000,000 3,497
TR AR AL % Over-allotment (d) 37,500,000 524
W R EE As at 31 December 2020 and
TZA=+—Hk 1 January 2021
—F-—%—A—H 1,037,500,000 7,867
R _F 4 As at 31 December 2021
+ZA=1+—H 1,037,500,000 7,867
(a) WIEA RN EBRR —F - FEAR 1 (a) Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders of the Company passed on 15

FammEmRER - AAFCEITR
RBEAT OB T8 (1 1 9% 7 19 4 OB A 5 20

June 2020, each of the issued and unissued shares of the Company of US$1 each was
subdivided into 500 shares of US$0.002 each (the “Share Split”). Upon completion

(b)

BB I {H0.002 2 T 500 B ([
WARAN L) o B0 U5 A 58 WL AR - #E 1k
19,500,000,000 BEAE 5 » A2 7 B € it
A H11,000,000% T8 (4 £5500,000,000 i
JBe A ) e — 25 8 % 40,000,000 3 TG (43
£520,000,000,000 B ) o BEATIEA
1,000,000 357G (43 £51,000,000 % & i T
{E1.00FTCHAY) HENZE 1,000,000 70
(43 %5500,000,000 & 5 I T (E0.002 35 76
1 A )

HARAN AR AR —F = FAENHA T HH
R T e % > 5 36250,000,000
I T (L0002 38 JC 1 FiE 7 B2 44 1 {14 P %%
SRS AT TN B T H 4 51 A 2 ) i
A2 A A B B LTI H
AR AR A T I i (B R T 500,000 35 7T
(#1 NE3,497,00070) EAAL I T
DABL % R 847 (TE AL BT

(b)

of the sub-division, the authorised share capital of the Company was further
increased from US$1,000,000 divided into 500,000,000 shares to US$40,000,000
divided into 20,000,000,000 shares by the creation of an additional 19,500,000,000
shares. The issued share capital was increased from US$1,000,000 divided into
1,000,000 shares of US$1.00 each to US$1,000,000 divided into 500,000,000
shares of US$0.002 each.

Pursuant to the written resolution of the shareholders of the Company passed on 15
June 2020, a total of 250,000,000 shares of US$0.002 each were allotted and issued
at par value to the shareholders whose names were on the register of members of the
Company immediately prior to the Listing Date and such shares were allotted and
issued by way of capitalisation of US$500,000 (approximately RMB3,497,000) (the
“Capitalisation Issue”) from the Company’s share premium account on the Listing
Date.
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27. JBAR )

()

(d)

MREFZFELATH - AN A ERE
B RN B E LR A. 5 S W T BT 5 It
T {E0.002 35 7611250,000,000 4 - H
7%\ F) Iy A W A B AR BT e BT AR K
J63,875,000# 70 (%1 N R #3,497,00078)
(CHERILHEE) B 7t AR RA -
FHf IR ,133,625,000 50 (41 AR
1,023,074,0007C) B 5 A B it B R o

REFEZZHELA=+—H  RAAARK
TR R T P M 17 8 T 42 4 P 4. 5 5 W 6 Y
R I E HE — 2 917 37,500,000 A A 1A (B
0.002 3% JC Y AL > SR AT BRI (E A A
R 153,252,000 76 » A 7 411 Bk i 4 8
AT AR TR 2 )0 20 I 1 L A 2 [
M -

27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(c)

(d

On 10 July 2020, 250,000,000 shares of US$0.002 each of the Company were
issued at HK$4.55 by way of placing and public offering and the Company's
shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The proceeds of
HK$3,875,000 (approximately RMB3,497,000), representing the par value,
have been credited to the Company's share capital, and the remaining proceeds of
HK$1,133,625,000 (approximately RMB1,023,074,000) have been credited to the

share premium account.

On 31 July 2020, the Company further issued 37,500,000 ordinary shares of
US$0.002 each at a subscription price of HK$4.55 per share pursuant to the
exercise of over-allotment options, resulting in a share premium of approximately
RMB153,252,000, representing the difference between the subscription price and
nominal value of the Company's ordinary shares before netting off the share issue

cost.
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28. it 28.
4 B T R 4 A B4 2 B
H ) 25 i BB R 2 0 EL R AR A iE A5
BHE -

() BtrifE
I A7 i B8 U P B R 32 B 2 T O 4 )
BEE - RSB REEHE
AR EEERIRAT R o Bt
i ABFE AR 2 R R A0 7 L AR TE 3 1 g
A A H SEBRAR A R IR
BUWT > AEARENR

(b)  EAGKE
BE-F-FE+—HAEHITL
46 f o i > AR Fl ) Sky Bridge
B1750,000 BEA 2 7 45 I {1
FICH BB > DARER L, 000
Future Prosperity (BVI)FJZf (Rf
Future Prosperity (BVD 2L AT
JRAR) o TH AR AR AR A ) A Y
Y WERR 1y B A (A o

(© A D
S ) O Gt B A S I B
AT R A ) 5 AT 4
P B 25 1 R 0 5 EA 4 th -

d) BEBBREE
AR o A T T o IR S O
JB A A AL AR AN - Ak s R
TR B VR R0 109 3R UL B 2
SRBEMS > TR o B e L
o HE BRI A
[1509% = A B o I 2 A0 I I 2
)AL A0 T PR AR
B R B AR RS T S8 4R
SRR o MR A R A
190 1 FEB LA 19 259% - B
AR AR HE 3T H LA M A
& > IRAMHE BB & B AR o

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity on page 9 of the financial statements.

(a) Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the constitutional
documents and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium is distributable as dividend on the condition that
the Company is able to pay its debts when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business at the time the proposed dividend is to

be paid.

(b) Capital reserve

Pursuant to the share swap agreement on 7 November 2019, the
Company issued 50,000 consideration shares of the Company of
US$1 each to Sky Bridge in exchange for 1,000 shares of Future
Prosperity (BVI), representing the entire issued share capital of
Future Prosperity (BVI). The excess of the par value over the share

capital of the Company was recognised as capital reserve.

(c) Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the capital contribution
of the then holding company of the companies now comprising the
Group, after elimination of the investments in subsidiaries for the

Reorganisation.

(d) Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, the Group
is required to appropriate 10% of its net profits after tax, as
determined under the Chinese Accounting Standards, to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
its registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the
relevant PRC regulations and in the articles of association of the
subsidiaries, the statutory surplus reserve may be used either to
offset losses, or to be converted to increase share capital, provided
that the balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the
registered capital of the respective entities. The reserve cannot be
used for purposes other than those for which it is created and is not

distributable as cash dividends.
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29.

X555 Pk

TE4R T SE A BILA PR ]
AZFEAEXNAZTH A AL
HeREARY91 H &t IF 4 i
A2 0 i O 4 i S A PR ) B LY
J& o w) ([ R ]) & 45999 HIHE
3 o IF 4% 260 B R AR P B R M
F T SE ) SR A N B A B
A E R EUE S AT &
HAHNRWEo1H# T -

AR 0% o B e o A IE SR R MR
SR T A= —HIEEER
FAWE (THERAE ] ERAR¥60H
BT > RS SR R LR
356,400,000 — (60,000,000 — a*) x 99% x
b** L

* R AR com &t » 2 IE4REE M
BE-FE--FTHA=1—HIEFER
A

wo BARRZSMERE AR [ Tk
LAEE99 % IR HE » Z R BRI AR 60
T (B IEATEEMBE —F -+
ZH=+— BRI RE) o

29

BUSINESS COMBINATION

Zhenro Commercial Management Co., Ltd.

On 29 June 2021, the Group acquired an aggregate of 99% interest in
Zhenro Commercial Management Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries (“Zhenro
Commercial Management”) from Zhenro Properties Group with a cash
consideration of RMB891 million. Zhenro Commercial Management
are principally engaged in the provision of commercial operation and
management services for commertcial properties in Mainland China. The
purchase consideration for the acquisition was in the form of cash, with a

total amount of RMB891 million.

Pursuant to the acquisition agreement, if the net profit of Zhenro
Commercial Management (the “Guaranteed Profit”) for the year ended 31
December 2021 is less than RMB60 million, the second instalment will
be adjusted in RMB as 356,400,000 — (60,000,000 — a*) x 99% x b

< being an amount less than RMBG0 million, represents the net profit of Zhenro

Commercial Management for the year ended 31 December 2021

*E represents the total consideration of RMB891 million for the transaction divided
by the corresponding 99% equity interest and then divided by RMBG60 million,
namely the Guaranteed Profit of Zhenro Commercial Management for the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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29. EBE
ERRFEEAERAR 4)

T 2% 7 36 4 B0 Tl ) E M AR A Wi

29. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Zhenro Commercial Management Co., Ltd. (Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Zhenro

i H AR AFEIT ¢ Commercial Management as at the date of acquisition were as follows:
e i e R
INTE
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
Wit ANR¥ T
Notes RMB000
EIE Property and equipment 11 739
id<v/ES Investment properties 15 172,590
RS = Right-of-use assets 14(a) 4,690
HAh T & Other intangible assets 17 25,782
il g*ﬂgﬁgq&aﬁklﬁ Finance lease receivables 133,163
R R TE Deferred tax assets 1,437
2 5 e IR Trade receivables 3,076
WEW % Hﬁ%/!} i oL Due from related companies 57,209
FEATRRIE ~ Heg KAt R IR R IR Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 5,962
Bla R &% EY) Cash and cash equivalents 43,045
iRk Pledged deposits 3,000
% 5 e IH Trade payables (5,340)
HoAth JE A 2XOE K RERTHE Other payables and accruals (38,771)
FHERATIE K Interest-bearing bank borrowings (8,500)
A& Lease liabilities (171,411)
JRE At i IR Tax payables (2,078)
AR IE B Deferred tax liabilities (38,824)
H N AR RHE R T 35 & TR 485 Total identifiable net assets at fair value 185,769
I £ e i Non-controlling interests (1,858)
WS i R £ Goodwill on acquisition 707,089
DA 4 32 A Satisfied by cash 891,000
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29.

B0 )
ERFHEEHAERAR 4)
AR R B SR E T

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Zhenro Commercial Management Co., Ltd. (Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the above acquisition is as

follows:

ANBHT T
RMB 000
BaERE Total cash consideration (891,000)
HEA B4 BRAT A B Total cash and bank balances acquired 43,045
A BUEN B S R &5 EY) Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the
Tih B (FEARETEE) acquisition included in cash flows from investing activities
PirigBlalie) (847,955)

AR [ 1 R 2 A 3T o AR N R
1,263,5007C © #4552 o A 2 S8 i 17
SRR TR RO M A T R AR R AT

B o

C i 8 7 B o TR M L 2 o 3 2
() % S 1 B B A AR T Y T Dok
5 1 B e DF 128 A 1 RSO B I ¢k i I At
G R RN K

SRR 2 B BT - (E AT > A
[~ ER AR 48 1 & BB E | AR
1200 V(e 5 B P 48 4 T e 9 21 (E BT
B o MR S A T R AT B R4 0 5L
RNER-F -+ _A=1+—HH

T IR > I 2 S I A A SR
BRI A A AR %102,963,0007C >
WREE - F-_—F+_HA=+—H
WA B R AR SE W E R A A N R
19,248,000 7C © fif &k —F = —4F—H
— HEAT o AR B F A5 A i A SR T A
oAl B N R 1,405,572,000 70 & A R
271,319,000 7T ©

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB1,263,500 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and are included
in administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income.

The goodwill recognised is primarily attributed to the expected synergies
and other benefits from combining the assets and activities of Zhenro
Commercial Management with those of the Group. The goodwill is not

deductible for income tax purposes.

The contingent consideration is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date, which was recorded as “financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss”, and measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognise
in profit or loss. Based on the assessment performed by the management
of Group, the fair value of the contingent consideration at 31 December
2021 was nil.

After acquisition, Zhenro Commercial Management contributed
RMB102,963,000 to the Group’s revenue and RMB19,248,000 to
the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2021. Had the
combination taken place at 1 January 2021, the consolidated revenue
and profit of the Group would have been RMB1,405,572,000 and
RMB271,319,000, respectively.
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30. SR BLAU B M

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
(@ TFTEIEBHERH (a) Major non-cash transaction
MY EMELHMm S » Fk o A4 During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use
) ) 0 R A JE R A B B assets of RMB4,690,000 (2020: RMB1,527,000), and lease
ANE¥4,690,0007C ( % T4 liabilities of RMB171,411,000 (2020: RMB1,527,000), in respect
ANE¥1,527,00078) KAH &AM of lease arrangements for properties.

FH e NRE171,411,000
J6 (T F A NRWE1,527,000

JC) °
(b) RMEFHEENAESED (b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
AEEAT R RERSB A
e & otk WH HEAE
Interest-bearing

Interest bank and other ~ Due to related Lease
payables borrowings companies liabilities
NREFT AREFT  AREFT  ARETT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000
RZF_FE—A—H At 1 January 2020 - 20375 1,520 10,668
Hifi New leases = = = 1,527
PR Interest expenses 886 - - 410
ENHREESRE Cash flows from operating activities (886) = (579) -
H@E(ﬁ@]ﬁﬁ BHsE Cash flows from financing activities = 7,000 3,944 (1,883)
REFZFEFZH=F—H A 31 December 2020 - 27375 4,885 10,722
W R A Acquisition of subsidiaries - 8,500 - 171411
FIEH Interest expenses 5,585 - - 4,524
BEEHEHSNE Cash flows from operating activities (5,585) — (2,270) -
ﬁﬁ BEBANENE Cash flows from financing activities - 82,224 (1) (36,253)
REZZ—E+ZA=+—H  At31 December 2021 - 118,099 2,59% 150,404
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30. BEBLARERME @) 30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(c) MEBEBERH (c) Total cash outflow for leases
FIAB G R RO BB The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash
mr flows is as follows:

R CECEE

2021 2020

AR N

RMB’000 RMB000

JREEEIEE) A Within operating activities 5,075 5,734
RSN Within financing activities 36,253 1,883
41,328 7,617
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31. W RS

(a)

R Aty R 52 5 8h AR

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)  In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere, the Group had

B BT A IS S the following transactions with related parties:
TR S
2021 2020
AR T AR TIT
RMB’000 RMB000
1] [ Bt 2 ) B Advances to related companies
T4 Hh e 4 Zhenro Properties Group - 933
IR i 2~ ) 7 K Repayment from related companies
IE4EHh e 4 Zhenro Properties Group - 651
RSB AT Zhenro Group Company - 257
= 908
IR M 2~ ) B Advances from related companies
RSB AT Zhenro Group Company - 4,037
1] ] Bt 2> ) K Repayment to related companies
IESREE AT Zhenro Group Company - 93
IESEHEE SR ) B 2 Joint ventures and associates of
/N Zhenro Properties Group 21 -
21 93
$RAET B A Al Y Property management services,
WL RS ~ BB RS K& value-added services, and brand and
o R DA S e RS i) management output services rendered
to related companies (i)
TE 4% o 4E Zhenro Properties Group 278,454 248,214
IESRAEE AT Zhenro Group Company 9,264 7,813
IERHE EEN S ERER Joint ventures and associates of
N Zhenro Properties Group 82,314 52,883
TESAR B Al B 2 An associate of Zhenro
Group Company 5,723 98
375,755 309,008
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Wi 8 0 38 B ()

(a)

(b)

R ATy R S 8 > A
SHERAB TEAT AT RS (B

31.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere, the Group had

the following transactions with related parties: (Continued)

e ;S “ETEF
2021 2020
AR T AR¥T T
RMB 000 RMB 000

1] PR 2 ) AR EL B Lease payment to related companies
1E 4 b s 4 ] Zhenro Properties Group 37,527 2,000
BB AT Zhenro Group Company - 505
37,527 2,505

I 55 3 7 4 I 2 AR B ) 7

et o BB R SR AR A R
R EEBBR A 5T o IESE4E

o A oy — R o A BRSSO 0
= e

AR JIR IR 2 B4 Ty 36 A Hhh s

FE e 3 e W AT =
B[k 0y 9 oAb 52 5
S SV ES

S [ 1 R AT 1 3N R 520,000,000
To(CEEF ) BIEAEE
/\75@{% MizE2s)

MR JUE > B EEEN—
TR B 2 ) R4 I e R ik [ 7
A REIR — R A W SR AT B AR LA 61
1755 15 NARHEIE (R - R = —
FHZA=ZT—H > HREE=RA
R #258,000,000 TG

Zhenro Properties Group is controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder and Mr. Ou Guogiang, who is a shareholder of the
Company and son of the Controlling Shareholder. Zhenro Group
Company is a company controlled by the Controlling Shareholder.

These transactions were carried out in accordance with the terms

and conditions mutually agreed by the parties involved.

Other transactions with related parties

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank borrowings of
RMB20,000,000 (2020: nil) was guaranteed by Zhenro Group
Company (note 25).

In 2019, a subsidiary of Zhenro Commercial Management
provided a guarantee in favour of a bank in relation to the bank
loan of a company controlled by the Controlling Shareholder and
Mr. Ou Guogqiang. As at 31 December 2021, such amount was
amounted to RMB258,000,000.
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31. WIS @)
(©) SRR T R A AR

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(¢) Outstanding balances with related parties

TR —ECREF
2021 2020
AR T NBWTFIT
RMB000 RMB 000
JRE A W 2 ] RO Due from related companies:
=yl Trade related
153 7 A 1 Zhenro Properties Group 223,842 38,742
IESAERE AT Zhenro Group Company 16,303 =
I E R A E ¥R Joint ventures and associates of
/N Zhenro Properties Group 34,879 36,015
275,024 74,757
JRE Ak A i 24 ] K0 Due to related companies:
L Trade related
IESAEB AT Zhenro Group Company - 848
I EEEN A E ¥R Joint ventures and associates of
B A Zhenro Properties Group 2,390 -
2,390 848
JRE A TR M A W) O Due to related companies:
FE ZHHH Non-trade related
IESAEB AT Zhenro Group Company - 4,016
IEAMEERN B SER Joint ventures and associates of
/N Zhenro Properties Group 204 21
204 4,037
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31. BB R S )
(c) BLBAME 7 R A58 (49)

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties (Concinued)

“®o—  CFoFN
2021 2020
AREFI ANRBTIL
RMB000 RMB’000
MEHLE : Lease liabilities:
Oyl Trade related
1E 583 7 A 1 Zhenro Properties Group 149,605 7,947
=SS
2021 2020
AREFI AR BT
RMB000 RMB’000
B W A T 2 ) K T Due from related companies
k] Gross amount 287,731 74,757
BE Impairment (12,707) -
275,024 74,757

TR IR FE I 8 52 A 0 B A0 B i
ARFB A 15 O T B B 2 ) I R R

An ageing analysis of the due from related companies as at the end

of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss

WA AT allowance, is as follows:
e eid “RORE
2021 2020
AREFI NREFr
RMB’000 RMB000
—4EN Within 1 year 260,871 74,757
—F AR 1 to 2 years 14,153 -
275,024 74,757
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PR 68 05 8 B 40 31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Concinucd)

(c) EBLBHME T AR &6 () (c) Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued)
JRE AT P Wt ) 2 T s TR A 1Y The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of due from
SEEIT - related companies are as follows:

S Jase: e S <2

2021 2020
AR AR TIT
RMB’000 RMB000
=) At beginning of year - =
ARG 1R AR (Kte) Impairment losses, net (note 6) 12,707 =
R At end of year 12,707 -
RTHRBETRGEEDEEL =M The credit periods granted to related parties are mainly 3 months.
H o AT A %55 R GRIE R The Group has assessed that the credit risk of these receivables has
5 BEJRBE 1 902 W DA AR & KR not increased significantly since initial recognition and measured
B > SRR AR R A T e A A A A the impairment under the simplified approach based on lifetime
W E R R o expected credit losses.
) ARLEEFEEIABHW (d) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group
TR eSS
2021 2020
ANRBH T ANR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB 000
KR B Aa A Short term employee benefits 16,479 15,896
RRGE FH IR B AL & 4 A Pension scheme contributions and
social welfare 936 768
I T EEEMANBNFHMAEL  Total compensation paid to key
management personnel 17,415 16,664
2 4 O — 2D R R ST Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8.

8o
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32. BEAIEFEIRHERMIELE 32, PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL

b & 2 ) NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
745 B R IR B I RE 25 Y BT B A | EE Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material non-controlling
THRIWT - interests are set out below:
TLRRAR S Jiangsu Sutie:
i Smeslis “ECTAE
2021 2020
ANEH T ANRBHT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
e PR RE £ 1 A TRCRE EL 151 Percentage of equity interest held by
non-controlling interests 30% 30%
DRI ENEE R Profic for the year allocated to non-controlling
interests 2,672 3,171
VRS 2 P IR A P BB Distribution of dividends to non-controlling
interests (5,280) -
ke 4 2 R4 R Accumulated balances of non-controlling
interests 16,703 19,311
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32. HEAFERBMERMIESLYE 32, PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL
Bk )& 2 Wl a0 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
ILBRERER = ()

M DL b 2 R B B B o T
TR AR A5 7 AR BT A0 42 % -

Jiangsu Sutie: (Continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of

the above subsidiary. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company

eliminations:

e S 3 ZRCRAE
2021 2020
AREFIT NRWFIr
RMB000 RMB 000
i ts Revenue 37,006 35,113
B Sl Total expenses (28,098) (24,544)
A K 1] Profit for the year 8,908 10,569
TG E Current assets 39,564 42,338
FREE = Non-current assets 39,102 41,609
b JN=N It Current liabilities (15,302) (11,897)
U E R Non-current liabilities (7,687) (7,681)
AR E (BT H) / RS Net cash flows (used in)/from
W& R operating activities 3,732 7,032
RBETEE) (Fr) / i fs Net cash flows (used in)/from
& financing activities (17,600) =
B4 RO & 5 BB i AR Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (13,868) 7,032
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33, FBEMH AR TH 33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
KK 4 TEREGEEDT The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

are as follows:

R_Z_—F+_H=1+—H At 31 December 2021
SRVE E Financial assets
TS A MR
SRhE R
Financial assets
at amortised cost
ARHFIC
RMB’000
G 5 ECGRIA (T 20) Trade receivables (note 20) 310,832
JRE i T :J%\’IE BFiE31) Due from related companies (note 31) 275,024
FEATNTHOE » HAWEWETEK  Financial assets included in prepayments,

HthEEr g (fit21) other receivables and other assets (note 21) 51,317
B4 LB &% EY (HhE22) Cash and cash equivalents (note 22) 736,914
AL (P 5E22) Pledged deposits (note 22) 4,616

1,378,703
SRl E Financial liabilities
e 89 A HR 1
SREE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
ANRBFr
RMB’000
B 5 M IH (B 3E23) Trade payables (note 23) 202,118
FEA A REAT R IE K T2 Y Financial liabilities included in other payables and

SRAE ( M]Lu}_% accruals (note 24) 146,384
JREAS B A kR (Bt E31) Due to related parties (note 31) 2,594
FH R R &/E\:ﬁﬂﬁrr}\ B&E25) Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (note 25) 118,099

469,195
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33.

Ry m T ) 33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)
WEETFEFZH=1—H At 31 December 2020
SREE Financial assets
FeEr AR B BRI
SREE
Financial assets
at amortised cost
ARBFr
RMB’000
E%W?W%ﬁ@ﬁ (Ff3E20) Trade receivables (note 20) 272,117
JRE e B e ) T (B3 1) Due from related companies (note 31) 74,757
FH AR OR WEAFEW JIH N Financial assets included in prepayments,
Hoh B E’Jér’ﬂ EE (fizk21) other receivables and other assets (note 21) 28,834
e R & EY (Hk22) Cash and cash equivalents (note 22) 1,451,514
1,827,222
ERAR Financial liabilities
PSR AR B R Y
G RlE K
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
AR¥F
RMB 000
B 5 WEAT A (i 3E23) Trade payables (note 23) 166,659
T A IEAT SR E ST I Financial Liabilities included in other payables and
ERALRE ( Bﬁ.&z4 accruals (note 24) 89,077
JRE A B g IR (Bt E31) Due to related parties (note 31) 4,885
hEgR T&Eﬁﬂ Bk (BT 2s) Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (note 25) 27,375
287,996

- IE 2% fi % 4E 1B A B A B Zhenro Services Group Limited
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34.

ERTHMAPHEEATHE 34

i %

AR B R AR T E K P E (R
E6ER AT EM SR TARI) W
T

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial instruments,

other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to

fair values, are as follows:

R TH A FE
Carrying
amounts Fair values
AR¥F AR¥Fr
RMB 000 RMB000
“E - —FtTZHA=+—H 31 December 2021
FHESRAT RHAM K — FERIH  Incerest-bearing bank and
other borrowings — non-current 30,555 31,066
oAt A 3R — FR B Other payables — non-current 10,177 10,177
40,732 41,243
R FREF_A=1+—H 31 December 2020
FHESRAT ML K — FERPHA  Incerest-bearing bank and
other borrowings — non-current 13,375 18,220

EHE AR e KB FHY - K
#& ~ B MEGKIE ~ SFATEA SUR -
A o L A <
IR Wi B B 7y KO~ B AT R > REA
At 8 A5F R e B A I 4 LAY
B2 ~ A B B 7 R DA Bt S8R
A7 o H At R B 2 1 - B
FREEME - EEREMNZE TANE
HH BRI -

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
pledged deposits, trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets, amounts due from
related parties, trade payables, financial liabilities included in the current
portion of other payables and accruals, amounts due to related parties,
and the current portion of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term

maturities of these instruments.
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IE 58 R 7% 45 M 4 BR A B Zhenro Services Group Limited
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74 S5 1Y 2 R BB T BK o B A A
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KRR o o> 7) B #5 PR B % ) A ]
HHEG MR o RS HE A AR
W B 7 W < il T 10 58 B I 7 B
FATRAG (L £ B A B - fEMEH
S5 A ) B M o Ak o 0 4R
SO ot DL = )l (R Y S R
LS

VO T B9 TR S8 T
(ML 8 B B4 ) 5 RS
BTN R HAN - LT ik R R,
R A A

il S8R AT e L At ik ) IR B B 0 B
At 18 A5t KRR R BP0 19 2 (0 4
B B - 15 8RB R R
0 H B TR B0 AT R M S T R
KRB EETHBE - RER £
S B SRS AT RO A £ R 2 4
e R R NN

34.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The corporate finance team reports
directly to the board of directors of the Company. At each reporting
date, the corporate finance team analyses the movements in the values
of financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with the board of

directors twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the

fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings, and non-current portion of other payables have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and other payables was

assessed to be insignificant as at end of year.
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4, ERTRMOAPHEATE 34

o 8% ()
WEg A TEZ &1E

i

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

31 December 2021

EEWY  ERWEE BAATEE
28 AR T A\
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(%) (B8) (HB=%) At
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ANREFT ARWTT ARWTT ARETL
RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000
AT K Interest-bearing bank and
HAfE3 — FEEI other borrowings — non-current = 31,066 - 31,066
oAb e IE Other payables
— FERI] — non-current - - 10,177 10,177
- 31,066 10,177 41,243
R CFELZH=+—H 31 December 2020
EEG e BRI ERABLE
WE  WAE WA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(55— (58 %) (FE=5) st
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AT ARBTLT ARETT ARETL
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FHERAT K Interest-bearing bank and
HAbfEE — FEEIH  other borrowings — non-current = 18,220 = 18,220
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35.

- IEZ R A AT Zhenro Services Group Limited

SO A L H B B R

AEEMEESM TAEEAHETAR
i HEWCRK IR A 4 o ~ B o I 2
PO G AT HOR ~ HoA R &
HWEENEMERE e kRS H
W SIS - B A A FOR ~ AR
B 2 ) I DA Bt A At R £F K I e
AEANEMAR %S TARHE
MEMAREE - AEBEHEA MBS
HiE R AM > WHEA LR SRR
HABAE R o 25 M TRKEEHME
REAEENEEME -

A S TR TR RS
JE\ B B B o — T A%
VI S g 7 B R AR < SR o i A
5 T A M A0 % 4 LB R A A AR
VT Sz 40 0l P A 07 2R B HEA TR R 3
B o A R R A BB AT A2 5
WM T - EEGFMILFZS
TR i BEOR > AR T

35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments mainly include financial
assets included in trade receivables, amounts due from related companies,
financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets, cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade payables,
amounts due to related companies, and financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals, which arise directly from its operations. The
Group has other financial assets and liabilities such as lease liabilities and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. The main purpose of these

financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments are credit
risk and liquidity risk. Generally, the Group introduces conservative
strategies on its risk management. To keep the Group’s exposure to
these risks at a minimum, the Group has not used any derivatives and
other instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or
issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and

they are summarised below:
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35. W5 R B 4E B H BR B oK

(#)

(a)

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
A1 R JL i (a) Foreign Currency risk
L B 1 6 2SSy B TR B o %4 A The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
W 5 R DA oG I B on EHE RO 8R 4T 45 arise from the bank balances denominated in HKD and USD.
BRI EE A o
TR YRR BA R AR T Eo At 5 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
BHBEASWENT > Bl TR reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the HKD and
[T R D) 3 o0 R R T e %2 ) RMB exchange rate and USD and RMB exchange rate, with all
£ HL AT Rl S Y 1T B A A [ RE 5 R0 5 other variables held constant, of the Group’s equity (due to changes
Z(HRNEWEEKEENATE in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).
) WBURE T -
RIC/ WITHER HESS
EF(FE%) W,/ (W)
Increase/(decrease)  Increase/(decrease)
in USD/HKD rate in equity
ARWTFIT
% RMB’000
AR EITC(E  If che RMB weakens against the USD -10% 45)
MARMEHEITCHE  If the RMB strengthens against the USD +10% 45
AR S TCHZ M If the RMB weakens against the HKD -10% (160)
WMARMEHEITTIHE  If che RMB strengthens against the HKD +10% 160
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35. MBS ML BEAE P E B R BCSR 35,
(#)
(b) fEE R
A 45 O T A L 55 B O
HA T B B 4 ST A 8
5 SR -

AL T B KBS FEY UK
IRV o8 Y T DNV
PR 2 A B KR 70 A7 17 o 8 7 3
B A AT B AR R TTRAT -
B BRI & N A RAT A
1M 5 2 AR AT B RR K -

740 S 0 T LR M O R
W R e JEC A R S T R A £
JEB A > (R 2 By ELAR i Y
JEATHE A #1540 2 E AT 1
BT R o A B AR 1A R A el
TR0 R BRI B 5T 20 K21

A A 2 L WA 55 = 7 FA 5 2 B M
B B AR R B % P R 2
M WO SR B A R R =
£ B % M WA R I L A B W 3K I 1
EREEEF R - 1o > LM
RO RENCHOR A5 B8 -

Pt 2 51 4 9 4% 4 T Y R T AR
{f -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade

receivables and other receivables and cash and bank balances.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk associated
with cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits since they are
substantially deposited at state-owned banks and other medium
or large-sized listed banks in Mainland China. Management
does not expect that there will be any significant losses from

non-performance by these banks.

The Group expects that the credit risk associated with trade
receivables and other receivables from related parties is considered
to be low, since related parties have strong financial capacity and
commitment to meet contractual cash flow obligation in the near
term. Information about the impairment provision recognised

during the year is disclosed in notes 20 and 21.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk for trade
receivables and other receivables from third parties as the customer
bases of the Group’s trade receivables and other receivables from
third parties are widely dispersed. In addition, receivable balances

are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial

assets.

IE 58 R 7% 45 M 4 BR A B Zhenro Services Group Limited
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35. MR BB H B RBE 35

(#)

(b) R
5 5 JE B s 1T B A R 4y B B
T SR A A £ SR 1S
B A R R R 1 B 5
0> FEEREHER (R
O AT fof H R S AR B %
RO U F ) A A B4
W o BT B4R A T N B T
iy -

ZEFT-#+ZA=Z1—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts

for financial assets.

31 December 2021

AR
RS
12-month L L
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
AomE BTRE ASRBR O Wi it
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total

ARKTE ARWTE ARETT ARETT ARKTZ
RMBUOO  RMBUO  RMBUOO  RMBUO)  RMBUOD

A& B REIEUR Finance lease receivables 115,445 - - - 115,445
Ul Trade receivables* - - - M0602 340602
T R A 3O Due from related companies

B Trade related - - - WL Bl
FTATFUR  CBREIHURR  Financial assets included in prepaymens,

HEENSMERE other receivables and other assets

— ] G ~ Doubtful** - 53,23 - - 53,232
RERHREEEN Cash and cash equivalents

— WA —Not yet past due 736,914 - - - 736,914
kMg Pledged deposits 4,616 - - - 4,616

856,975 53,232 028333 1,538,540
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35. B 05 WL Be 4% PR H OBE R R
(4)
(b) R )

S5k 1 AL I R ) W

(48)

S LASVESR

35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

31 December 2020

RMRATH
fFEER
12-month SRS RER
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
AR BCRE O EEBR O filon gt
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
ANRETL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARKTT
RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO — RMBUO0  RMBUOO
B e Trade receivables* = = = 293,207 293,207
T B A 0B Due from related companies
B Trade related - - - 74757 74757
FTATRRFOR » HABREIHUR R Financial assets included in prepayments,
HEENEHERE other receivables and other assets
— ] G - Doubtful** - 29,852 - - 29,852
B RTE R Cash and bank balances
— WA — Not et past due 1,451,514 - - - 1451514
1451514 29,852 - 367,964 1,849,330
& S A 4 1 L (AL i B & For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for

5y BEWUTRIEL T 7 > 7% 458 £ 4 o
HEERLIA B 720 P 4555 -

o R AT BOE - H AR OR
o A Y G A E L % RE M
T Bt A ) R TR A 2 0 LG 0
FHEUR 325 4 97 19 5 1 JEUBR
F A 0 T B DA AR s 5%
FEMEE L FREREHAE
o AU ZEMEENGEE
YA [k -

impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note

20.

¥ The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other

receivables and other assets and amounts due from related companies is

considered to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no

information indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase

in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the

financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

IE2% R 4 B 45 FR A ®] Zhenro Services Group Limited
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35. MBS B P H B BB 35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
(45) AND POLICIES (Continued)

(© HLBNE S E (©)
S B A R O T B AT B
fl A 5 L AR
MIGT-0 - B RS RSEA
g -

AL BB HR BN SRt &
ARSI

REFZ-#+ZA=+—H

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity

of funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank

and other borrowings. Cash flows are closely monitored on an

ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities based on

the contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

At 31 December 2021

AR
HER  ARIE 1)L At
Less than More than
3 monthsor 3 months and
ondemand  within 1 year Over [ year Total
ANRETE  ARFTT ARWTFT  ARWTT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
B AN F0R Trade payables 202,118 - - 202,118
SRR RIERT 2 Other payables and accruals 146,384 - - 146,384
At BT R Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 632 91,303 32,075 124,010
HEARK Lease liabilities 942 75,935 83,200 160,077
A5 B R Due to related parties 2,594 - - 2,594
352,670 167,238 115,275 035,183
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35, MBS P H B RS  35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

(45) AND POLICIES (Continued)
() WMEEEEF %) (c¢) Liquidity risk (Continued)
WoE-ZEESH=+—H At 31 December 2020
3MEABIRR
HEK  EAZLE DL At
Less than More than
3monthsor 3 months and
on demand within 1 year Over 1 year Total
NE#TFL  ARETT  ARETT  ARKTx
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
B AR Trade payables 166,659 - - 166,659
TR 008 B e A Other payables and accruals 82,077 7,000 = 89,077
it BT R A 3K Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 1,897 13,443 14,492 29,832
HEAR Lease liabilities 2,209 1,893 7,049 11,151
e B 7 50R Due to related parties 4,885 = = 4,885
257,121 22336 21,541 301,604
d) BEAREMH (d) Capital management
A G B EAE I T2 B R R The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
A B B 5 A AL A B D I A R AR safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
YA LA > DASCRH SERE O ik maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
RAEE KA - maximise shareholders’ value.
74 B 8 i AR A IR DL 28 A B The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
BB G AN o SRy al B to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
BN » AR B g AR IR T adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
FROR A RS, ~ 1) FBOSRR A W A payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
T - new shares.

SR 4 B 4 A 7] Zhenro Services Group Limited
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35, B M BEsF P H B R sE 35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

(#) AND POLICIES (Continued)

d) BAREH (4 (d) Capital management (Continued)
AEEMHERGEILRELE The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
K A E A 2 A B A interest-bearing bank and borrowings divided by total equity as of
FE R RS ELAR AT R S b DA E 25 40 the end of each financial year. The gearing ratios were as follows:

HatH - EAAMLERNT

R ZR AR

2021 2020
AR T ANRHT T
RMB’000 RMB 000

B SRAT B 3K Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 118,099 27,375
Wt AAE Total equity 1,473,301 1,383,636
EARABHR Gearing ratio 8.0% 2.0%
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36. AN E M BRRE 36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY
R RAR A A F RS R T E Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at
BRI the end of the reporting period is as follows:
i e S e S <52
2021 2020
ARHTFoc ANEHT7T
RMB’000 RMB 000
T Hh NON-CURRENT ASSETS
M B A W R E Investments in subsidiaries 2,524 2,524
B E CURRENT ASSETS
JRE VS BRI 1~ 7 3R Due from related companies 1,053,224 1,073,445
FoAh RE IR Other receivables 49 55
e R &% EY) Cash and cash equivalents 439 1,503
T A Total current assets 1,053,712 1,075,003
bk RSN CURRENT LIABILITIES
JFL A B A5 IR Other payables 1,314 1,314
B E AR NET CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,052,398 1,073,689
HEE NET ASSETS 1,054,922 1,076,213
e EQUITY
BEAFHEA N A RESS Equity attributable to owners of the parent
JieA Share capital 7,867 7,867
Caii) Reserves 1,047,055 1,068,346
TE 25 403 TOTAL EQUITY 1,054,922 1,076,213

IEZ MR ¥4 B A A F] Zhenro Services Group Limited
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36.

37.

A2 A W EHR B ) 36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
Bt et Note:
AN EREEAR N A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:
JBe A3 i 8 ARG LB R A
Exchange
Share Capital fluctuation
premium reserve reserves Total
ARWEETFLE  ARETLT  AR¥TLT  AREFT
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB 000
AR FE—~H—H At 1 January 2020 - 2,168 - 2,168
A R 4 TH e AR 4R Total comprehensive loss for the year - - (68,011) (68,011)
lidigidm Issue of shares 1,023,074 = = 1,023,074
A R A S A Exercise of the over-allotment option 153,252 - - 153,252
R 81T B Share issue expenses (38,640) - - (38,640)
AL EAT Capitalisation issue (3.,497) = = (3,497)
REZZZEFTZH=4—H At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021
K== —F—H—H 1,134,189 2,168 (68,011) 1,068,346
AR A TR R AR AR Total comprehensive loss for the year = = (21,291) (21,291)
REFEZ—4+ZH=+—H Ac31 December 2021 1,134,189 2,168 (89,302) 1,047,055
itk S 37. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FHReEN F - HE=H -+ R B The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
i3 R A A T board of directors on 25 March 2022.
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BET-H=1+—HI4E
Year ended 31 December

RO DR TERE R WFE F )\ R

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

ANRETFE ANREFIL AREFT AREFT AREFT

RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

A Revenue 1,335,788 1,102,752 716,220 456,308 272,858

EH Gross profit 428,111 383,375 244,489 120,983 70,319

AF K i A1) Profit for the year 177,641 175,159 109,160 39,524 20,297
BRAEIEA N Profic for the year attributable

JEIGAE %A to owners of the parent 174,578 171,647 105,358 39,612 20,297

mt+—HA=+—H
As at 31 December

RO —ECEBE —FE-HNE —F—)N\E B4

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

ANRBEFT ANRBEFIT ARETT AREFT ARETT

RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB'000

FE s & E Non-current assets 1,076,026 145,325 139,912 42,931 40,707

B Current assets 1,442,542 1,830,355 389,194 808,162 686,577

W A Total assets 2,518,568 1,975,680 529,106 851,093 727,284

FEiE B Non-current liabilities 165,118 29,761 40,919 503,108 503,108

E AR Current liabilities 880,149 562,283 360,127 293,965 209,640

=l vk Total liabilities 1,045,267 592,044 401,046 797,073 712,788

fEts 485 Total equity 1,473,301 1,383,636 128,060 54,020 14,496

BARIEA N Total equity attributable to
MENGHESS 4% owners of the parent 1,451,140 1,363,566 111,502 54,108 14,496

IEZ MR ¥4 B A A F] Zhenro Services Group Limited
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